
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Bydd cyfarfod o'r CABINET yn cael ei gynnal yn Siambr y Cyngor, Cwm 
Clydach, CF40 2XX

Dydd Iau, 23ain Ionawr, 2020 am 10.30 am

Dolen gyswllt: Hannah Williams – Uned Busnes y Cyngor 
   (Rhif ffôn. 01443 424062)

Os bydd cynghorwyr neu aelodau o'r cyhoedd yn dymuno cael cyfle i annerch 
y Cabinet am unrhyw fater ar yr agenda isod, rhaid iddyn nhw ofyn am gael 
gwneud hynny erbyn canol Dydd Mawrth, 21 Ionawr 2020. Rhaid iddyn nhw 
hefyd gadarnhau ai yn y Gymraeg neu yn y Saesneg y byddan nhw’n annerch.

Nodwch mai'r Cadeirydd biau'r penderfyniad i ganiatáu'r cais am annerch y 
Cabinet. Bydd pob cais yn cael ei ystyried ar sail y materion sy'n cael eu trafod 
ar yr agenda, buddiant y cyhoedd/y Cynghorydd ynglŷn â phob mater, a'r 
gofynion o ran y materion sydd i'w trafod ar y diwrnod hwnnw. I wneud cais, 
anfonwch e-bost i UnedBusnesGweithredolaRheoleiddiol@rctcbc.gov.uk

MATERION I'W TRAFOD

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â gofynion y 
Cod Ymddygiad.

Nodwch:
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan 
nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION 
Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 17 Rhagfyr 2019 
yn rhai cywir.

(Tudalennau 5 - 12)

mailto:UnedBusnesGweithredolaRheoleiddiol@rctcbc.gov.uk


3. CYNLLUN DIRPRWYO'R ARWEINYDD 
Derbyn Cynllun Dirprwyo'r Arweinydd yn dilyn y diwygiadau diweddar sy'n 
cynnwys:

 Penodi'r Cynghorydd Tina Leyshon yn Aelod Cabinet newydd ar 
faterion Gwasanaethau i Oedolion a Phlant;

 Penodi'r Cynghorydd Rhys Lewis yn Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion 
Cymunedau, Diwylliant a'r Gymraeg;

 Rhoi'r cyfrifoldeb am Addysg Blynyddoedd Cynnar i'r Aelod o'r Cabinet 
ar faterion Gwasanaethau Addysg a Chynhwysiant; a

 Rhoi cyfrifoldeb am Wasanaethau ac Ymgysylltu Ieuenctid i Arweinydd 
y Cyngor.

4. AILGYLCHU YN RHCT - ARGYMHELLION Y GRŴP LLYWIO AR 
FATERION YR HINSAWDD 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
a Chyfathrebu, sy'n cyflwyno argymhellion Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr 
Hinsawdd, a ystyriodd adroddiad ar gyflawniad ailgylchu ar gyfer 6 mis cyntaf 
2019/20, y Cyfleuster Adennill Deunydd newydd, datblygiadau ym Mryn Pica 
ar gyfer y dyfodol a newidiadau deddfwriaethol posibl.

(Tudalennau 13 - 20)

5. FFYNNON DWYM FFYNNON TAF - ARGYMHELLION Y GRŴP 
LLYWIO AR FATERION YR HINSAWDD 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
a Chyfathrebu, sy'n cyflwyno argymhellion Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr 
Hinsawdd, a oedd wedi trafod adroddiad ar y sefyllfa gyfredol o ran Prosiect 
Ynni Adnewyddadwy Ffynnon Dwym Ffynnon Taf.

(Tudalennau 21 - 28)

6. ADRODDIADAU BLYNYDDOL GWASANAETH MABWYSIADU 
CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU 2018-2019 
Derbyn adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a 
Gwasanaethau i Blant sy'n cyflwyno Adroddiad Blynyddol Gwasanaeth 
Mabwysiadu Cenedlaethol Cymru 2019-2019.

(Tudalennau 29 - 56)

7. DIRPRWYO AWDURDOD I ORFODI DARPARIAETHAU DEDDF 
RHENTU CARTREFI (CYMRU) 2019 (FFIOEDD AC ATI) 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Iechyd a Diogelwch y 
Cyhoedd, a'r Gymuned sy'n ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i ddirprwyo 
awdurdod i'r Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a'r 
Gymuned ac i'r Awdurdod Trwyddedu unigol yng Nghymru (Rhentu Doeth 
Cymru) i ddefnyddio pwerau gorfodi Deddf Rhentu Cartrefi (Ffioedd ac ati) 
(Cymru) 2019.

(Tudalennau 57 – 62
)

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/TheCabinet/RelatedDocuments/LeadersSchemeofDelegation3A.pdf


8. CYLLIDEB REFENIW'R CYNGOR AR GYFER 2020/21 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid, sy'n rhoi gwybodaeth i'r Cabinet am 
setliad llywodraeth leol 2020/2021 a chanlyniadau cam 1 o ymgynghoriad y 
gyllideb, i gynorthwyo gyda'i drafodaethau wrth lunio'r strategaeth cyllideb 
refeniw ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2020/21, y bydd yn ei hargymell i'r Cyngor 
i'w chymeradwyo.

(Tudalennau 63 - 140)

9. TRAFOD CADARNHAU'R CYNNIG ISOD YN BENDERFYNIAD 
“Bod y cyfarfod hwn yn cadw aelodau o'r wasg ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd allan o 
ystafell y cyfarfod, dan Adran 100A(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol (fel y'i 
diwygiwyd), yn ystod trafod yr agendwm nesaf, ar y sail y byddai'n debygol o 
olygu datgelu gwybodaeth eithriedig yn ôl diffiniad paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o 
Atodlen 12A i'r Ddeddf.”

10. CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU CORFFORAETHOL – Y DIWEDDARAF 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr, Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, sy'n rhoi 
gwybod i'r Cabinet am y cynnydd yn erbyn themâu allweddol y Cynllun Rheoli 
Asedau Corfforaethol 2018/23.  

(Tudalennau 141 - 162)
11. DILEU DYLEDION NAD OES MODD EU CASGLU 

Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid sy'n nodi datganiad sefyllfa ar 
ddyledion nad oes modd eu casglu, ac sy'n pennu'r gofyniad i ddileu symiau 
penodol yn unol â meini prawf adolygu llym.

(Tudalennau 163 - 180)
12. MATERION BRYS 

Trafod unrhyw faterion brys y mae'r Cadeirydd yn eu gweld yn briodol.

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 



Cylchrediad:-

Y Cynghorwyr: Y Cynghorydd A Morgan (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorydd M Webber (Is-gadeirydd)
Y Cynghorydd R Bevan
Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings
Y Cynghorydd  M Norris
Y Cynghorydd J Rosser
Y Cynghorydd R Lewis
Y Cynghorydd C Leyshon

Swyddogion:
Chris Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr
Christian Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Gio Isingrini, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a 
Gwasanaethau i Blant
Nigel Wheeler, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu, a 
Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen
Paul Mee, Cyfarwyddwr – Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a 
Gwasanaethau’r Gymuned.
David Powell, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Eiddo’r Cyngor
Richard Evans, Cyfarwyddwr - Materion Adnoddau Dynol
Simon Gale, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu
Andy Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol
Barrie Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol
Gaynor Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Cynhwysiant
Derek James, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Materion Ffyniant a 
Datblygu



 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CABINET CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 CABINET 
Cofnodion o gyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd   Dydd Mawrth, 17 Rhagfyr 2019 am 10.30 am ym 
Siambr y Cyngor, Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian, Cwm Clydach, Tonypandy, CF40 2XX. 

 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol - Cabinet Aelodau oedd yn bresennol:-:- 
 

Y Cynghorydd A Morgan (Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd M Webber Y Cynghorydd R Bevan 
Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings Y Cynghorydd G Hopkins 

Y Cynghorydd  M Norris Y Cynghorydd J Rosser 
Y Cynghorydd R Lewis Y Cynghorydd C Leyshon 

 
 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr C Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr 
Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Mr G Isingrini, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a Gwasanaethau i Blant 
Mr N Wheeler, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu, a Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen 
Mr P Mee, Cyfarwyddwr – Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a Gwasanaethau’r Gymuned. 

Mr S Gale, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu 
Mr A Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

Mr B Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol 
Ms G Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant 

Mr D James, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu 
Ms W Edwards, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau yn y Gymuned 

 
Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol eraill oedd yn bresennol 

 
  

Y Cynghorydd J Brencher 
Y Cynghorydd H Fychan 

 
 
 
 

80   Datgan Buddiant  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, cafodd y datganiadau o fuddiant canlynol 
eu gwneud:- 

• Cyhoeddodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol H. Fychan fuddiant 
personol mewn perthynas ag eitemau 3 ac 11 yr agenda: 'Rwy'n 
gyn-Ymddiriedolwr y Miwni ac yn Aelod o Fwrdd Artis Community.' 

• Cyhoeddodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol J. Brencher fuddiant 
personol mewn perthynas ag eitemau 3 ac 11 yr agenda: 'Rwy'n 
Ymddiriedolwr yr YMCA' 

 
 

 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 2



 

81   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 21 
Tachwedd 2019 yn rhai cywir.  
 

 

82   Trosglwyddo Ased Cymunedol - Canolfan Gelf y Miwni  
 

 

 Yn dilyn penderfyniad y Cabinet ar y 18 Mehefin 2019 i fwrw ymlaen â 
thenantiaeth gydag Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen, cyflwynodd y 
Cyfarwyddwr – Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a Gwasanaethau Cymuned yr 
adroddiad i’r Aelodau, a oedd yn rhoi diweddariad ar y cynnydd mewn perthynas 
â throsglwyddo ased cymunedol Canolfan Gelf y Miwni trwy drosglwyddiad 
prydles. Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr wybod i'r Aelodau fod Awen wedi bod yn 
gweithio gyda'r Cyngor i bennu'r anghenion cyfalaf tymor byr sydd eu hangen i 
ailagor y Miwni ym mis Mehefin 2020, ac unwaith iddyn nhw gael eu nodi, 
byddai'r anghenion yn cael eu cynnwys yng nghynllun buddsoddi cyfalaf y 
Cyngor yn y dyfodol. 
 
Gyda chymorth cyflwyniad PowerPoint, cyflwynodd Ymddiriedolaeth 
Ddiwylliannol Awen y cynigion tymor hir i'r Cabinet ar gyfer adnewyddu ac adfer 
yr adeilad. Pwysleisiodd Awen werth y diwydiannau creadigol wrth gefnogi'r 
economi a'r effeithiau cadarnhaol y gallan nhw eu cael ar iechyd a lles. 
 
Soniodd Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen am dreftadaeth yr adeilad a 
chyfyngiadau'r addurniad mewnol, sydd ddim yn cyd-fynd ag ef. Roedd y 
cynlluniau tymor hir yn cynnwys adfer y nodweddion mewnol, ynghyd â gwella'r 
materion capasiti a hygyrchedd ar gyfer actorion ac aelodau o'r gynulleidfa sy'n 
anabl. 
 
Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Cymunedau Cadarn, Llesiant a 
Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol i Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen am y 
cynlluniau uchelgeisiol a thrawiadol, gan nodi bod llawer o waith wedi'i wneud i 
gynhyrchu'r weledigaeth gyffrous sydd gerbron yr Aelodau. Parhaodd yr Aelod 
o'r Cabinet trwy ganmol y swyddogion am eu hymrwymiad i sicrhau bod yr 
adeilad yn cael ei ddefnyddio eto er budd trigolion RhCT. Siaradodd yr Aelod o'r 
Cabinet am y buddion o ran lles sy'n deillio o'r Celfyddydau a nododd y byddai'r 
Eisteddfod yn cael ystyriaeth wrth drafod unrhyw gynigion.  
 
Manteisiodd yr Arweinydd ar y cyfle hefyd i ddiolch i Awen a'r Cyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaeth am y cynlluniau trawiadol a nododd mai'r targed ar gyfer ailagor 
fyddai mis Mehefin 2020. Siaradodd yr Arweinydd am YMCA Pontypridd a 
nododd y byddai'r ddau leoliad yn ategu ei gilydd, ac yn cryfhau ei gilydd. Aeth 
yr Arweinydd ymlaen i siarad am benderfyniad anodd y Cabinet i gau'r adeilad, 
er mwyn defnyddio'r setliad Llywodraeth Leol llai ar gyfer gwasanaethau 
cymdeithasol a gwasanaethau allweddol eraill i drigolion RhCT, ond roedd yn 
falch o nodi bod Rhaglen RhCT Gyda'n Gilydd y Cyngor wedi esblygu ers hynny 
ac wedi cael ei ddefnyddio gan Lywodraeth Cymru fel enghraifft o arfer gorau.  
 
Lleisiodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd ei chefnogaeth gan ganmol y weledigaeth, a rhoi 
sylwadau ar natur agored a thryloyw'r cyflwyniad. Siaradodd y Dirprwy 
Arweinydd am gyfleusterau eraill y Cyngor yn ardal Pontypridd, megis y bont 
droed newydd a'r Lido, a theimlai y byddai'r cyfan o fudd i drigolion yr ardal 
ehangach ac yn dod â thwristiaeth o'r dinasoedd.  
 
Gwnaeth Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Plant a Phobl Ifainc sylwadau ar y 

 

Tudalen 6



 

cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth gwych ym Mhontypridd ac roedd hi'n gobeithio gweld 
darpariaeth Clwb Ieuenctid Pontypridd yn cael ei chynnwys yn rhaglen y dyfodol. 
 
Gyda chytundeb yr Arweinydd, ac yntau'n Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor, siaradodd 
Cynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref Sirol J. Brencher a H. Fychan am yr eitem. 
 
PENDERFYNODD y Cabinet: 

1. Nodi'r cynnydd sydd wedi'i wneud yn y trafodaethau ag Ymddiriedolaeth 
Ddiwylliannol Awen i gytuno ar delerau'r brydles a'r gofynion o ran 
cefnogaeth ariannol angenrheidiol i sicrhau dyfodol cynaliadwy i 
Ganolfan Gelf y Miwni;  

2. Derbyn cyflwyniad gan Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen a'i phenseiri, 
Purcell, yn nodi eu cynigion ar gyfer adnewyddu ac adfer Canolfan Gelf y 
Miwni;  

3. Y bydd y cynigion tymor hwy ar gyfer adfer Canolfan Gelf y Miwni yn 
destun ymgynghori agored ac ymgysylltu â'r gymuned leol lle bo angen; 
ac 

4. Y bydd y Cyngor yn ceisio ymgysylltu â'r gymuned leol lle bo angen 
mewn perthynas â'r cynigion tymor hwy ar gyfer adfer Canolfan Gelf y 
Miwni. 

 
 

83   Rhaglen Waith y Cabinet  
 

 

 Darparodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu raglen waith ddrafft ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2019-20 i'r 
aelodau, a oedd yn rhestru'r materion y mae angen i'r Cabinet eu hystyried.  
Nododd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth fod defnyddio'r rhaglen yn helpu i gadw'r 
broses benderfynu yn agored ac yn dryloyw o fewn y Cyngor, yn ogystal â rhoi 
rhagor o gyfleoedd o ran camau cyn craffu.  
 
Cafodd yr Aelodau eu cyfeirio at Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad  a dywedwyd wrthyn 
nhw bod y rhaglen yn ddogfen fyw fel bydd modd ychwanegu neu ddileu 
adroddiadau yn ystod y flwyddyn. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y 
byddai canlyniadau'r ymgynghoriad mewn perthynas â gofal preswyl, fel y 
cytunwyd yn gynharach gan yr Aelodau yn y cyfarfod, yn cael eu hychwanegu at 
y rhaglen waith yn y dyfodol. 
 
Croesawodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd y rhaglen. PENDERFYNWYD:  

1. Cymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Waith ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2019-20 a 
chael yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf bob 3 mis. 

 
 

 

84   Y Ddyletswydd o ran Bioamrywiaeth – Argymhellion Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet 
ar faterion yr Hinsawdd  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu argymhellion Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar faterion Hinsawdd, a oedd 
yn trafod y cynnydd o ran cyflawni Dyletswydd Bioamrywiaeth y Cyngor. 
 
Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth wybod bod Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar 
faterion yr Hinsawdd wedi cyfarfod ar 18 Tachwedd 2019, lle derbyniodd yr 
Aelodau gyflwyniad, ynghyd ag adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Iechyd 
a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a'r Gymuned, a oedd yn rhoi diweddariad i'r Aelodau 
ynglŷn â'r cynnydd wrth gyflawni Dyletswydd Bioamrywiaeth y Cyngor. Yn 

 

Tudalen 7



 

ogystal ag Aelodau a swyddogion allweddol, roedd dau gynrychiolydd allanol yn 
bresennol o sefydliadau sydd wedi ymgysylltu â'r Cyngor o'r blaen i fynd i'r afael 
â materion sy'n ymwneud â newid yn yr hinsawdd. 
 
Roedd y Grŵp Llywio yn fodlon bod y cynllun gweithredu wedi ceisio mynd i'r 
afael â'r themâu allweddol a'u monitro a phenderfynwyd argymell i'r Cabinet 
gyflwyno'r adroddiad i Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion yr Amgylchedd, Hamdden a 
Gwasanaethau Treftadaeth i’r swyddog am yr adroddiad a nododd, er bod gan y 
Cyngor ddyletswydd statudol i baratoi cynllun gweithredu ynghylch y 
Ddyletswydd Bioamrywiaeth, mae ei bwysigrwydd yn amlwg ar draws sawl rhan 
o’r Cyngor, er enghraifft maes Cynllunio.  
 
Siaradodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd am waith Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar faterion yr 
Hinsawdd a dywedodd fod disgwyl i gyfarfodydd gael eu cynnal yn fisol i gadw'r 
momentwm cadarnhaol.  
 
Siaradodd yr Arweinydd am yr angen i fynd ar drywydd cyllid mewn perthynas â 
phlannu coed a'r gwaith parhaus gyda Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru. 
 
PENDERFYNODD y Cabinet: 

1. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a drafodwyd gan Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar 
faterion yr Hinsawdd ar 18 Tachwedd 2019 (Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad) a; 

2. Nodi argymhelliad Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar faterion yr Hinsawdd, sef 
cytuno i gyflwyno'r adroddiad i Lywodraeth Cymru ynglŷn â'r camau a 
gymerwyd i hyrwyddo'r 'Ddyletswydd Bioamrywiaeth' gan Gyngor 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

 
 

85   Strategaeth Gyflogaeth  
 

 

 Darparodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Cymuned Strategaeth 
Gyflogaeth Rhondda Cynon Taf a Chynllun Gweithredu arfaethedig ar gyfer 
2019-2021 i'r Cabinet.  
 
Tynnodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth sylw'r Aelodau at Adran 6 yr adroddiad, lle 
amlinellwyd y Strategaeth Gyflogaeth a Sgiliau, y cytunwyd arni gan y Grŵp 
Cyflogaeth Strategol. Nododd yr adroddiad fod 6500 o bobl a oedd yn 
economaidd anweithgar wedi nodi eu bod eisiau swydd yn 2018/19. 
 
Esboniwyd bod cynyddu cyflogadwyedd yn hanfodol i wella ffyniant a lleihau 
anghydraddoldeb. Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth fod pobl yn llai 
tebygol o fyw mewn tlodi os ydyn nhw mewn cyflogaeth ac os oes modd iddyn 
nhw gynnal cyflogaeth a dangos cynnydd, a bod modd i ddiweithdra tymor byr 
gael effaith hir dymor sylweddol ar lesiant a sicrwydd ariannol yr unigolyn.  
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth yr Aelodau at y Cynllun Gweithredu, a 
oedd yn manylu ar y camau y bydd y Cyngor yn eu rhoi ar waith i gyfrannu at 
gyflawni'r strategaeth. 
 
Cafodd yr aelodau wybod bod y Strategaeth a'r Cynllun Gweithredu wedi cael eu 
hystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu – Cyllid a Chyflawniad ym mis Tachwedd 2019 a 
bod yr Aelodau'n cefnogi'r argymhelliad i gymeradwyo eu gweithredu.  
 

 

Tudalen 8



 

Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Cymunedau Cadarn, Llesiant a 
Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol i'r swyddog am yr adroddiad cynhwysfawr. Gwnaeth 
yr Aelod o'r Cabinet sylwadau ar werth y Strategaeth Gyflogaeth, ochr yn ochr 
â'r Strategaeth Mynd i'r Afael â Thlodi, sy'n allweddol i drigolion RhCT. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 

1. Cymeradwyo'r Strategaeth Gyflogaeth a'r Cynllun Gweithredu 2019/21. 
 
 

86   Treialu Cynllun – Gwneud y mwyaf o Fuddion Cymunedol  
 

 

 Darparodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Cymuned yr adroddiad 
i'r Cabinet, yn amlinellu'r gwaith sydd wedi'i wneud i sicrhau bod modd gwneud y 
mwyaf o Fuddion Cymunedol. 
 
Soniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth am ddarn cadarn o waith a wnaed gan un 
o Swyddogion Graddedig y Cyngor i archwilio opsiynau ar gyfer sicrhau'r 
Buddion Cymunedol mwyaf posibl sy'n deillio o gontractau caffael. Yn dilyn, y 
darn o waith, cytunwyd i dreialu'r argymhelliad arfaethedig, er mwyn profi 
parodrwydd tendrwyr i ymrwymo i wneud cyfraniad ariannol i Gronfa Buddsoddi 
mewn Gwaddol a / neu ymrwymo i fath arall o gyfraniad yn rhan o'u hymateb i 
Fuddion Cymunedol. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth yr Aelodau at Adran 5 yr adroddiad, lle 
manylwyd ar ganlyniadau cynllun peilot Buddion Cymunedol. Roedd y swyddog 
yn falch o ddweud wrth yr Aelodau, er bod y dogfennau yn ei gwneud yn glir bod 
yr ymrwymiad i gyfrannu at y cynllun Buddion Cymunedol yn wirfoddol, roedd y 
cynigwyr yn barod i gyfrannu. 
 
Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Cymunedau Cadarn, Llesiant a 
Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol i'r Swyddog Graddedig am y darn o waith 
gwerthfawr ac arloesol. Manteisiodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar y cyfle hefyd i 
ddiolch i'r contractwyr am eu cyfraniadau gwerthfawr, a fyddai'n cael eu 
defnyddio ar gyfer buddion cymunedol ehangach.  
 
PENDERFYNODD y Cabinet: 

1. Cymeradwyo cynnwys Cymalau Buddion Cymunedol ym mhob contract 
corfforaethol perthnasol. Gallai hyn fod naill ai ar ffurf gwaith 
uniongyrchol i'w gyflawni yn y gymuned a / neu gyfraniad ariannol at 
'gronfa gwaddol'; 

2. Cymeradwyo sefydlu 'Cronfa Buddsoddi mewn Gwaddol' a fydd yn 
derbyn y cyfraniadau ariannol sydd wedi'u cynhyrchu trwy Fuddion 
Cymunedol i gefnogi gweithgareddau Datblygu Cymunedol ehangach 
ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol, yn unol â blaenoriaethau corfforaethol y 
Cyngor hwn; a   

3. Ymrwymo i gyflwyno'r adnoddau sy'n angenrheidiol i barhau â'r 
datblygiadau, a chydlynu a phrif ffrydio'r dull. 

 
 

 

87   Adolygiad o Ddarpariaeth Dosbarthiadau Cynnal Dysgu i ddisgyblion ag 
Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac Ymddygiadol (SEBD) ac 
Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol sylweddol  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant gynigion  i'r 
Cabinet ar gyfer sefydlu dosbarthiadau cynnal dysgu ychwanegol yn ysgolion y 

 

Tudalen 9



 

brif ffrwd ar gyfer disgyblion ag Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac 
Ymddygiadol, a sefydlu dosbarthiadau cynnal dysgu cyfrwng Cymraeg i gefnogi 
disgyblion gydag Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol sylweddol yn Rhondda Cynon 
Taf. 
 
Cafodd yr Aelodau wybod bod Adran 315 o Ddeddf Addysg 1996 yn ei gwneud 
hi'n ofynnol i Awdurdodau Lleol gynnal adolygiadau rheolaidd o'r trefniadau sy'n 
cefnogi pobl sydd ag AAA, yn ogystal â sicrhau bod y ddarpariaeth yn ddigonol 
ac yn diwallu anghenion y gymuned.  
 
Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr wybod y bydd y cynnig yma i gael Dosbarthiadau 
Cynnal Dysgu ychwanegol yn sicrhau bod yr Awdurdod Lleol yn canolbwyntio ar 
ddarparu cyfleoedd cynhwysiant mwy effeithiol mewn ysgolion prif ffrwd ar gyfer 
disgyblion sydd ag Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac Ymddygiadol a 
disgyblion cyfrwng Cymraeg sydd ag Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol sylweddol. 
 
Diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant 
i'r Cyfarwyddwr am yr adroddiad cynhwysfawr a siaradodd am bwysigrwydd 
gwella canlyniadau a darparu cyfleoedd mwy effeithiol i bob plentyn a pherson 
ifanc, yn ogystal â chadw Agenda Trawsnewid ADY Llywodraeth Cymru mewn 
cof. 
 
(Nodwch: Nid oedd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M. Webber yn bresennol ar 
gyfer y bleidlais) 
 
PENDERFYNODD y Cabinet: 

1. Drafod yr wybodaeth oedd wedi ei chynnwys yn yr adroddiad; 
2. Nodi'r cynigion ar gyfer sefydlu tri dosbarth cynnal dysgu ar gyfer 

disgyblion ag Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac Ymddygiadol ac 
un dosbarth cynnal dysgu cyfrwng Cymraeg ar gyfer disgyblion ag 
anghenion dysgu ychwanegol sylweddol yng nghyd-destun y Cod 
Trefniadaeth Ysgolion (2018) a Rhaglen Foderneiddio Ysgolion yr 21ain 
Ganrif; a 

3. Cymeradwyo'n ffurfiol ddechrau'r broses ymgynghori o ran y cynigion 
canlynol: 

• Creu Dosbarth Cynnal Dysgu - Cyfnod Allweddol 3/4 newydd ar 
gyfer disgyblion ag Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac 
Ymddygiadol yn Ysgol Gyfun Bryncelynnog; 

• Creu Dosbarth Cynnal Dysgu - Cyfnod Allweddol 3/4 newydd ar 
gyfer disgyblion ag Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac 
Ymddygiadol yn Ysgol Gymuned Glynrhedynog; 

• Creu Dosbarth Cynnal Dysgu - Cyfnod Allweddol 3/4 newydd ar 
gyfer disgyblion ag Anawsterau Cymdeithasol, Emosiynol ac 
Ymddygiadol yn Ysgol Gyfun Aberpennar; 

• Creu Dosbarth Cynnal Dysgu - Cyfnod Allweddol 3/4 newydd ar 
gyfer disgyblion ag Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol (ALN) 
sylweddol yn Ysgol Garth Olwg. 

 
 

88   Grantiau Cyfleusterau i'r Anabl (DFG) ar gyfer Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Merthyr Tudful  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu yr adroddiad, sy'n 
gosod cynigion i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf weithredu'n Gorff 

 

Tudalen 10



 

Arweiniol o ran gweinyddu a monitro'r Grantiau Cyfleusterau i'r Anabl gorfodol ar 
ran Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful. 
Cafodd Aelodau eu cyfeirio gan y Cyfarwyddwr at adran 5 yn yr adroddiad lle 
roedd yr wybodaeth am y cynnig. Esboniwyd bod Prif Weithredwr Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful wedi ysgrifennu at Brif Weithredwr RhCT i 
archwilio a oes unrhyw fodd posibl i wneud trefniant cydweithredol i RCT 
ddarparu Grantiau Cyfleusterau i'r Anabl (DFGs) ar draws Cwm Taf. Yn dilyn 
adolygiad, roedd y Cyfarwyddwr yn teimlo na fyddai'r trefniant cydweithredol yn 
cael fawr o effaith ar RCT, gydag unrhyw incwm ffioedd posibl yn gwrthbwyso 
unrhyw gostau ychwanegol y gallai'r Cyngor eu hwynebu wrth weinyddu a 
monitro cynllun CBSMT. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr y byddai'r cynigion hefyd 
yn sicrhau bod CBSMT yn cyflawni ei ddyletswydd orfodol i ystyried Grantiau 
Cyfleusterau i'r Anabl, gan alluogi preswylwyr anabl i gael cyfle i dderbyn grant er 
mwyn gwneud addasiadau i'w cartrefi sy'n caniatáu iddynt fyw'n annibynnol. 
Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Menter, Datblygu, a Thai fod y cynnig 
yn syml a'i fod yn hapus i gefnogi'r argymhelliad. 
 
(Nodyn: Dewisodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M. Webber beidio â 
phleidleisio ar yr eitem hon gan nad oedd yn bresennol ar gyfer y drafodaeth) 
PENDERFYNWYD: 

1. Cymeradwyo'r cynigion i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
weithredu'n Gorff Arweiniol o ran gweinyddu a monitro'r Grantiau 
Cyfleusterau i'r Anabl gorfodol ar ran Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr 
Tudful fel sydd wedi'i nodi yn adran 5 yr adroddiad. 

 
89   Trafod cadarnhau'r cynnig isod yn benderfyniad  

 
 

 PENDERFYNWYD: “Bod y cyfarfod yma yn cadw aelodau o'r wasg ac aelodau 
o'r cyhoedd allan o ystafell y cyfarfod, dan Adran 100A(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth 
Leol (fel y'i diwygiwyd), yn ystod trafod yr agendwm nesaf, ar y sail y byddai'n 
debygol o olygu datgelu gwybodaeth eithriedig yn ôl diffiniad paragraff 14 o Ran 
4 o Atodlen 12A i'r Ddeddf.” 
 
 

 

90   Buddsoddiad y Cyngor yn ailddatblygiad YMCA Pontypridd  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu adroddiad sy'n 
cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig, sy'n gofyn i'r Cabinet benderfynu a ddylai'r 
Cyngor fuddsoddi a chymryd perchnogaeth o adeilad yr YMCA.  
 
Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNODD y Cabinet: 

1. Buddsoddi £383,000 i ailddatblygu YMCA Pontypridd er mwyn sicrhau £4 
miliwn o gyllid allanol, a sicrhau bod y cynllun yn cael ei gyflawni yn unol 
â'r dyluniad, y rhaglen a'r cynllun cost y cytunwyd arnynt. Gellir ariannu'r 
buddsoddiad hwn o'r cyllid blaenoriaeth buddsoddi presennol a 
ddyrannwyd eisoes ar gyfer Buddsoddi mewn Adfywio yn y rhaglen 
gyfalaf gyfredol. 

2. Awdurdodi Cyfarwyddwr Eiddo'r Cyngor i gymryd perchnogaeth o'r 
adeilad am £1, yn amodol ar broses diwydrwydd dyladwy cadarn. Byddai 
hyn wedyn yn cynnwys prydlesu'r adeilad yn ôl i'r YMCA dros gyfnod o 
99 mlynedd gydag adolygiad o'r trefniadau ymhen 25 mlynedd trwy 
Gytundeb Prydles a gefnogir gan Gytundeb Grant a Chytundeb Rheoli. 

 

 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11.55 am Cllr A Morgan (Cadeirydd.) 

 

Tudalen 11



Tudalen wag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23rd JANUARY 2020

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS – 
RECYCLING WITHIN RCT

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNCILLOR ANN CRIMMINGS, 
CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT, LEISURE

Author: Hannah Williams – Council Business Unit (01443 424062)

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide the Cabinet with the recommendations 
of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group, which considered a report on 
the recycling performance for the first 6 months of 2019/20, the new Materials 
Recovery Facility, future developments at Bryn Pica and potential legislative 
changes.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Cabinet:

2.1 Note the content of the report considered by the Climate Change Cabinet 
Steering Group on the 18th December 2019 (attached as Appendix 1) and;

2.2 Agree the recommendations of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group, 
which is to change the recycling target to 80% by 2024/25.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To acknowledge the work of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group and 
their recommendation to change the recycling target in Rhondda Cynon Taf.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 Recycling saves energy, reduces greenhouse gasses and helps tackle climate 
change. Recycling will play a pivotal role in helping the Council achieve its 
target of becoming carbon neutral by 2030. 

4.2 RCT Council incrementally year on year has improved its recycling figure and 
as of the first six months of the current financial year, RCT has achieved its 

Tudalen 13

Agendwm 4



recycling target set by Welsh Government, with the highest figures achieved by 
the Council. 

4.3 As members will be aware, the Council has statutory targets set by Welsh 
Government. This year the target is 64%, failure to meet these targets could 
result in the Council receiving a substantial fine. The fine is based on confirmed 
performance, meaning every ton missed in relation to this target, could result in 
a minimum fine of £200 per ton.

4.4 In order to achieve these targets, the Council continually seeks to develop new 
systems to meet these targets including the development of a new Materials 
Recycling Facilities, to support the circular economy whilst ensuring this 
Council is well placed to meet current and future legislative requirements.

5. THE CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP

5.1 The Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group met on the 18th December 2019, 
where they considered the report of the Group Director, Prosperity, 
Development and Frontline Services.

5.2 Outlined within the report was RCT’s positive performance during the first 6 
months of the financial year, which evidenced that the Council was in a position 
to achieve its recycling target set by Welsh Government. Members were 
pleased to note that the figures are the highest ever achieved by the Council.

5.3 The Group Director advised that the next target for the Council would be the 
2024/2025 target of 70% and recommended that it is changed to 80%, along 
with a suitable marketing campaign informing resident enforcement action will 
be taken if they do not recycle.

5.4 The Steering Group acknowledged the Council’s simple and effective method 
of recycling by using a singular clear bag, in comparison to other Local 
Authorities. 

5.5 The Group Director informed the Steering Group of the initiatives RCT had in 
place to improve recycling such as the interactive education centre in Bryn Pica, 
the Anaerobic Digestion Facility, the Mattress Recycling Facility and the 
Leachate Treatment Plant. Members were informed that the ambition was to 
develop an Eco Park on site, which would develop a recycling process for hard 
plastics whereby plastics are grinded down and washed to either sell the 
material or turn it into a product on site.

5.6 Following a lengthy discussion, the Steering Group were of the view that RCT 
Council is at the forefront of continuous improvement in the area and was 
therefore, in a positive position to change the recycling target to 80% by 
2024/25.

6.       LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

Tudalen 14



6.1 There are no Legal Implications aligned to this report.
           
7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no equality or diversity implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report.

8. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT

8.1 There are no Consultation implications aligned to this report.

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

9.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

10. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

10.1 The recycling processes and future plans align to the Corporate Plan and 
Corporate Priorities.

10.2 It is also linked with the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act, helping 
to create a resilient Wales and a Wales of cohesive communities.

11.       CONCLUSION

11.1 On the 18th December 2019, the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group met 
to discuss the report on the recycling performance for the first 6 months of 
2019/20, the new Materials Recovery Facility, future developments at Bryn 
Pica and potential legislative changes.

11.2 At the meeting, following a number of queries, Members resolved to 
recommend to Cabinet, to change the recycling target to 80% by 2024/25.

Tudalen 15



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23rd JANUARY 2020

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS – 
RECYCLING WITHIN RCT

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNCILLOR ANN CRIMMINGS, 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT, LEISURE

Tudalen 16



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP

18th DECEMBER 2019

RECYCLING WITHIN RHONDDA CYNON TAF

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT AND 
FRONTLINE SERVICES IN DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET’S CLIMATE CHANGE 
CHAMPION (COUNCILLOR RHYS LEWIS)

Author: Nigel Wheeler - (01443 827707)

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to update Members of the Climate Change 
Committee on the recycling performance for the first 6 months of 2019/20, the 
new Materials Recovery Facility, future developments at Bryn Pica and potential 
legislative changes.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Note the content of the report: 

2.2      Recommend to Cabinet to change the recycling target to 80% by 2024/25

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 This Council as do all councils in Wales has statutory targets set by Welsh 
Government. This year the target is 64%, failure to meet these targets will result 
in the Council receiving a substantial  fine. The fine is based on performance so 
every ton we miss the target by, will result in a minimum fine of £200 per ton.

3.2 In order to achieve these targets, councils have to develop working systems to 
deliver these targets through new Materials Recycling Facilities, and true circular 
economy whilst ensuring they are able to change when there are legislative 
changes.

Tudalen 17



4. UPDATE / CURRENT POSITION

4.1 RCT Council incrementally year on year has improved its recycling figure, but last 
year saw a slight drop in the performance, this was mainly due to the change in 
way we were able to measure the  wood we collected at our Community 
Recycling Centres and the tonnage in green waste collected at the kerbside due 
to the weather.

4.2 These changes affected all Councils and not only our Council, whilst other 
Councils also indicated that they had seen recycling plateau, something we had 
been concerned about for some time.

4.3 2019/2020 is a target year in regard to the legislation, and the target is that we 
must achieve a recycling figure of at least 64%, failure to do so would result in 
the Council receiving a fine. The fine is a minimum of £200 on every ton we fail to 
miss the target by, so it could be a substantial amount.

4.4 The table below shows our performance during the first 6 months of this financial 
year. These figures are subject to ratification by Waste date flow and any change 
will be minimal.

4.5
Q1 Q2 Total For

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Dry Reuse 379.35 461.61 840.96
Dry Recycling 15710.31 18,161.45 33,871.76
Composting 5,479.19 5,950.82 11,430.01
Total municipal waste 32,105.14 34,841.50 66,946.64
WMT 10(iv) - Dry reuse rate 1.18% 1.32% 1.26%
WMT 10(v) - Dry recycling rate 48.93% 52.13% 50.60%
WMT 10(vi) - Composting rate 17.07% 17.08% 17.07%
WMT 09b reuse, recycling and composting rate 67.18% 70.53% 68.92%

4.6 For the record the performance highlighted in the table, shows that we have 
achieved the target set out by Welsh Government and puts in a good position to 
be able to maintain this for the remainder of the year, thus avoiding any fines.

4.7 It should also be noted that these figures are the highest ever achieved by this 
Council.

4.8 The next target for this Council is the 2024/2025 target of 70% so if we can 
maintain this performance and improve slightly we are well on course to achieve 
this considerably earlier than we need to. It is hoped that provision of the new 
MRF at Bryn Pica will go a long way in taking us over the target and towards 
80%. Therefore I feel it would be appropriate to recommend to Cabinet to change 
the target for 2024/25 to 80% and putting together a marketing campaign 
informing resident enforcement action will be taken if they do not recycle.

Tudalen 18



4.9 The council has recently invested in a new Materials Recycling Facility at Bryn 
Pica, it is too early to say the impact this will have on our recycling percentage 
but based on the early commissioning there will be an increase in the 
percentage.

4.10 It has also been very noticeable that the purity of the material coming out of the 
MRF is extremely good and in particular the steel and aluminium is of a really 
high purity and some buyers who have been to see the material stated that it is 
the cleanest material they have ever seen.

4.11 Despite this investment, the MRF is only as good as the residents who recycle 
and if the material is contaminated there is not a lot we can do, also to achieve 
70/80% we need buy-in from all our residents, we still undertake awareness but 
this is labour intensive, we also use enforcement.

4.12 Our recycling collection method is simple, so there is no excuse not to recycle but 
still we have residents who do not recycle.

4.13 The site at Bryn Pica is home to a number of activities:-

 Material Recycling Facility (MRF)
 Anaerobic Digestion Facility (AD)
 Mattress Recycling Facility
 Leachate Treatment Plant
 Landfill
 Landfill Gas
 Education Centre

          
4.14 The challenge in waste is to provide a true circular economy whilst utilising the      

energy produced.

4.15 At Bryn Pica we have land, we have green energy produced through the AD 
Plant and from the methane produced in the landfill, it is our ambition to develop 
an Eco Park on site, utilising the energy produced and providing units where 
businesses can set up and make a product from the materials we collect, 
basically materials collected in Wales, recycled in Wales utilising green energy, a 
true circular economy

4.16 At present our business case for the Park is under consideration with WG for 
funding, whilst we have a number of businesses interested in locating to the site, 
in addition to the private companies, Amgen is looking to develop a recycling 
process for hard plastics whereby we grind down and wash the plastics and then 
either sell the material or turn it into a product on site.

4.17 The concept of the project has already won a WG award for innovation and the 
council has already invested its own monies into the project and we are 
extremely hopeful further WG funding will follow.

Tudalen 19



4.18 Added to this, there is currently a consultation exercise out from WG on Trade 
Waste Collections with a Waste Strategy Consultation due to come out early in 
the new year, both could have significant implications on what we as a council 
do, but I feel we are in a good position to change our service with whatever 
comes out of the consultation.

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no Equality or Diversity implications aligned to this report.

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1 There are no Consultation implications aligned to this report.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

7.1 There are  Financial implications in failing to achieve the statutory targets.

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 There are no Legal Implications aligned to this report. 

9. LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 
PRIORITIES/SIP

9.1 The recycling processes and future plans we adopt align itself to the Corporate 
Plan and Corporate Priorities.

9.2 This clearly is linked with the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act, 
helping to create a resilient Wales and a Wales of cohesive communities.

10. CONCLUSION

10.1 RCT Council are proud of its recycling services and prides itself being at the 
forefront of continuous improvement in this area.

10.2 This is highlighted with the Eco Park plans and the development of the new 
Material Recycling Facility currently being commissioned.

Tudalen 20



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23RD JANUARY 2020

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS – 
TAFFS WELL THERMAL SPRING – GENERATING CARBON FREE ENERGY 

FOR THE COMMUNITY OF TAFFS WELL 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNCILLOR MARK NORRIS, 
CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE ESTATES

Author: Hannah Williams – Council Business Unit (01443 424062)

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide the Cabinet with the recommendations 
of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group, which considered a report on 
the current situation with regards to the Taffs Well Spring Renewable Energy 
Project.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Cabinet:

2.1 Note the content of the report considered by the Climate Change Cabinet 
Steering Group on the 18th December 2019 (attached as Appendix 1) and;

2.2 Agree the recommendation of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group, 
which is to approve the next steps of the project.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To acknowledge the work of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group and 
their recommendation to approve the next steps of the project.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 In accordance with the content of the internal recommendation paper and the 
evaluation of the technical options it was agreed to proceed on the basis of 
providing a heat network to replace the existing heating system at two adjacent 
RCT Council buildings. For the Taffs Well Park Pavilion (which is currently used 
as a crèche facility but could have other project-related use in future) the 
intention is to replace the existing electric heating. For Fynnon Taf Primary 

Tudalen 21

Agendwm 5



School (now including the new school block that is planned) the plan is to 
replace or integrate with the existing gas fired system.

4.4 In accordance with the content of an internal recommendation paper and the 
evaluation of the financial options, the intended plan is that the project will be 
funded by RCT Council as part of its wider commitments including carbon 
reduction. The current expected core project is expected to save 37.1 tonnes 
of CO2.

4.5   There is also future potential for developing a second phase of the project by 
expanding the use of the Spring water into a small but wider District heating 
network. 

5. THE CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP

5.1 The Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group met on the 18th December 2019 
to consider the report on the current situation with regards to the Taffs Well 
Spring Renewable Energy Project.

5.2 At the meeting, the Steering Group were provided with a detailed PowerPoint 
presentation, which sought to explain the background to the project, the 
proposed way forward and the cost implications.

5.3 The Steering Group were pleased to learn that the current expected core 
project was expected to save 37.1 tonnes of CO2 and agreed to recommend to 
Cabinet the approval of the project.

6.       LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

6.1 There are no Legal Implications aligned to this report.
           
7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no equality or diversity implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report.

8. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT

8.1 There are no consultation requirements at present with regards to this 
supporting report. However, should the project proceed to the next phases of 
development, appropriate consultations will take place as part of the planning 
approval process.

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

9.1 The existing early feasibility work is funded through existing approved budgets.

9.2 There a number of cost variables that will affect the final cost but overall the 
cost is unlikely to exceed the expected range of £250k to £300k. However by 

Tudalen 22



structuring the financial elements to maximise the Renewable Heat Allowance 
payment the pay-back on investment could be reduced by several years

10. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

10.1 This report has full regard to the seven national wellbeing goals.

11.       CONCLUSION

11.1 On the 18th December 2019, the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group met 
to discuss the report on the current situation with regards to the Taffs Well 
Spring Renewable Energy Project.

11.2 At the meeting, following a number of queries, Members resolved to 
recommend to Cabinet to approve the next steps of the project.

Tudalen 23



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23RD JANUARY 2020

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS – 
RECYCLING WITHIN RCT

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNCILLOR ANN CRIMMINGS, 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT, LEISURE

Tudalen 24



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP

18TH DECEMBER 2019

TAFFS WELL THERMAL SPRING – GENERATING CARBON FREE ENERGY 
FOR THE COMMUNITY OF TAFFS WELL 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE ESTATES IN DISCUSSION WITH 
THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE SERVICES

Author(s): David Powell, Director of Corporate Estates and Steve Lock, Head 
of Energy Project Management.

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide supporting information for the 
Discussion Paper – Work Programme for the Climate Change Cabinet    
Steering Group meeting. The report outlines the current situation with regards 
to the Taffs Well Spring Renewable Energy Project. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Steering Group:

2.1 To note the contents of this report as part of the ongoing work of the  Climate 
Change Cabinet Steering Group and recommend a way forward for Cabinet.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The contents of this report provides supporting information for the Discussion 
Paper – Work Programme for the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group 
meeting presented at the first group meeting and provides an update on the 
specific area of the Taffs Well  Thermal Spring Renewable Energy Project.  

4. PROJECT BACKGROUND

4.1 The Taffs Well Thermal Spring emerges on the eastern bank of the River Taff 
in Taffs Well in the south east part of the borough of Rhondda Cynon Taf and 
is the only natural thermal spring in Wales. The current outlet for the thermal 
spring water is contained inside a brick-lined well within a Grade II Listed 
building constructed in the 1800s. The water runs constantly at 21°C and 
currently discharges through overflow pipes directly into the River Taff.  

Tudalen 25



In terms of technical potential, the Taffs Well spring does not provide a great 
thermal reservoir at the surface, only being 10oC above normal ground water 
temperatures, therefore it cannot provide direct heating and a solution using a 
water source heat pump application is the only viable option.

4.2. In recent years there have been two previous feasibility studies led by the 
Friends of Taffs Well into developing the renewable energy potential of the 
Taffs Wells Spring in various ways. Then in 2017 the Council’s Corporate 
Estates ‘Energy’ team assumed responsibility for the project and further work 
was carried out, including analysis of the technical and practical options for 
beneficially using the spring water and the viability of the different financial 
funding options.  

4.3    This work was then summarised in an internal recommendation paper covering 
the various issues and options and approval to proceed on the technical and 
financial basis outlined below was subsequently agreed in early 2019.

4.3   In accordance with the content of the internal recommendation paper and the 
evaluation of the technical options it was agreed to proceed on the basis of 
providing a heat network to replace the existing heating system at two 
adjacent RCT Council buildings. For the Taffs Well Park Pavilion (which is 
currently used as a crèche facility but could have other project-related use in 
future) the intention is to replace the existing electric heating. For Fynnon Taf 
Primary School (now including the new school block that is planned) the plan 
is to replace or integrate with the existing gas fired system.

4.4 In accordance with the content of the internal recommendation paper and the 
evaluation of the financial options the intended plan is that the project will be 
funded by RCT Council as part of its wider commitments including carbon 
reduction. The current expected core project is expected to save 37.1 tonnes 
of CO2.

4.5   There is also future potential for developing a second phase of the project by 
expanding the use of the Spring water into a small but wider District heating 
network. 

5. CURRENT PROJECT SITUATION

5.1  Following the approval to proceed to next stage of the project a formal tender 
process was carried out to appoint an external specialist consultancy to update 
certain information, and provide final feasibility, planning and procurement 
advice based on a water source heat pump system. As a result of this process 
Nuvision Energy Wales (Ltd.) of Cardiff were appointed and commenced work 
on the project  in September. The first report from Nuvision on the feasibility of 
the project has very recently been received and whilst the details are still being 
considered there are some key points;

- That there are no engineering reasons why the heat within the Taff Well 
Thermal Spring water cannot be used for a renewable energy project 
incorporating ground source heat pumps to supply both the Park Pavilion 
and Ffynnon Taf Primary School. 

Tudalen 26



- That there is more than sufficient heat within the Taffs Well Spring Water 
to meet the demands of the current project for the Park Pavilion and 
Ffynnon Taf Primary School.

6. PROJECT FORWARD PLAN AND TIMESCALES

6.1  A number of immediate next steps have been identified from the recent 
Nuvision interim report including some clarification issues with Western 
Power and Natural Resources Wales. 

6.2 Following clarification of these immediate next steps a timescale for the 
necessary Planning application will be finalised in early 2020. In conjunction 
with this timescale a final technical specification for the Procurement of the 
construction phase of the project will also be finalised prior to the formal 
Procurement process which is envisaged to take place in Spring/Summer 
2020. The necessary construction and related other works will then take place 
with an overall plan for the project to be fully completed by March 2021.

7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required with regard to this report. 

8. CONSULTATION 

8.1 There are no consultation requirements at present with regards to this 
supporting report. However, should the project proceed to the next phases of 
development, appropriate consultations will take place as part of the planning 
approval process.

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

9.1 The existing early feasibility work is funded through existing approved 
budgets.

9.2 There a number of cost variables that will affect the final cost but overall the 
cost is unlikely to exceed the expected range of £250k to £300k. However by 
structuring the financial elements to maximise the Renewable Heat Allowance 
payment the pay-back on investment could be reduced by several years.

10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 There are no legal implications aligned to this report.

11. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.

11.1 This report provides information in the area of the Taffs Well Spring 
Renewable Energy Project future actions as part of the ongoing work of the  
Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group which will take full regard to the 
seven national wellbeing goals.

Tudalen 27



12. CONCLUSION

12.1 This report provides information in the area of Taffs Well Thermal Spring 
Renewable Energy Project future actions as part of the ongoing work of the  
Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group.

Contact Officers; David Powell 01443 424144, Steve Lock 01443 281191

Tudalen 28



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23RD JANUARY 2020

NATIONAL ADOPTION SERVICE WALES ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
IN DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER, COUNCILLOR 
CHRISTINA LEYSHON

AUTHOR:   Ann Batley, Service Director Children’s Services 
Tel. No: 01443 744044  

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to share with the Cabinet the National Adoption 
Service Wales Annual Report 2018-2019 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 

2.1 Note the contents of the report.
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The report attached at Appendix 1 is the National Adoption Service for Wales 
Annual Report, that as part of Regulation 22 of the Local Authority Adoption 
Service (Wales) Regulations 2007 and Section 15(c) of the Adoption and 
Children Act 2002 (Joint Adoption Regulations)(Wales) Directions 2015, is 
required to be brought before Cabinet.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The National Adoption Service for Wales (NAS) was launched in November 2014 
bringing all local authorities in Wales together into a unique collaboration for the 
delivery of adoption services.  The legal basis underpinning the service is the 
Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) which gave Welsh Ministers the 
power to direct how local authorities in Wales deliver their adoption functions.  
This was enforced through a set of regulations, The Adoption and Children Act 
2002 (Joint Adoption Arrangements) (Wales) Directions 2015 [generally referred 

Tudalen 29

Agendwm 6



to as the ‘Directions Powers’], which require local authorities to collaborate on a 
set foot print to create Regional Adoption Collaborative. 

4.2 The National Service establishes governance arrangements that provide national 
direction and co-ordination. Its broad aim is to improve and make consistent the 
arrangements for timely placements of children, training and assessment of 
adopters, adoption support and collaborative working.

4.3 The attached Annual Plan sets out the work undertaken by the National Adoption 
Service Wales in 2018-2019

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 This is an information report and, therefore, no Equality and Diversity screening 
is required.

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1  Consultation was undertaken by the National Adoption Service Wales in the 
preparation of the Annual Plan with children, young people, families, a variety of 
partner agencies and staff from the Regional Services.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

7.1 There are no adverse financial implications associated with this report. 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 The Social Services and Wellbeing Act (2014) required very significant changes 
to the way social services are planned, designed, commissioned and delivered. 
The primary duties of this Act that impact on the future commissioning 
arrangements for children looked after include:

 promoting the upbringing of children within their family whenever it is safe to 
do so;

 consideration of the most appropriate placement where it has not been 
possible to place a looked after child either with a parent or connected 
person which will include: foster care; adoption; residential provision; 
alternative arrangements (for example, supporting young people aged 16 or 
over to live independently in rented accommodation or in supported 
lodgings).

9. LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN/OTHER CORPORATE 
PRIORITIES/WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

9.1 The provision of effective responses to the needs of children and young people is 
a key priority for the Council and is supported by the contents of this Annual Plan.

Tudalen 30



10. CONCLUSION

10.1 Overall there was a slight increase in the number of children placed for adoption. 

10.2 The recruitment of adoptive parents remained at a similar level to last year. 
Therefore, recruiting sufficient adopters in Wales continues to be an ongoing 
challenge.

10.3 The Welsh Government investment package of £2.3 million for 2019/2020 will 
support the identified priorities to be taken forward and implemented which 
should result in improved performance. 

Other Information:-
Relevant Scrutiny Committee:  Children and Young People 

Tudalen 31



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23RD JANUARY 2020

NATIONAL ADOPTION SERVICE WALES ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
IN DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER, COUNCILLOR 
CHRISTINA LEYSHON

Background Papers

None 

Officer to contact:  Ann Batley, Service Director Children Services. 
Tel. No: 01443 744044  

Tudalen 32



1

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

Tudalen 33



Tudalen 34



3

FOREWORD

Actively listening to adopters and children has influenced how the National Adoption Service 

has evolved and developed to deliver change and good services. There is evidence that the 

benefits of improvement are being felt by many adopters and their children although we 

acknowledge there is more to do. 

Continued improvement remains a priority for the service delivered through the Central Team, 

Regional Local Government Adoption Services and Voluntary Sector Agencies. This collaborative 

approach has brought a shared vision, priorities, strategies and delivery of services that is 

making a positive difference.

We are very pleased to take this opportunity to thank adopters, staff in all agencies within  

the National Adoption Service Collaborative for their hard work and dedication.

We are also delighted that the Welsh Government has made available a £2.3m investment 

package from 2019/20 which will enable us to move forward on agreed improvement priorities 

for the immediate future.

Much progress has been made since the Service’s inception, but the needs of children in Wales 

continue to demand a faster and smarter response to the scale and complexity of the challenge. 

NAS is ambitious for the role we can play in responding to that challenge.

Since being established in 2014 The National Adoption Service has focused on 

clear priorities to deliver an improved adoption service in Wales. This Annual 

Report (2018/19) reflects on achievements whilst identifying future priorities 

to deliver ongoing improvement of the service to children and adopters.

Phil Hodgson 

Independent Chair of the Advisory Group

Suzanne Griffiths 

Director

Cllr Geraint Hopkins 

Chair of Governance Board

Tudalen 35



4

The National Adoption Service for Wales is a collaboration for the provision of adoption services across Wales. 

Since November 2014, it has brought together all local authority adoption services into five regional collaboratives, with co-ordination and 

leadership provided by a small central team and Director. Voluntary adoption agencies operating in Wales are key partners in the collaborative,  

as are other agencies such as health and education. 

North Wales Adoption Service

3rd Floor, Lambpit Street,  

Wrexham, LL11 1AR

01978 295311

adoption@wrexham.gov.uk

www.northwalesadoption.gov.uk

National Adoption Service – Central Team

c/o City of Cardiff Council,  

Room 409 County Hall, Atlantic Wharf,  

Cardiff, CF10 4UW 

029 2087 3927

contact@adoptcymru.com

www.adoptcymru.com

Mid & West Wales Adoption

Building 1, St David’s Park, Johnstown, 

Carmarthenshire, SA31 3HB 

01267 246970

adoptionenquires@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

www.adoptionmwwales.org.uk

Neuadd Brycheiniog, Cambrian Way,  

Brecon, Powys, LD3 7HR

01597 827666

adoptionenquiries@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

www.adoptionmwwales.org.uk

Western Bay Adoption Service

Port Talbot Civic Centre,  

Port Talbot CF131PJ 

0300 365 2222 

enquires@westernbayadoption.org

www.westernbayadoption.org

Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption

Level 7, Ty Pennant, Catherine Street, 

Pontypridd, CF37 2TB 

0800 0234 064

adoption@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk

www.adopt4vvc.org

South East Wales Adoption Service

North Wing, 2nd Floor Block B,  

Mamhilad House, Mamhilad Parke Estate, 

Pontypool, Torfaen, NP40HZ

01495 355766

adoption@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk

www.blaenau-gwent.gov.uk/3122.asp

INTRODUCTION

NORTH WALES

Isle of Anglesey, Gwynedd, Conwy, 

Denbighshire, Flintshire, Wrexham

CENTRAL TEAM

SOUTH EAST WALES

Monmouthshire, Blaenau Gwent,  

Torfaen, Caerphilly, Newport

WESTERN BAY

Swansea, Neath Port Talbot,  

Bridgend

MID & WEST WALES

Ceredigion, Powys, Carmarthenshire, 

Pembrokeshire

VALE, VALLEYS & CARDIFF

Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf,  

Cardiff, Vale of Glamorgan

Tudalen 36



5

ALL WALES VOLUNTARY 

ADOPTION AGENCIES SERVICES

AFA Cymru

c/o Children in Wales,  

25 Windsor Place, Cardiff CF10 3BZ  

029 2076 1155

W2 Morfa Clwyd Business Centre,  

84 Marsh Road, Rhyl LL18 2AF

Info-afa@stdavidscs.org

www.afacymru.org

Adoption UK

Penhaved Studios, Penhaved Street, 

Grangetown, Cardiff, CF117LU

029 2023 0319

www.adoptionuk.org

Barnardo’s Cymru

Trident Court, East Moors Road,  

Cardiff, CF245TD

0800 0546 788 

cymruadoptionandfosteringservice@

barnardos.org.uk 

www.barnardos.org.uk/adoption

St David’s Children Society

28 Park Place, Cardiff, CF10 3BA

029 2066 7007

info@stdavidscs.org

www.adoptionwales.org

Tudalen 37



6

It was established in 2014 in response to a National Assembly Enquiry through a subsequent 

Ministerial Advisory Group. Its role is to work in a unique collaborative way, improving and 

coordinating the delivery of adoption services across Wales and in particular:

•	 Raising the profile of adoption;

•	 Improving timescales for children and adopters;

•	 Improving adoption support including changing the ‘postcode lottery’ for services; and 

•	 Providing leadership to promote more consistent services and standards. 

The role adoption plays in society continues to change; legislation continues to change to 

reflect this. What has not changed is that children who cannot remain with their birth family 

need permanent substitute families, to belong, to be nurtured and be loved. Adoption services 

provide these children with families as well as services and support to adoptive parents, birth 

parents and others affected by adoption. 

This year marks the fifth year of the National Adoption Service and the thirtieth anniversary  

of the UK’s ratification of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC). 

The National Adoption Service seeks to secure positive changes for children where adoption is  

in their best interests so that they might realise their rights under the convention. 

The National Adoption Service (NAS) has been working for five years  

to support better outcomes for children for whom adoption is the best plan. 

FIVE YEARS ON

Celebrating our 
achievements 
and embracing  
the challenges

Tudalen 38



7

SOME OF OUR ACHIEVEMENTS FROM  

THE LAST FIVE YEARS

•	 Successfully raised the profile of adoption with the public, funders 

and policy makers. 

•	 Accessed additional funding; a £90k development grant from 

the Welsh Government each year, £125k targeted investment 

in 2017/18 and a £2.3m investment for adoption support to 

commence in 2019/20. 

•	 Improved performance in the key areas of approving adopters and 

placing children more quickly, alongside embedding a performance 

culture supported through regular evaluation and reporting.

•	 Increased the availability of life journey materials through a new 

best practice approach.

•	 Developed how we listen to adopters and their children and 

ensured their messages and input make a difference to the service.

•	 Created five regional adoption collaboratives as the focus for local 

government adoption expertise and access point for services.

•	 Developed and maintained a strong partnership with the Welsh 

Voluntary Adoption Agencies. This added value, different expertise, 

additional services and more choice, resulting in exciting new 

services such as Adopting Together Service, TESSA and a new 

Children and Young People’s service.

•	 Commissioned and developed the all Wales website, which now 

provides a comprehensive source of information for parents and 

agencies.

•	 Brought the Wales Adoption Register into the service, giving greater 

breadth and depth of choice for prospective parents and children.

•	 Produced strategic plans, which not only outline what 

improvements are needed but help influence and improve 

legislation and policy, as well as achieve investment in times of 

constraint. 

THE CHALLENGES WE ARE NOW  

ADDRESSING ARE:

•	 Maintaining performance improvements and making them  

more consistent within services and across Wales. 

•	 Improving service agility and access to resources to respond  

to emerging issues and changing service demands.

•	 Using our data and information to better effect.

•	 Making a complex governance and operational structure for 

collaboration, work effectively within local government and  

with partners.

THESE SUCCESSES AND CHALLENGES INFORM  

OUR CURRENT VISION WHICH IS TO:

>	 Increase the number and range of adoptive homes available so  

that all children with an adoption plan are placed in a timely way.

>	 Ensure prospective and approved adopters receive good quality, 

timely assessment and support.

>	 Implement the National Adoption Service Framework for Adoption 

Support to provide improved access to advice, information and 

services for those that need and want support.

>	 Achieve overall improvements in the performance of adoption 

services across Wales.

>	 Create a modern, responsive and forward-thinking adoption  

service for Wales.

Alongside these undoubted strides forward and improvements to services new challenges have become evident; 

not least of all in ensuring that there are sufficient adopters available to meet the number and needs of children 

for whom we are family finding.

Tudalen 39



8

During the business year:

•	 more than 310 children were placed in their new adoptive 

home;

•	 approximately 280 children had their adoption orders 

granted1;

•	 a further 338 children, with the legal authority to be 

placed, were waiting to be matched or placed with their 

new family at the end of the year;

•	 212 new adoptive families were approved.

The service worked with circa 14% of the children who were 

looked after in Wales last year. 

Welsh Government data indicates that for 2017/18 (latest 

available) 18% of all the children who ceased to be Looked 

After were adopted.

The adoption agencies that make up the National Adoption 

Service for Wales provide a range of services to support these 

children and their families, as well as for others affected by 

adoption.

In addition to working with the children above, 

adoption services across Wales also:

•	 provided adoption support to more than 100 of the 

children placed in the year

•	 facilitated more than 3,281 active letterbox contact 

arrangements

•	 provided a service to 268 birth parents

•	 received 38 requests for support from birth siblings’ other 

relatives

•	 received 226 requests for access to birth records and 

•	 received 124 requests for intermediary/tracing support.

THE SERVICE IN 2018/19

1 Awaiting confirmation in Welsh Government data in October 2019

Tudalen 40



9

OUR 2018/19 PRIORITIES

PRIORITY 1

Placing 
children 
effectively 
•	 Keeping recruitment focused 

on the needs of children likely 

to be adopted

•	 Implementing the new Wales 

Adoption Register and adopter 

database 

WHY WAS THIS IMPORTANT? 

•	 We wanted to increase the range of adoptive homes available to meet the needs of all 

children with an adoptive plan. 

•	 Research tells us outcomes in adoption are affected by the length of time children spend in 

care and their age at the time of placement. Being able to make a timely match for a child 

depends on having a sufficiency of adopters who are prepared to care for children who have 

varied and sometimes complex needs.

•	 Making the best possible match between children and adopters increases the likelihood of  

a successful outcome and improves timeliness.

•	 We aim to use the best information about service performance, research and best practice  

to develop more effective processes, and timeframes to underpin best practice.

HOW DID WE DO?

At 311, slightly more children were placed with their new families this year and approximately 

280 children were already in placement and had their Adoption Orders granted.

However, recruiting sufficient adopters in Wales has become an ongoing challenge. 

At the time of NAS’s creation, we faced a different range of challenges, namely reducing waiting 

time to approve adopters and ensuring we were recruiting adopters who could be matched with 

children who had complex needs and were waiting longer. 

Our strategies are now informed by our data, giving us a much better understanding of the 

need for placements, which is greater than the number of adopters we are approving. However, 

having an impact on recruitment takes time; recruitment in 2018/19 remained at a similar level 

to last year. Adopter recruitment in Wales has been falling and is now back to pre NAS levels;  

it is difficult to identify precisely why adopter approvals have fallen – this trend is, however,  

also evident in England and Scotland.

Adopters Approved

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

197 245 236 294 266 236 212 212

300

100

200

0

350

150

250

50

Tudalen 41



10

ADOPTER ENQUIRIES AND ASSESSMENTS 

There has been an overall increase in enquiries from prospective 

adopters since NAS was formed. 

However, the picture beneath this is more complex. At a regional 

level there is an overall upward trend in two of the bigger regions and 

maintenance in another, while the two voluntary adoption agencies 

have higher levels of enquiries.

In both the regional and voluntary adoption agencies, conversion of 

enquiries into assessments varies, with the regional services tending  

to see more applications resulting from enquiries received.

We can build on the early indications of success, in increasing the 

number of potential adopters coming forward at enquiry stage. 

Adopters have reported that:

•	 there is good information available through the national website 

and directly from the regional services;

•	 response times to enquiries are timely and many first contacts  

are considered helpful and supportive. 

In order to understand this better, NAS commissioned customer 

feedback research to consider the reasons behind so many enquirers 

not proceeding beyond this stage. The overall findings are informing 

our work. Whilst identifying that the majority of enquirers cited 

personal reasons for not proceeding, key recommendations from  

the report also include:

•	 A need for a more consistent message across agencies

•	 More flexibility around timeframes, where potential adopters  

want to delay their applications

•	 A more welcoming approach and clearer follow up processes  

for those who do want to defer applications. 

This work has led to a number of changes which will be implemented 

in 2019/20: 

•	 We are producing a good practice guide to support staff in dealing 

with enquiries and the early stage of the assessment process. This 

will move away from agencies trying to ‘test‘ people at the very 

start of their enquiry and respond to adoption managers views 

that the messages that are given regarding issues such as smoking, 

income and medical criteria are up to date, accurate and consistent.

•	 We have commissioned Cowshed PR to support NAS at both 

national and regional levels. This will lead to better integrated 

marketing and recruitment activity. 

•	 We are providing more focused efforts to increase enquiries 

and approvals within a revised NAS Recruitment Strategy. Using 

recognised marketing techniques, we aim to keep people engaged 

and ensure barriers families face, to progress their interest into 

further action, are removed. 

•	 To meet planned changes to regulations, we are implementing a 

two-stage process for the assessment and approval of prospective 

adopters whilst reducing the timescales for making use of the 

Adoption Register for Wales. NAS has been working since 2015  

to influence a change in the Adoption Agency (Wales) Regulations 

2003 to simplify and streamline the recruitment and assessment  

of prospective adopters. This has borne fruit with revised 

regulations due to be implemented in 2019/20. 

The above will enable us to further improve the timeframes for 

adopter approvals. The average timeframe from enquiry to approval 

improved to just 9.1 months this year, with administrative delays 

around essential checks behind many that took longer. The time 

between the formal application by adopters and their approval is good, 

an average of 6.2 months, which is within the government guideline. 

56% of applicants were approved with the 6-month benchmark.

The story behind the data

90

50

70

30

20

100

60

80

40

10

MW NW SE VVC WB B StD Total

50% 18% 36% 28% 58% 4% 9% 21%

Q4 2018-19, based on average of 3 months from Initial Enquiry to Assessment 
Starting

Percentage conversion from initial enquiry to assessment starting

0

2017-18 2018-19

Months 6.2 6.1

Benchmark: 6 months or less

Average timeframe (months) from formal application to adopters 

approval

5

6

1

3

7

2

4

0

Tudalen 42



11

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Months 8.4 7.9 9.9

Benchmark: 6 months or less

Average timeframe (months) between placement order and placed 

for adoption

10

2

6

12

4

8

0

400

200

300

100

MWW NW SE VVC WB Total

  2015/16 9 34 41 62 60 206

  2016/17 22 39 47 95 80 283

  2017/18 34 46 76 117 77 350

  2018/19 27 48 70 101 92 338

Measure 7: Number of children with ‘should be placed decision’ and 

placement order who have not yet been placed

0

DEMAND FOR PLACEMENTS

The numbers of placement orders being granted by Welsh courts is 

now showing year on year fluctuations after a peak of 467 in 2012/13; 

regions report that circa 340 placement orders were made in 2018/19. 

This is alongside a further increase in the number of children being 

identified by local authorities as, likely to be in need of an adoptive 

placement, which indicates that similar, or more placement orders  

are likely as we go through the coming year. 

We are using these trends to project forward so that regions and 

agencies have a clear understanding of likely demand, allowing 

them to plan activity in advance in order to meet more ambitious 

recruitment goals. 

IMPACT ON PLACEMENT ACTIVITY

The number of children waiting for a placement reduced slightly  

at the end of this year.

NAS had previously been successful in reducing average timeframes 

for children being placed, but this has changed this year. 

Although almost half of the children were placed within the 

benchmark of 6 months or less, during 2018/19, the projected  

annual average time has increased in 2018/19 to 9.9 months.

There are a number of factors that have impacted on this indicator:

•	 Some adoptive homes have been more challenging to find due  

to a small number of children with very complex needs; 

•	 Late decisions or delayed applications where it is agreed that  

foster carers can adopt the children they are caring for;

•	 Prolonged court proceedings including appeals by birth parents.

The more positive aspect of this is that regions have been increasingly 

successful in placing children with more complex needs, however as 

identified this leads to placement preparations taking longer. 

Tudalen 43



12

What else is helping us recruit adopters  
and place children?

 

ADOPTING TOGETHER SERVICE 

The voluntary adoption agencies in Wales play a key role in delivering 

adoption services across the country, and recent innovative projects 

like the ‘Adopting Together Service’ demonstrates their commitment 

and capacity to work creatively and support the sector as a whole.

Adopting Together Service was launched this year in 2018/19 – a 

collaborative project between St David’s and Barnardo’s with Adoption 

UK in Wales and supported by the statutory sector through the 

National Adoption Service. It emerged, following a request from 

statutory services, for a creative response to a shared desire and need, 

to secure permanence for children who wait longest for a family.

Contracts have now been agreed in four out of the five regional 

services.

Although the number of children placed is unlikely to be high, it is 

of utmost importance that children with additional needs have the 

opportunity to experience living in stable and loving homes. Twelve 

children have been placed to date in the first year of operation, with  

a target of placing 25 children in 2019/20. 

The scheme provides a new best practice for placing children and 

providing early support and is being evaluated by Cardiff University 

School of Psychology. An indication of its innovation and value is that 

it received The Institute of Collaboration ICW Innovation Award and a 

Highly Commended 1 Award in the GO Wales Social and Community 

benefit category.

WALES ADOPTION REGISTER /  

ADOPTION REGISTER FOR WALES

We have worked hard in the past year to ensure that the new bilingual 

Wales Adopter Register, now called the Adoption Register for Wales 

(ARW) is ready to be launched. In order to do this the Central Team 

has:

•	 Commissioned a new partner, ‘Link Maker‘, to provide a modern 

bi-lingual and on-line linking service;

•	 Linked with adoption services and agencies to support 

implementation of the new Adoption Register for Wales, raising 

awareness for staff use and ensuring transfer of information about 

children and adopters;

•	 Supported the development of a set of national guidelines, which 

outline expectations for use of the Register;

•	 Briefed partners, and stakeholders including Heads of Children’s 

Services and Family Justice Network for Wales through the 

publication of regular bulletins.

The new Adoption Register for Wales came into operation in March 

2019 and was formally launched in June 2019. The aim of the ARW 

is to improve how we match children to prospective adopters. It will 

be more user friendly and efficient and provides managed access for 

approved adopters. It will also allow the development of a ‘keeping in 

touch’ system for adopters as part of the improved adoption support 

arrangements. 

Significantly, all children and adopters will be listed on the Register 

more quickly. It will facilitate matching, managed at a regional, Welsh 

and UK level when needed. 

During its last year of operation the previous Wales Adoption Register:

•	 Matched 36 children through the register data base, Adoption 

Exchange Days and an Adoption Activity Day;

•	 Saw an increase in child referrals to the register during the year 

although the end of year figure as of March 2019 was 293, 57 less 

than the previous year;

•	 Saw changes in the profile of children waiting; over 60% being 

below the age of 3, fewer sibling groups and the percentage of 

those with additional or complex needs continued to rise;

•	 Saw the number of adopters referred to the register continuing to 

drop, with just 32 active for family finding at the end of the year. 

This reflects proactive family finding with many adopters being 

pre-linked by the time they are approved.

Tudalen 44



13

PRIORITY 2

Continuing 
to improve 
adoption 
support by 
implementing 
the NAS 
Adoption 
Support 
Framework
•	 Agreeing the next priorities 

and identifying funding

•	 Continuing things that are 

already helping e.g. improving 

Life Journey Work, improving 

‘adoption awareness’ in 

schools and health services, 

changing the law for adoption 

support, improving training 

and development for adopters, 

consistent approaches across 

Wales. 

WHY? 

The Wales Adoption Cohort Study by Cardiff University shows that 47% of children who are 

placed for adoption had experienced at least 4 Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) before 

they were placed. This puts them in the highest risk group for later life difficulties, in line with 

just 14% of the general population. It is therefore critical that good support is available from  

the start as well as being accessible throughout childhood.

Adopted children have additional needs that emerge at different points in their lives and can 

continue into adulthood. These can include; understanding their identity as an adopted child, 

why they were adopted, managing contact and feelings of loss or grief. Many of these are issues 

are unique to adoptive families and require adoption informed support. Children, young people 

and adopters consistently report high levels of dissatisfaction with the process of getting help 

and sometimes with the quality of the help itself. 

Research also tells us that adoption and the long-term legacy for children who have suffered 

significant harm are generally poorly understood. There is a particular need to improve 

awareness in schools, where adopted children are being excluded at a younger age and in 

greater numbers than their peers. Children who have been in care often have additional  

learning needs and a more complex mixture of difficulties.

It is a NAS priority to deliver high quality adoption services in Wales.

ADOPTION SUPPORT CARRIED OUT IN 2018/19

•	 More than 3,281 active letterbox contact arrangements were in place (a reduction from 

2017/18)

•	 819 birth parents were referred to adoption services in 2018/19 (a reduction from 2017/18) 

of these 98% were offered a service

•	 A service was provided to 2682 birth parents

•	 38 requests for support were received from birth sibling and other relatives (a reduction 

from 2017/18)

•	 226 requests for access to birth records were received, an increase on the 205 for 2017/18 

•	 124 requests for intermediary / tracing support were received, a reduction on the 156 for 

2017/18.

There was a slight reduction in the number of children who had an ongoing service established 

at point of placement, down from 112 (36%) in 2017/18 to 107 (34%). This masks significant 

regional variations as well as year on year changes within regions, linked to the fact that support 

packages are individualised. 

2 �A number of regions were unable to provide data as required from their LA’s. An additional 

region was unable to provide data due to the contractor going into administration.

Tudalen 45



14

There were fewer new requests for post adoption support received, with decreases in 2 regions. 

There were 160 assessments for post adoption support completed, similar to previous figures. 

The majority of these completed assessments resulted in practical or therapeutic support being 

provided to families.

LIFE JOURNEY WORK 

We have continued to implement and develop the new NAS Framework for ‘Life Journey’ work. 

All children who cannot be cared for by their birth families, need to have an understanding of 

their family history and their unique journey. Life Journey Work is designed to help a child make 

sense of their past and understand their current situation in order to help them move into the 

future. Life journey work should support a child’s identity, promote self-esteem, and help give 

the child a sense of belonging, wellbeing and support good mental health. The NAS website 

hosts guidance and existing tool kits around life journey work and we are currently working on 

making toolkits for children and young people, foster carers and birth parents available. 

In November 2018 NAS was invited to present the ‘Framework’ developments within Wales to 

the Adoption UK national conference. 

In January 2019 a conference was held in Wales to formally launch the Framework. Opened 

by the new Deputy Minister for health and Social Services, Julie Morgan, this highly successful 

event was oversubscribed with more than 110 delegates from across Wales attending, taking 

back the learning into their agencies. 

Due to varying performance levels across Wales (from 83% to 46%) overall improvement has 

marginally declined. This will continue to be a priority area for NAS with all regions committing 

to making further improvements. 

Percentage of children placed for adoption whose plan for adoption support involved 

ongoing service provision at the point of placement

70

80

90

30

50

10

100

40

60

20

MWW NW SE VVC WB Total

  2016-17 58% 18% 33% 25% 14% 26%

  2017-18 29% 29% 79% 21% 22% 36%

  2018-19 43% 13% 89% 20% 7% 34%

0

Stage 5

Placement and ongoing 

(Post Adoption Order)

1. Support should be available for the 

prospective Adopters and the Child.  

This may include:

	 •	 Informal	discu
ssions

	 •	 	Building	the	L
ife	Journey	narra

tive	 

of the adoptive family

	 •	 	Further	inform
ation	gathering	

from	

Birth	family	

	 •	 Training

	 •	 Direct	work	

	 •	 Therapeutic	L
JW

2.	 Support	in	f
acilitating	conta

ct	with	 

the	Birth	family	
should	be	offere

d.	

3.	 Contact	agr
eements	should

	reflect	the	

terminology	use
d	in	the	LJW,	suc

h	as	

when	referring	t
o	Birth	family	m

embers.	

4.	 The	Indepen
dent	Reviewing	

Officer	

(IRO)	will	contin
ue	to	be	respons

ible	

for	monitoring	t
he	LJW	for	the	C

hild	

at	reviews	until	
the	Adoption	Or

der	is	

granted.	

5.	 Where	infor
mation	about	a	

change	

or	development	
in	the	Birth	fam

ily’s	

circumstances	is
	known	to	the	Lo

cal	

Authority,	sectio
n	5.5	of	the	Goo

d	

Practice	Guide	s
hould	be	referre

d	to	 

in	its	entirety,	in
	order	to	determ

ine	

whether	it	is	app
ropriate	to	share

	this	

with	the	Child’s	
Adopter/s.	

6. Life Journey Work does not end. 

This	is	to	be	use
d	in	conjunction

	with	the	NAS Life Journey Work Good Practice GuideLife Journey Work Framework

05

Stage 4

Transition 

1. There should be a clear plan for transition 

for the Child. 

2.	 The	Child’s	
Social	Worker	an

d	Foster	 

Carer,	and	other
	professionals	as

	

appropriate,	sho
uld	agree	upon	t

he	

narrative to sensitively share information 

about	the	new	f
amily	with	the	C

hild.	

3.	 Once	the	Ag
ency	Decision	M

aker	has	

approved	the	ma
tch,	the	Child	Ca

re	Social	

Worker	and	Fost
er	Carer	will	sen

sitively	

tell the Child and share the materials 

provided by the prospective Adopters. 

4.	 The	Child’s	
emotional	needs

	should	be	

central	to	the	pl
anning.

5.	 One	profess
ional	should	be	i

dentified	

to	take	the	lead	
in	coordinating	t

he	

introductions process.

6.	 The	Child’s	
Foster	Carers	an

d	prospective	

Adopters	should
	be	well	support

ed	by	

their	respective	
supporting	Socia

l	Workers.	

7.	 Where	appr
opriate,	the	opp

ortunity	

should be made available for the birth 

parents	(and	oth
er	significant	Bir

th	

family	members
)	to	meet	the	pr

ospective	

Adopters.	Where
	it	is	inappropria

te	to	

facilitate	this	me
eting,	the	reason

s	for	 

this should be recorded. 

04

Stage 3

Linking and matching 

1.	 Prospective	
Adopter/s	will	h

ave	been	prepar
ed	and	

had	training	on	
the	importance	

of	LJW.

2.	 Collaboratio
n	between	the	p

rospective	adopt
er/s	

and	the	key	pers
on	involved	in	th

e	production	of	

Life	Journey	mat
erials	should	occ

ur	before	match
ing	

Panel. 

3.	 Life	Journey
	materials	shoul

d	be	quality	assu
red	in	

readiness	for	Ma
tching	Panel.	The

y	should	provide
	a	

coherent narrative for the Child and include a draft 

Later	Life	Letter.

4.	 A	plan	for	LJ
W	post	placeme

nt	should	be	pre
pared.	

This	will	form	pa
rt	of	the	Adoptio

n	Support	Plan.

5.	 Consideratio
n	should	be	give

n	to	holding	a	Li
fe	

Appreciation	Da
y	for	the	Child.

6.	 The	timing	o
f	final	contact	b

etween	Birth	fam
ily	and	

the	Child	should
	be	thoughtfully

	planned	to	ensu
re	

it	meets	the	nee
ds	of	the	Child.	P

hotographs	and	

details of the contact should be carefully recorded 

for the Child.

7. The prospective Adopters should prepare 

introductory	ma
terials	for	the	Ch

ild,	such	as	a	pho
to	

book	with	pictur
es	of	themselves

	and	their	home
.

8.	 The	Adoptio
n	Panel	should	c

heck	that	Life	Jo
urney	

materials	have	b
een	quality	assu

red	and	have	be
en	

shared	with	the	
prospective	Ado

pters.

9.	 The	Agency	
Decision	Maker	

should	check	tha
t	the	

Adoption	Panel	h
as	discussed	the

	Life	Journey	

materials. 

03

Stage 2

Placement Order 

granted

1.	 The	Child’s	
Social	Worker	an

d	Foster	 

Carer,	and	other
	professionals	as

	

appropriate,	sho
uld	agree	upon	t

he	

narrative to sensitively explain the plan 

for adoption to the Child.

2.	 The	plan	for
	LJW	for	the	Chi

ld	should	

be	regularly	revi
ewed	to	ensure	

that	it	

sensitively	meet
s	the	Child’s	cur

rent	

needs.  

3.	 The	LJW	pla
nning	checklist	s

hould	be	

used.

4.	 Written	con
sents	should	be	

obtained	 

from	Birth	famil
y,	Foster	Carers	a

nd	any	

other	third	parti
es	as	appropriate

,	to	

include	photogra
phs,	or	any	infor

mation	

that does not pertain to directly to the 

Child. 

5.	 The	Indepen
dent	Reviewing	

Officer	 

(IRO)	will	contin
ue	to	be	respons

ible	 

for	monitoring	t
he	LJW	for	the	C

hild.	

02

Stage 1

Child becomes  

Looked After

1.	 LJW	should	
begin	as	soon	as

	a	Child	

becomes	Looked
	After.	This	will	in

clude:	

Information,	pho
tograph	and	me

mento	

gathering.	

2.	 Everyone	w
ith	a	role	in	the	

Child’s	life	 

has a responsibility for this. 

3.	 The	LJW	pla
nning	checklist	s

hould	be	

used.	The	Child’s
	Social	Worker	h

as	a	key	

role	in	LJW	with
	and	for	the	Chil

d.

4.	 The	Child’s	
Foster	Carer	is	a

n	appropriate	

partner	in	LJW	w
ork	with	the	Chi

ld.	

5.	 All	LJW	shou
ld	be	carefully	re

corded	and	

securely stored.

6.	 The	Indepen
dent	Reviewing	

Officer	(IRO)	

will	be	responsib
le	for	monitoring

	the	LJW	

for the Child. 

7.	 Birth	family
	‘counselling’	and

	independent	

support should be offered to birth parents 

and	other	close	
Birth	family	mem

bers.	The	

Birth	family	sho
uld	be	actively	e

ncouraged	

to	contribute	LJW
	for	the	Child.

8.	 Any	gaps	in
	Birth	family	info

rmation	

should	be	comp
leted,	where	pos

sible,	 

prior	to	the	final
	hearing.	

01

10.	 Contact	agr
eements	should

	be	prepared	by	
the	

Adoption	Social	
Worker	in	consu

ltation	with	the	

Birth	family	and
	prospective	Ado

pters,	according	
to	

the Adoption Support Plan.

11.	 Future	plans
	for	contact	betw

een	the	Child	an
d	his/

her	previous	Fos
ter	Carer/s	shou

ld	be	promoted.	

Life Journey Work  
Good Practice Guide

Tudalen 46



15

Percentage of children at second adoption review  

with Life Journey materials in place

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Mid & West Wales 92% 79% 92% 83%

North Wales 44% 25% 46% 46%

South East Wales 45% 43% 60% 59%

Vale, Valleys & Cardiff 30% 61% 68% 46%

Western Bay 55% 30% 58% 57%

WALES 49% 45% 62% 56%

90

50

70

30

20

100

60

80

40

10

0

Consultation with adopters was commissioned through our ‘Adopter 

Voice’ service with Adoption UK Cymru. We wanted to identify 

whether adopters were beginning to see improvements in the life 

journey materials being provided.

There was evidence of some improved satisfaction amongst 

adopters who had adopted more recently (within the last 3 years) 

suggesting that, whilst there is still some work to be done in terms of 

delivering the Life Journey framework, improvements are being made. 

Significantly, adopters suggested that: 

•	 More training workshops are needed pre matching to prepare 

adopters.

•	 The most confident parents were the ones who had met with birth 

parents.

•	 Overall adopters preferred having accurate information and then 

making the life journey book themselves.

These comments will feed into the ongoing improvement project.

Tudalen 47



16

How did we do on our  
improvement priorities?

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT FOR ADOPTERS

We have finalised the post-approval training package for adopters. 

This now includes twelve different modules, providing advanced 

information on areas that adopters asked for, such as; ‘Attachment 

and Trauma’, ‘Parenting teenagers’, ‘Understanding and dealing with 

challenging behaviours’ and ‘Life Journey work’. 

•	 This work was led by AFA Cymru and Adoption UK Cymru. The 

modules have been tested thoroughly including within regional 

services and will be launched during 2019/20. 

We have improved our preparation training, with Adoption UK Cymru 

and AFA Cymru also leading on this working, utilising existing trainers 

to refresh and extend the preparation offer. 

•	 This will also be launched during 2019/20 and will include a guide 

for prospective adopters outlining what to expect along with an 

individualised planner. 

IMPROVING ADOPTION AWARENESS IN EDUCATION 

NAS supports and works alongside the lead organisation Adoption UK 

in this area of work, with support provided by the Education Minister, 

as well as resources from the Welsh Government’s ‘Supporting 

Vulnerable Learners’ section.

Adoption UK has continued to deliver its ‘Adoption Support Wales 

– Getting it Right for Every Child’ programme which extended its 

previous success; producing a school’s guide and a parent’s guide for 

working with adopted children

•	 Delivering a series of master classes supported by staff from the 

regional services to education professionals and adopters. This 

ensured they understood adoption, what it means for children and 

families and how they can shape and improve services to meet 

adopted children’s needs. 

•	 Delivering INSET training to 479 education staff in schools across 

Wales on the needs of adopted children

•	 Delivering education ‘master classes’ with 500 people participating 

and giving extremely positive feedback. The learning from this 

work has been made digitally available for use by school staff when 

supporting other adopted children.

NAS supported the launch of Adoption UK‘s ‘Equal Chance’ campaign, 

in Wales during June 2018. This UK wide campaign aims to ensure 

that adopted children have the same chances to education as other 

children by raising awareness of their particular needs for additional 

support.

The work was further supported when the Welsh Education Minister 

wrote to all schools encouraging them to co-operate in supporting 

adopted children within education services. 

We have focussed this year on continuing to implement the NAS Adoption Support Framework which is key to 

successful outcomes. We were delighted when the Welsh Government announced that they were making available 

a £2.3m investment package from 2019/20; this will enable us to move forward with our focus on the agreed 

improvement priorities for the immediate future. 

Tudalen 48



17

IMPROVING ADOPTION AWARENESS IN HEALTH 

SERVICES 

NAS benefits from input by the Designated Doctor for the NHS 

National Safeguarding Team and a lead Medical Advisor from North 

Wales into its Advisory Group; they work with us on health-related 

matters as does the Welsh Government CAMHS lead. 

•	 We worked with these key health advisors and industry experts 

Practice Solutions to develop a publication for health service staff; 

‘Care about Adoption – A Guide for Healthcare Professionals’. This 

will come into use during 2019/20.

The guide will enable health staff to positively contribute to the  

well-being of adopted children young people and their families. 

NEW INITIATIVE IN ADOPTION SUPPORT  

TESSA

NAS worked alongside Adoption UK, to develop the Wales 

element, of a successful UK wide bid for funding from the 

National Lottery Community fund for the TESSA service. 

TESSA – a therapeutic education support service for adoptive 

families began to be established in Wales in February 2019. It is 

the intention that NAS adds to the resources available for TESSA 

through match funding from the investment in 2019/20. The 

service sets out to deliver:

>	 A focus on early intervention and support as soon as post-

settling in concerns are raised 

>	 Professional psychological assessments for children, with 

information shared with parents and other support staff

>	 6-session therapeutic parenting support, delivered by teams 

consisting of a clinical psychologist and experienced adoptive 

parents (parent partners)

>	 Ongoing parent partner support.

Os ydych chi’n gofalu…  

Rhowch sylw i fabwysiadu

CANLLAW I BOBL BROFFESIYNOL YM MAES IECHYD A GOFAL

If you care…  
Care About Adoption
A GUIDE FOR HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONALS

 Helping adoptive families grow together
 Helpu teuluoedd sy’n mabwysiadu i dyfu gyda’i gilydd

Tudalen 49



18

CHANGING TO KEEP PACE WITH THE 21ST CENTURY 

LIVING – CONTACT

NAS is continually seeking to improve adoption services informed by 

research and the life experiences of those affected by adoption, within 

a society that is continuously changing. This means that adoption 

policy and practice needs to develop, whilst keeping children’s need for 

security and a sense of belonging firmly at its heart. Contact is one of 

the areas where this is most challenging.

In order for adopted children to be confident about their identity, 

they need information about their past. This requires us to change the 

‘clean break’ approach to adoption of letterbox contact and annual 

exchanges of letters. We want to modernise contact to maintain 

children’s rights to permanence and security, while enabling them  

to know and understand their history. 

•	 We have been working with partners to respond to a 

recommendation from the Children’s Commissioner for Wales, that 

NAS works with the Welsh Government ‘to ensure that siblings’ 

rights to contact are fully considered during adoption care planning’.

•	 NAS attended and provided an issues paper for a scoping event 

with Welsh Government and other stakeholders.

•	 In order to get a better understanding of what would work better 

in sibling contact, we commissioned Adoption UK Cymru and the 

former After Adoption, to undertake consultation with adopters and 

adopted children and young people. 

–	 From an adopters’ perspective this identified that contact 

arrangements, agreed at placement, often become unworkable 

and that there would be widespread benefit from increasing 

support to adopters and birth families. Practical areas for 

development were suggested including production of guidance, 

standardised templates and in-depth research to better 

understand what is best for children in terms of contact.

–	 From a young person’s perspective it was concluded that 

contact is positive and should be allowed and encouraged where 

possible, with young people stating that they felt the care they 

receive and connections they make, pre adoption, are an integral 

part of their early attachment and should be continued where 

they can3. 

•	 We’ve continued to work with other partners and are collaborating 

with:

–	 Voices from Care Cymru, to be part of an ‘Event’ to create 

change in how we support ongoing sibling relationships. 

–	 Swansea Law Centre, to produce an advice leaflet for adopted 

and looked after children.

WHAT ELSE HAS BEEN ACHIEVED? 

We continued to request that Welsh Government brings entitlement 

to adoption support, into line with the Social Service and Wellbeing 

(Wales) Act 2014; Welsh Government has committed to doing this 

when the opportunity arises.

We continued to engage with adopters and children and young people 

to hear and understand their experiences through Adoption Voices and 

the former Talk Adoption services. We also focused on co-producing 

development where we could. 

•	 Adopter Voice reports have been provided to all five regions and 

the third sector providers, for consideration by their management 

boards or equivalent.

•	 NAS worked with Adoption UK to develop the Wales section of 

their new Adoption Barometer which will be an annual survey 

gauging views from adopters. The first wave of this was distributed 

at the year, with an initial report expected in the Spring.

3 �The report was based on structured discussions with a very small number of 

children supplemented by informal information gathered through group sessions.

Most significantly, NAS has been involved this year in ensuring  

that a direct service for children and young people could 

continue, following the former After Adoption announcment  

that they would be withdrawing from providing services in  

Wales after March 2019. 

We successfully worked with Adoption UK Cymru to support it  

to become the provider for this service, so that it could continue 

to support the circa 100 children and young people registered.  

We look forward to continuing to work with Adoption UK Cymru 

to expand and develop this valuable service. 

Tudalen 50



19

AFA CYMRU

•	 Life Journey Work (LJW) – the annual conference was attended  

by over 100 people 

•	 The LJW pack has been expanded to include materials for birth 

parents, young people and foster carers.

•	 Taking a collaborative approach to the development of post 

approval training courses – working alongside adopters and  

social workers to develop materials

BARNARDO’S

•	 The push within Barnardo’s and NAS from an Equalities Diversity 

and Inclusion perspective has seen an increase in applications from 

people with more diverse backgrounds and cultures.

•	 Work to achieve an improvement in the timescales from Enquiry  

to Approval and ultimately placement of children

ADOPTION UK CYMRU

Many of our services are provided by volunteers who are also adoptive 

parents – between them they provided 984 hours of support to other 

adoptive parents. 

•	 Established a buddy scheme for new adopters within the Adopting 

Together scheme.

•	 Worked with AFA Cymru to develop twelve training modules for 

use by adopters’ post-adoption order, as well as new guidance 

and information for prospective adopters to be used during the 

preparation training.

•	 Delivered training to nearly 500 adoptive parents and delivered 

INSET training to 479 education staff in schools across Wales and 

responded to 1,376 contacts 25% higher than last year.

•	 As part of a UK wide project, Adoption UK Cymru were successful 

in an application to the Big Lottery Community Fund. This will 

provide therapeutic and educational input to adoptive families 

early in their adoption journey, in order to prevent difficulties 

building up over the coming years. 

Regional & Voluntary Adoption Agencies  
Priorities and Achievements 

Tudalen 51



20

MID & WEST WALES

•	 Improved preparation arrangements in order to reduce delay for 

adopter assessments.

•	 Used social media to successfully increase attendance at 

Information Events.

•	 Produced an innovative short film with birth parent and adopters, 

which highlighted positive contact arrangements.

NORTH WALES

•	 Appointment of a Contact Coordinator Officer, offering a 

consistent response and support to adopters and birth parents, 

with in-direct and direct contact.

•	 Worked with expert Richard Rose, to implement the Life Story 

Framework.

•	 Expanded the Buddy scheme for adopters.

•	 Invested in upskilling Training Officer – completed Dyadic 

developmental psychotherapy level 2 and is currently undertaking 

a diploma in therapeutic parenting. 

SOUTH EAST WALES

•	 Significant investment in workforce development including 

accessing innovative ‘Circle of Security’ training.

•	 Improved the information pack for adopters.

•	 Enhanced adopter’s preparation training with greater focus  

on Therapeutic Models of parenting 

ST DAVID’S CHILDREN SOCIETY

•	 External launch of Adopting Together Service and first placement 

made.

•	 Invested in upskilling social workers in Theraplay and DDP.

•	 Received two awards for Adopting Together – Winner of The 

Institute of Collaboration ICW Innovation Award and Highly 

Commended 1 in the GO Social and Community Benefit in 

Procurement Award.

VALE, VALLEYS & CARDIFF

•	 Appointment of a Marketing Officer offering a timely, consistent 

response to adopter enquiries and building knowledge of adopter 

demographic within the region.

•	 The development of the Life Journey Work ‘champion’ role resulting 

in positive progress in this area.

•	 Highest number of children placed for adoption since region was 

established.

WESTERN BAY 

•	 Strengthened the work of our adoption panel on matching, by 

introducing a checklist to ensure that all the relevant information 

such as life journey materials, transition plans etc. are in place.

•	 Improved co-production; adopters have been involved in a 

quarterly form for adoption support and a successful inaugural 

profiling event to help approved adopters consider a wider range  

of children needing adoptive placements.

•	 Providing additional early support, where children with additional 

needs are placed with WBAS adopters.

Tudalen 52



21

PRIORITY 3

Forward 
thinking 
•	 Thinking about the sort of 

adoption service we want for 

the future

•	 Continuing co-production and 

engagement with those who 

use adoption 	services

•	 Working to improve the legal, 

policy & evidence framework 

that affects adoption

•	 Encouraging the development 

of improved professional 

understanding and skills 

WHY? 

The National Adoption Service was created to improve services for all those affected by 

adoption in Wales. However, the needs and challenges faced by children presenting for adoption 

are changing rapidly and there is an on-going need to respond more consistently and effectively 

particularly in the areas of recruitment of adopters and ongoing support.

We also want to modernise the service to make adoption experience better for children, young 

people, and their adopters as well as others affected by adoption.

HOW DID WE DO?

We believe that adoption continues to provide good outcomes for children. The role of NAS 

is to ensure Welsh adoption services keep pace with the changing global environment of 

engagement and the way people live their lives. 

We can and will contribute to the continued discussion about the role adoption plays in 

permanency planning across the country. Alongside this we will seek to continue to improve 

services through effective planning, informed by research and evidence from people who use 

our services.

The sections above gives an outline of the many things we have done to both deliver and 

improve services. We have also continued to engage in strategic and infrastructure work; 

•	 We have considered the outcomes of the NAS Review of Arrangements which has been 

carried out for us, independently, by the Institute of Public Care. We have acted to implement 

the recommendations which will contribute to the streamline national level governance over 

the next year alongside looking at how we further improve accountability.

Tudalen 53



22

•	 Successfully secured marketing and recruitment support to increase 

adopter recruitment. 

•	 Improved the integration of NAS policy work across local 

government and third sector organisations by working jointly 

with AFA Cymru so we can better influence more consistent and 

innovative practice.

•	 Provided advice to the Welsh Government for their proposed 

changes to adoption regulations as well as in relation to relevant 

education and safeguarding matters. 

•	 Undertook work with the Adoption Leadership Board in England 

and Welsh services to ensure that Wales would stay in line with 

increases to the interagency adoption fee. These are paid when 

an adoptive placement is secured and purchased from another 

adoption agency. This led to the Welsh VAA’s agreeing a short delay 

to allow Welsh local authorities time to plan in the adjustment.

•	 Put in place alternative arrangements for the NAS Performance 

Monitoring System when the current contract runs out in June 

2019. Expert advice has been commissioned, working with Data 

Unit Wales to develop a service specification, which will deliver a 

flexible, easy to use system to improve accuracy and support. This 

will provide us with flexibility to join up with the Wales Community 

Care Information System in the future.

•	 Supported practice development

–	 Inter-country adoption training was commissioned and 

delivered 

–	 Post commencement training was commissioned and delivered 

–	 Continued to share research and good practice across the 

regional collaboratives and to use the evaluation emerging from 

initiatives such as the ‘Adopting Together’ service.

–	 Shared learning from significant cases, specifically, this year, 

the child practice review by the Regional Safeguarding Children 

Board in Wales, into the death of an adopted child. The central 

team worked with the adoption region and will be holding an all 

Wales practice seminar to share the learning.

•	 Worked to advocate and develop a business case which has 

resulted in Welsh Government investing £2.3 million ongoing 

funding to improve adoption services. 

Tudalen 54



23

This plan will build on the improvements made over the first five years of NAS; 

with the significant benefit of the availability of new investment funding. 

This is in the form of £2.3m from Welsh Government for service improvement; around £250,000 

via Adoption UK Cymru for TESSA from the Big Lottery and Communities Fund, in addition to 

grant aid of around £300,000 to the Voluntary Adoption Agencies from Welsh Government Third 

Sector grant scheme currently agreed up to 2020.

The National Adoption Service will continue to work to deliver services to high numbers of 

children, young people and families and others affected by adoption; mainly though NAS 

regional services and the Voluntary Adoption Agencies. The core business of the service will 

continue to be, recruiting adopters so that children who cannot be cared for by their own 

families can live in stable, loving homes as the best alternative.

The work of NAS is closely linked with the Welsh Government Ministerial Advisory Group 

for Children (MAG). Adoption features across the numerous work streams of this important 

national initiative.

Improvement priorities for 2019/20

PLANS FOR 2019/20 ONWARDS

Thinking ahead 

Continuing to co-produce and use 

information from engagement

Using data from the revised performance 

measurement system

Working to improve the legal, policy and 

evidence framework that affects adoption

Encouraging the development of workforce 

understanding and skills to meet NAS 

priorities

Continuing to improve  

adoption support

Implementing the Adoption Support 

Framework and investment plans

Continuing to raise awareness amongst 

professionals and the public

Placing more children 

Increase recruitment of adopters to meet 

the number and needs of children waiting 

including use of ‘Adopting Together’ for 

children who wait longest

Embed the new Adoption Register for Wales 

to speed up matching of children through 

quicker notification of children and adopters 

in line with revised regulations

030201

Tudalen 55



National Adoption Service Central Team 

c/o City of Cardiff Council  

Room 409 County Hall  

Atlantic Wharf  

Cardiff CF10 4UW 

T:	 029 2087 3927 

E:	 contact@adoptcymru.com 

www.adoptcymru.com

The National Adoption Service was created to improve services for all those affected by 

adoption in Wales. 

The National Adoption Service (NAS) for Wales, launched in November 2014, is an innovative 

collaborative for the provision of adoption services. It brought together Welsh local authority 

adoption services into a three-tier structure which includes partnerships at all levels with 

Voluntary Adoption Agencies based in Wales, Health and Education Services, as well as others.

At local authority level, all 22 Welsh councils continue to provide services to all looked after 

children whilst identifying and working with those children for whom a plan for adoption is 

appropriate.

Regionally, local authorities work together within five regional collaboratives to provide a range 

of adoption services. Each regional collaborative has links with the voluntary adoption agencies, 

health and education. The services provided differ in each collaborative but all provide the 

adoption agency functions for children, recruit and assess adopters, offer counselling to birth 

parents and advice to adopted adults. Some currently directly provide adoption support services, 

whereas in others this remains with their local authorities.

Tudalen 56



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23RD JANUARY 2020

DELEGATE AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
RENTING OF HOMES (FEES ETC) (WALES) ACT 2019

REPORT OF DIRECTOR PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION AND 
COMMUNITY SERVICES IN DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER 
FOR STRONGER COMMUNITIES, WELL-BEING AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES, CLLR RHYS LEWIS

Author(s): Neil Pilliner, Environmental Protection & Housing Standards 
Manager and Ian Lester, Senior Environmental Health Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to delegate authority to the Director of 
Public Health, Protection and Community Services and to the single 
Licensing Authority in Wales (Rent Smart Wales) to use the 
enforcement powers of the Renting of Homes (Fees etc) (Wales) Act 
2019.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Cabinet:

2.1 Give delegated authority to the Director of Public Health, Protection & 
Community Services for enforcing the provisions of the Renting of 
Homes (Fees etc.) (Wales) Act 2019 and note that the Monitoring 
Officer would make any consequential amendment(s) required to the 
Council’s Constitution. 

2.2 Give delegated authority to the Operational Manager for Rent Smart 
Wales for enforcing the provisions of the Renting Homes (Fees etc.) 
(Wales) Act 2019 on behalf of Cardiff City Council and note that the 
Monitoring Officer would make any consequential amendment(s) 
required to the Council’s Constitution.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1   To enable enforcement of the new legislation to be implemented by 
Officers in the Public Health, Protection & Community Services 
Department. 

Tudalen 57

Agendwm 7



3.2    To ensure that enforcement powers are also delegated to Rent Smart 
Wales, with whom the Council work in partnership, for the enforcement 
of this legislation.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1    The Renting Homes (Fees etc.) (Wales) Act 2019 came into force on    
5th May 2019.  Since 1st September 2019, letting agents and landlords 
who manage their own properties are prevented from charging any 
fees before, during or after a tenancy unless specifically exempt in the 
Act.  Such a banned payment is called a ‘prohibited payment’. 

 
4.2  Letting agents and self-managing landlords are also banned from 

requiring a tenant to take out a loan or enter into a contract for 
services. 

4.3   Enforcement of these new requirements can be undertaken by the 
Council and Rent Smart Wales (as the Single Licencing Authority) and 
will contribute to a fairer and more transparent experience for tenants 
relying on the private rented sector. Welsh Government (WG) advises 
that any costs associated with renting in the private sector should be 
reasonable, affordable and transparent. 

4.4 The Act defines permitted payments that can be required by letting 
agents and self-managing landlords as:

 Rent;
 Holding deposits;
 Security deposits;
 Payments in respect utilities (e.g. council tax, television, licence and 

communication services);
 Payments in default (where tenant has done something wrong e.g. 

lost keys, late payment of rent).

WG intends to introduce regulations to define such payments by the 
end of 2019.

4.5    Any payments other than those listed in 4.4 above would be banned 
and prohibited.  Where any rent payment, in one period, is greater than 
the amount of rent payable in any other period during the contract, the 
difference (a ‘rent fluctuation’) is also considered a prohibited payment. 
There is an exception where there is a ‘permitted variation’ agreed 
between landlord and tenant.

4.6   ‘Holding deposits’ are limited to one week’s rent and must be repaid 
within seven days of the contract being agreed. If the tenancy contract 

Tudalen 58



is not agreed, the deposit must, subject to limited exceptions, be repaid 
within 15 days.

4.7  There will be no change to existing legislation governing ‘security 
deposits’, but Welsh Ministers now have the power to cap them. There 
are no plans to legislate for a cap but WG will be monitoring trends in 
deposits and will only regulate if necessary.

4.8    Failure to comply with the provisions in the Act, in the following ways, 
will restrict the landlord’s ability to serve a valid notice of possession 
(“no fault”, Section 21 possessions):

 A prohibited payment has been required and paid, but not re-paid 
by the letting agent/self-managing landlord;

 A holding deposit has not been repaid.

4.9    The Council is responsible for enforcing this legislation in partnership 
with Rent Smart Wales (RSW).  All 22 Welsh Councils have agreed to 
a memorandum of understanding with RSW in relation to the regulation 
of the Private Rented Housing Sector. 

4.10  RSW will take enforcement action in place of Local Authorities in 
limited circumstances: 
 
 Where RSW is undertaking an audit of an agent and find evidence 

of non-compliance;
 Where RSW is taking enforcement action for Housing (Wales) Act 

2014 offences (e.g. no registered with RSW) and tenant fee 
contraventions are found;

 Other exceptional circumstances to be agreed on a case by case 
basis with the Local Authority. 

4.11 Local Authorities are primarily responsible for enforcing the 
requirements and have a duty to inform the Licensing Authority (Rent 
Smart Wales (RSW)) if they take enforcement action. Rent Smart 
Wales will also inform Local Authorities if they serve a fixed penalty 
notice or prosecute. 

4.12   There are two formal enforcement options available to the Council and 
RSW: 

 Issue of a fixed penalty notice (FPN) of £1,000, the payment of 
which would avoid prosecution proceedings. However, non-
payment would lead to prosecution;

 Prosecution for offences under the Act which could result in a fine 
not subject to a minimum on the standard scale of fines (except for 
failure to provide information required by statutory notice, in which 

Tudalen 59



case a fine up to level 4 on the standard scale could be imposed by 
a judge). 

4.13  Sections 17(2) and (3) of the Renting Homes (Fees etc) (Wales) Act 
2019 enable Rent Smart Wales to take the above mentioned 
enforcement actions but it will be necessary for the Council to 
authorise RSW (Cardiff City Council) to do so.

 
4.14 The above enforcement action will be taken in accordance with the 

Council’s Enforcement Policy to ensure consistency, proportionality 
and fairness.

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 This is not applicable as the Authority has a statutory duty to enforce 
the provisions of this Act.  Any enforcement action will be undertaken 
in accordance with the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy.

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1    None was considered necessary as this is a new statutory requirement.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

7.1 The necessary resources to enforce this legislation will be undertaken 
within the current allocated budget for Public Health, Protection & 
Community Services. The additional regulatory burden of this 
legislation has been the subject of the financial assessment by Welsh 
Government.  It is considered that the fixed penalty (£1000 per 
offence) or Court cost awards will cover the financial impact incurred.

 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 Legal and probity issues have been considered. By virtue of the 
Regulation of Private Rented Housing (Designation of Licensing 
Authority)(Wales) Order 2015, Cardiff City Council is designated as the 
Licensing Authority for the whole of Wales.  The service operates 
under the name Rent Smart Wales hosted by Cardiff Council and 
ensures compliance with the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 in partnership 
with all 22 Welsh Local Authorities.  Formal authorisation is required in 
respect of the Renting Homes (Fees etc.)(Wales) Act 2019, in order to 
ensure that all relevant powers can be exercised from the                  
1st September 2019.

Tudalen 60



9. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND 
THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

9.1 It links with the Economy and Place priorities of the Corporate Plan as 
the changes introduced by the new legislation will protect tenants by 
reducing financial exploitation.

9.2     Use of the enforcement powers are also consistent with the Well-being 
Goals under the Wellbeing of Future Generations  (Wales) Act 2015 as 
protecting tenants against financial exploitation will contribute to:

 
 A healthier Wales – a society in which people’s physical and mental 

wellbeing is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that 
benefit future health are understood;

 A Wales of cohesive communities – attractive, viable, safe and well 
connected communities;

 A more equal Wales - A society that enables people to fulfil their 
potential no matter what their background or circumstances 
(including their socio economic background and circumstances).

10. CONCLUSION

10.1 The provisions of the Renting Homes (Fees etc) (Wales) Act 2019 
prevents Letting Agents and Landlords (who manage their own 
properties) from charging any fees before, during or after a tenancy 
unless specifically exempt in the Act. Delegating authority to the 
Director - Public Health, Protection and Community Services  and Rent 
Smart Wales (as the Single Licencing Authority) to enforce these new 
requirements will contribute to a fairer and more transparent 
experience for tenants relying on the private rented sector. 

Other Information:-

Relevant Scrutiny Committee
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny

Tudalen 61



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23rd JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF DIRECTOR PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION AND 
COMMUNITY SERVICES IN DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER 
FOR STRONGER COMMUNITIES, WELL-BEING AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES, CLLR RHYS LEWIS

DELEGATE AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
RENTING OF HOMES (FEES ETC) (WALES) ACT 2019

Background papers:

None 

Contact Officer(s)

Neil Pilliner, Environmental Protection & Housing Standards Manager  
Tel: 01443 744281 

Ian Lester, Senior Environmental Health Officer - Tel: 01443 744282

Tudalen 62



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

23RD JANUARY 2020

THE COUNCIL’S 2020/2021 REVENUE BUDGET

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES 

AUTHOR: Barrie Davies (01443 424026)

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides Cabinet with information in respect of the 
2020/2021 local government settlement and the outcomes of the 
budget consultation phase 1 exercise, to assist with its deliberations in 
formulating the revenue budget strategy for the financial year 2020/21, 
which it will recommend to Council, for approval. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that the Cabinet:

2.1 Note that the procedures relating to revenue budget construction, 
the budget consultation process, and reporting to Council, are set 
out in the “Budget and Policy Framework” within the Council’s 
Constitution.

2.2 To note and consider the outcomes of the budget consultation 
phase 1 process.

2.3 Consider and if appropriate agree the draft 2020/2021 Revenue 
Budget Strategy, detailed in the attached Discussion Paper 
‘Appendix A’, as the basis upon which a second phase of 
consultation will take place.

2.4 Agree the draft timetable for setting the 2020/2021 revenue budget 
as set out at Appendix A2.  

2.5 Agree to receive feedback from the second phase of budget 
consultation in order to consider and determine the final budget 
strategy for submission to Council.

Tudalen 63

Agendwm 8



2

2.6 Agree that the Council continues to support the medium term 
financial strategy aimed at maximising ongoing efficiency in service 
delivery, targeted service transformation and other changes that 
maintain the financial integrity of the Council whilst still aiming as 
much as possible to protect jobs and key services. 

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 The revenue budget for the financial year ending the 31st March 2021, 
must be constructed in accordance with the “Budget and Policy 
Framework” (contained in the Council’s Constitution), which was 
agreed by Members in May 2002.

3.2 Under these arrangements, it is for the Council’s “respective Chief 
Officers” to report to Cabinet, and for the Cabinet to then recommend a 
budget to Council, after having conducted an appropriate budget 
consultation exercise.  I have reproduced the relevant sections of the 
Constitution at Appendix A1, for Members’ information. 

3.3 A draft timetable for agreeing the 2020/2021 revenue budget strategy 
is attached at Appendix A2. 

4.0 THE KEY ELEMENTS OF A BALANCED BUDGET STRATEGY FOR 
2020/2021 

4.1 The Council’s Senior Leadership Team have considered budget 
strategy options throughout the Autumn and in light of emerging delays 
to the WG Local Government Settlement timescales as a consequence 
of Central Government planned spending reviews, Brexit and latterly 
the General Election.

4.2 I have reported on the implications of the provisional settlement and on 
our updated budget requirement to Council on the 15th January 2020 
and set this out in detail in the discussion paper attached at Appendix 
A.  

4.3 Based on the provisional settlement and alongside our updated base 
budget requirement, reflecting the continuing increased pressures 
across many of our services, I have also set out a high level robust and 
balanced budget strategy option which would include a Council Tax 
increase of 2.85%.

4.4 The outcome from the Phase 1 budget consultation process is also 
now available for Cabinet to consider alongside the proposals. 

Tudalen 64



3

4.5 Clearly, there are many possible budget permutations open to the 
Council, but Members’ overriding ambition will be to construct a 
balanced budget package, that is equitable and fair to all by limiting 
any impact on service provision and where possible, provides for 
targeting resources to key service areas whilst avoiding an excessive 
increase in the Council Tax levied by the County Borough Council.

5.0 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 In developing the draft 2020/2021 Revenue Budget Strategy, an 
Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken to ensure that: 

(i) the Council meets the requirements of the Public Sector Equality 
Duties; and 

(ii) due regard has been taken of the likely impact of the 
recommendations in terms of equality and discrimination. 

6.0 CONSULTATION 

6.1 The proposed approach to budget consultation for 2020/21 is set out in 
the Cabinet report dated 17th October 2019 and in the delegated 
decision of the Service Director for Democratic Services and 
Communication dated 14th November 2019.  It comprises 2 phases as 
follows :

Phase 1 - provided residents and stakeholders with the opportunity to 
feedback their views on some of the key strategic building blocks used 
to construct the Council’s budget.

Phase 2 - once Cabinet have agreed a draft budget strategy, and in 
light of the provisional local government settlement, then this draft 
strategy will itself be consulted upon as part of Phase 2.  

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The financial modelling assumptions and implications are set out in 
Appendix A of this report. 

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS or LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 The Council has a legal duty under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 to set a balanced budget and also a legal duty under the 
Local Government Act 2000 for it to be reported to and approved 
by Full Council. The construction of the draft 2020/2021 Revenue 

Tudalen 65



4

Budget Strategy in line with the “Budget and Policy Framework”, as 
set out in the Council’s Constitution, will support compliance with 
the abovementioned legal requirements. 

9.0 LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT  

9.1 The draft budget strategy will be a key enabler for the delivery of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and in doing so will support wider partnership 
objectives and the Well-Being of Future Generations Act.  

 
10.0 CONCLUSIONS

10.1 The Senior Leadership Team holds the collective view that the Council 
should commit itself to setting its 2020/2021 revenue spending and, as 
a consequence, the Council Tax levied next year, at a level which 
balances the desire for fair and equitable service provision, with the 
need to recognise the impact that excessive tax burdens can have on 
local households. 

10.2 A translation of the Senior Leadership Team’s recommended strategic 
approach into a high level budget for 2020/2021 with a Council Tax 
increase of 2.85% is attached to this report.

10.3 Given that the financial resources currently available to the Council are 
finite and that future local government settlements continue to be 
uncertain, the Senior Leadership Team believes that an ongoing, 
robust medium-term financial strategy is essential to ensure that our 
core public services continue to be improved.

*************  

Tudalen 66



APPENDIX  A
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

23rd JANUARY 2020

A DISCUSSION PAPER PREPARED BY THE SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM IN 
RESPONSE TO THE 2020/2021 LOCAL GOVERNMENT SETTLEMENT

AUTHOR: BARRIE DAVIES, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES 
(01443) 424026

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Constitution sets out the procedure, which must be adhered to when setting 
the Council’s annual revenue budget. It is a specific requirement of the 
Constitution that the Council’s Chief Officers first report to the Cabinet, to advise 
Members on the issues involved (see extract of the Constitution at Appendix 1). 
Following due consideration of that report, and after having conducted an 
appropriate budget consultation exercise, it will then be for the Cabinet to 
determine a strategy and recommend a budget to Council, for final approval. A 
timetable for this process is attached at Appendix 2.

1.2 Prior to determining its preferred budget strategy for the financial year ending 
the 31st March 2021, the Cabinet must consider:

 The Council’s own financial position. 
 The financial and service implications of the Welsh Government’s 

(WG) 2020-2021 local government settlement.
 Our Cwm Taf – Cwm Taf Wellbeing Plan 2018 -2023.
 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2016 – 2020 and draft updated 

Corporate Plan 2020 - 2024.
 The level of demand and the statutory basis for delivery of services. 
 The results of the General Budget Strategy consultation exercise.

1.3 If Members are to arrive at the best possible outcome for our residents, it will be 
important that an appropriate weighting is given to each of the key determinants 
in paragraph 1.2 above, so that relative resourcing and spending priorities can 
be properly determined. 

1.4 Accurate and up-to-date information is readily available in respect of the 
Council’s own financial position, and officers have now analysed the 2020/2021 
local government settlement from Rhondda Cynon Taf’s perspective. 

2.0 THE COUNCIL’S FINANCIAL POSITION 

2.1 Members have continued to receive regular updates on the financial position 
and projections for this Council during 2019/20. A key starting point and 
important consideration is the annual statement of accounts. At the Council 
meeting on the 31st July 2019, I presented the Council's audited accounts, 
which reported General Fund Balances amounting to £10.498M.  
 

Tudalen 67



2.2 Given the continuing financial pressures the Council is working under, it 
remains my view, that the Council should hold a minimum of £10M as General 
Fund Balances, (i.e. its working balance).This level is set given the context of 
the need for continued strong financial management that is felt to be essential 
to ensure that the Council maintains financial flexibility and stability going 
forward. 

2.3 Members will be aware that in addition to General Fund Reserves, the Council 
also holds a number of earmarked reserves that are kept under continuous 
review and are assessed each year by the Wales Audit Office. Members will be 
aware that included in these Reserves is a Medium Term Financial Planning 
and Service Transformation Reserve that has successfully supported 
transitional funding as part of the Council’s Medium Term Service Planning 
arrangements. It has achieved this through helping to smooth the delivery of 
budget savings over a number of years, whilst still allowing an annual balanced 
budget to be delivered. The starting point for the Medium Term Financial 
Planning and Service Transformation Reserve as at the 31st March 2019 is 
£3.303M. As part of our ongoing strategy, we have continued to identify and 
deliver savings in-year which means we have been able to increase the level 
of transitional funding available and the latest position is that this reserve has 
now increased to £4.363M (additional in year savings to date of £0.606M plus 
the reinstatement of resources (£0.454M) following confirmation of government 
funding in respect of the firefighters pension cost increases by South Wales 
Fire and Rescue Authority). 

2.4 The Wales Audit Office continues to emphasise that we must remain 
disciplined, if we are to maintain our long-term goal of driving forward 
continuous improvement of key services, though this becomes increasingly 
harder to achieve following a period of such severe financial pressures. 

2.5 I believe the Wales Audit Office assessment is an accurate one and it is clear 
that Members continue to take their fiduciary duty extremely seriously as 
evidenced by the positive reports received from the regulators and the track 
record of budgetary control across services. The challenge, therefore, is to 
construct a prudent, equitable and fair revenue budget for the financial year 
ending the 31st March 2021. This must involve an approach which publicly 
demonstrates sound financial stewardship; which does not take unnecessary 
risks; which maximises income generation; continues to deliver year on year 
efficiency savings and which delivers the services that are needed and we can 
afford, as well as protecting as many jobs as possible.

3.0 THE 2020/2021 LOCAL GOVERNMENT SETTLEMENT 

3.1 The timing of the Local Government Settlement for 2020/21 has been extremely 
uncertain throughout the Autumn period as a consequence of the originally 
planned Comprehensive Spending Review, Brexit and latterly, the General 
Election.

3.2 On the 16th December 2019, the Minister for Housing and Local Government 
(Julie James AM) announced the Provisional 2020/2021 Local Government 
Settlement. The Minister’s statement and key data table is attached at Appendix 
3. 

3.3 The “headlines” of the 2020/2021 Provisional Settlement are as follows:-

Tudalen 68



a. The overall increase in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Non-Domestic 
Rates (NDR) funding for 2020/2021 (of unhypothecated funding) at an all 
Wales level, after adjusting for transfers is 4.3% (+£184M). 

b. The settlement for Rhondda Cynon Taf, amounts to an increase of 4.5% 
which is above the average of 4.3%. Settlement figures across Wales 
range from 3.0% to 5.4%. 

c. No ‘floor’ protection has been included for 2020/21.  

d. The Settlement figures for 2020/21 include transfers into the settlement in 
respect of NHS Funded Nursing Care (£1.9M), the Teachers Pay Grant 
(£12.0M) and the Teachers Pensions Grant (£39.1M).  There is also a 
transfer in respect of the Coastal Risk Management Programme (not 
applicable to this Council).  The values for this Council are £0.146M, 
£0.990M and £3.222M respectively.  Whilst the part year (2019/20)  
implications of the Teachers Pay Grant and Teachers Pension Grant 
transfer into the settlement, the additional full year implications are to be 
funded from within the settlement increase.  

e. There is no indication of settlement levels beyond 2020/21.

f. Provisional figures and indicative estimates are included for specific 
grants, at an all Wales level.  Of particular note, would be the continuation 
and increase (from £30M to £40M) in the Social Care Workforce and 
Sustainability Pressures Grant.  This funds our core base budget.  

g. The Council’s General Capital Funding allocation has increased by 
£0.236M to £13.677M.  

4.0 IMPLICATIONS OF THE 2020/2021 PROVISIONAL SETTLEMENT

4.1    The provisional settlement indicates that our 2020/2021 RSG and NDR funding 
will total £388.666M. 

4.2   In anticipation of the 2020/2021 local government settlement, the Council’s 
service managers have constructed base budget requirements for next financial 
year. Those initial calculations provided for:-

 Estimated employee costs, pension costs and National Insurance 
Contribution levels; 

 Non-pay (i.e. goods and services) inflation, including energy and 
fuel;

 Corporate financing requirements and levies; and 
 Full year effects of any additional burdens imposed on the 

Council.

4.3 The Provisional Settlement is better than modelled in the most recent Medium 
Term Financial Plan and recognises some of the intense funding pressures 
which are being experienced across local government in general but also within 
Rhondda Cynon Taf.  

4.4 Members have continued to receive updates on the projections of the Council’s 
revenue budget position for the period to 2022/23, as part of our Medium Term 

Tudalen 69



Financial Planning (MTFP) arrangements. The latest of these assessments 
was considered by Council on the 31st July 2019 where, based on the financial 
projections at that time, a starting point budget gap of £15.591M was projected 
which increased to £24.307M in the absence of One Off Funding provided 
during 2019/20 continuing and without costs associated with the Teachers 
Pension Fund increases being funded. 

4.5 The continuation of funding for one off and teachers pension costs has now 
been clarified through the provisional settlement and so we can now update 
our modelling with greater certainty in this regard.  The provisional settlement 
also includes an increase to the Social Care Workforce and Sustainability 
Pressures Grant.  The impact of this funding confirmation is shown in table 1 
below.

Table 1 :  Confirmation of One-Off Funding

£'000
Budget Gap at MTPF (July 2019) 24,307
One off Funding transferred into base at Provisional Settlement 4,212-       
Continuation and Increase in Social Services Grant 3,400-       
Revised Budget Gap 16,695

4.6 We have also during the last few months continued to refresh our base budget 
requirements for 2020/21.  Inescapable budget pressures have now been 
updated and include additional costs in respect of :

 specialist accommodation requirements within social care settings 
(£1.8M)

 demographic demand led pressures in social care (£1.5M)
 provision of recycling bags - dry and food waste (£0.2M)
 running costs of the Ron Jones Athletics Stadium (£0.15M)
 Free School Meals (£0.3M)
 Home Tuition (£0.1M)

4.7 Inflation and Pay pressures include providing adequate provision for teaching 
and non-teaching pay awards, updated costs for the funding of voluntary 
retirements and additional workforce costs in respect of all our services 
including Social Care.  These additional costs have been offset by a reduction 
in pension costs associated with the Local Government Pension Scheme.

4.8 Members will also recall the decision which was made in December 2015 to 
terminate the Council’s PFI scheme at Garth Olwg.  The arrangement formally 
ended in January 2017, but there have been legal issues to conclude since that 
point.  On the 21st November 2019, the legal process was finally concluded and 
the financial implications of this can now be factored into the Council’s ongoing 
revenue budget requirement.  This amounts to an ongoing revenue base 
budget saving of £2.527M.

4.9 Other updates include an increase to our estimated Capital Charges and a 
required on-going cost associated with our digital programme which will 
facilitate future release of efficiencies through greater productivity, agile 
working and reductions in our office accommodation requirements.

4.10 These updates are summarised in table 2 below.

Tudalen 70



Table 2 :  Base Budget Updates

Base Budget Updates £'000
Inescapable Budget Pressures 4,060
Inflation and Pay 2,030
Capital Charges 750
Digital Programme 1,000
PFI Reduction 2,527-         
Total Base Budget Updates 5,313

4.11 As already referenced, the provisional settlement provides clarity on the 
funding available to schools and alongside their resource requirement.  This 
has now been updated to reflect the school budget requirement.  

4.12 As referenced at section 3, the provisional settlement provides this Council with 
an uplift of 4.5%.  This compares with the MTFP assumption, based on 
planning information available at that time, of a 0% uplift.  The impact of our 
updated tax base can also now be reflected.

4.13 The combined effects of the above updates is shown in table 3 below.

Table 3 :  Revised Budget Gap at Provisional Settlement

£'000
Revised Budget Gap 16,695
Base Updates 5,313
Additional Resource for Schools 4,036
Provisional Settlement - Additional Resources to MTFP Assumptions 17,342-         
Revised Budget Gap 8,702

4.14 In order to close the remaining budget gap, savings proposals were set out in 
the July MTFP (relating to the Materials Recycling Facility, Day Centres, Office 
Accommodation and Home Care Charges) amounting to £1.199M.  

4.15 In addition, an efficiency target was set at £6M and since this point, services 
have been working to identify proposals to deliver to this target without 
impacting on front line services.  It is confirmed that this target has now been 
met and can therefore be included in the Council’s base budget requirement for 
next year.

4.16 On the 10th December 2019, the Llwydcoed Crematorium Joint Committee 
considered and agreed a report which proposed an annual redistribution from 
the accounts of the Joint Committee to Rhondda Cynon Taf and Merthyr 
Councils.  For this Council an amount of £0.182M can be factored into our 
ongoing budget requirement.

4.17 The impact of these now agreed budget reduction measures is shown in table 
4 below.

Tudalen 71



Table 4 :  Confirmed Savings and Remaining Budget Gap

4.18 This reflects the position which was reported to Council on the 15th January 
2020 and it is against this backdrop that we must consider our budget strategy 
for 2020/21.

5.0 DEVELOPING AN EQUITABLE, DELIVERABLE AND BALANCED BUDGET 
FOR 2020/2021

5.1 Notwithstanding the more positive settlement from WG for 2020/21, it does 
follow a sustained period of real term reductions to our funding levels and it is 
against this context that we need to develop a balanced budget for next year.  
There remain significant pressures upon many of our services together with a 
limited ability to increase Council Tax income, and a low tax base. Within these 
parameters, we will therefore need to take appropriate decisions to ensure that 
next year’s budget is equitable for all, does not compromise our financial 
stability and protects and develops our key services.  

5.2   I touched upon the Council’s overall financial position in Section 2 of the report. 
In my view, it is vital that we continue with the strategy we have adopted to date 
that takes account of the importance of sound financial management, including 
the level of General Fund balances and appropriate use of the “Medium Term 
Financial Planning and Service Transformation Reserve” as transitional 
funding, whilst targeting any available resources toward our high priority, 
customer-focused public services. 

5.3    Every year, there are certain corporate financial provisions that must be “top 
sliced” locally, before service budgets can be allocated. Next year will be no 
different. There will be a requirement for:

a) A provision to meet levies from External Bodies;
b) A provision for Capital Charges; 
c) A provision for all other “Miscellaneous Finance” items (Audit 

Fees, Insurance Costs, Bank Charges, etc.) which are non-
specific to any particular Service Group; and

d) Resources to fund the Council Tax Reduction Scheme.
  
5.4   As part of our updated budget requirement, appropriate sums have been set 

aside for these corporate financial requirements.

6.0 COUNCIL TAX LEVELS
  

6.1 This Council has always acted reasonably when setting its Council Tax, 
balancing the impact upon services and the ability of the public to pay,   
recognising that those eligible will receive support through the Welsh 
Government’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS). The original modelled 

Tudalen 72



proposal was to increase Council Tax in 2020/21 by 3.00%.  This was 
consistent with the level which we have used in our modelling for some time 
and is a lower level of increase than we have implemented over recent years.  
It is now proposed that Council Tax be increased by 2.85% for next year.  This 
will increase the remaining budget gap by £0.132M.

6.2 Members will be aware that the costs of the CTRS impacts on the net income 
generated through any increase in Council Tax.  A 1% increase in Council Tax 
will generate an additional income for the Council of £1.126M (at the 2020/21 
tax base level), but will also cost £0.243M in additional CTRS requirements. It 
therefore follows that a 1% increase generates a net additional income of 
£0.883M, or stated another way, 22% of any Council Tax increase is lost to 
support the increased costs associated with the Welsh Government’s CTRS.

7.0 SCHOOLS BUDGET (ISB)

7.1 Members have always viewed our schools as being a key priority and have 
ensured that they have been treated favourably in comparison with other 
council services. 

7.2 As part of the initial budget modelling assumptions (July 2019) a £1.5M cash 
uplift for schools had been built into the Medium Term Financial Plan.

7.3 Following the clarity provided through the provisional settlement with regard to 
funding for Teachers Pension Costs and Teachers Pay award (2019) costs, 
these amounts have now been passed on, fully, to our schools.  In addition, 
funding is also provided to cover, in full, pay and non-pay inflation and 
pressures, including the baselining of one-off and passported funding (£2.5M) 
which was provided for the 2019/20 budget.  Schools are therefore fully funded 
for 2020/21.

7.4 In overall terms, the proposal sees the Schools Budget (ISB) increase from 
£148.9M to £161.6M, an increase of £12.7M, or 8.5%.

8.0 BUDGET STRATEGY PROPOSALS

8.1 This Council has taken a proactive approach to dealing with the continued real 
term reductions in resources it has received in recent years and has continued 
to deliver saving proposals early with a clear focus maintained across the 
medium term planning horizon.  The Council has continued to deliver robust, 
balanced budgets and taken the opportunity to use our Medium Term Financial 
Planning and Service Transformation Reserve, as transition funding, to 
sensibly support the overall budget strategy.  This approach is one which I 
would recommend is continued.

8.2 The Cabinet have always been focussed on protecting our front line services 
and have taken any opportunities to prioritise or reallocate resources to areas 
of priority.

8.3 For 2020/21, the following proposals are set out for Cabinet’s consideration.

a.  NDR Local Relief Scheme    

Cabinet have already initiated a consultation on a proposal to introduce a 
local discretionary relief scheme for Non Domestic Rates (NDR).  The 

Tudalen 73



consultation closes on the 24th January and Cabinet will subsequently 
determine how they wish to progress.  As referenced in the Cabinet report, 
resources have already been set aside in the Medium Term Financial Plan 
to provide further support to our town centres and businesses so there is no 
further financial impact on our base budget.

b. Youth Engagement / Youth Offending

The Council recognises the ongoing need to work proactively across our 
services, with our schools and partners to ensure the effectiveness of our 
youth engagement activities both within and outside of a school 
environment and to ensure that there are opportunities for young people 
across the County Borough to reach their full potential and overcome 
barriers to learning and progression.  Our current core spend on Youth 
Engagement amounts to £1.9M and it is proposed that an additional 
revenue investment of £250k is made in this area, representing a budget 
increase of over 13%.  

c. Paddling Pools

Following a number of voluntary groups being able to open paddling pools 
during last summer, the Council will now work wider with community groups 
and put in place a package of bespoke support that will enable further  
paddling pools to open throughout the summer holiday period going forward 
(subject to the preparedness of community groups).  £50k is proposed to be 
included within the budget strategy for this purpose.  

d. Prudential Borrowing for Investment in our Infrastructure

Following the investment of over £95M being made in our infrastructure and 
corporate priorities since 2015, it is proposed to set aside £500k of our 
revenue resource to enable, through the use of prudential borrowing 
powers, £7.5M of capital resource to be further invested in our priority 
investment areas.  This will include strategic highways developments, parks 
and green spaces and continued investment in extra care facilities.  Full 
details of this spend will be set out in the forthcoming updated capital 
programme.

e. Supporting the Muni Arts Centre

The Council has been working with Awen Cultural Trust to secure a 
sustainable future for the Muni Arts Centre alongside an ambitious longer 
term plan to substantially refurbish the Centre.  Whilst these longer term 
plans are being developed along with a potential funding package, it is 
confirmed that the initial plan is to reopen the venue during the summer of 
2020 (following initial maintenance works).  In order to support the 
reopening, whilst the longer term vision is being developed, there is a need 
for a revenue contribution to be made amounting to £140k per annum.  The 
revenue support will be ring-fenced and the part year revenue budget 
requirement is £105k.

f. Fees and Charges

A final report on the proposed level of Fees & Charges for 2020/21 will be 
presented to Cabinet on the 20th February 2020. Following the initial (Phase 

Tudalen 74



1) consultation exercise undertaken during late November and December, 
the Cabinet’s draft proposals with regard to fees and charges would see a 
standard increase of 1.5% (CPI), with a number of specific exceptions :

Area of Charge Proposed Exception
Leisure for Life Freeze
Car Park Charges Freeze
Summer and Winter Playing Fees (sports 
clubs)

Freeze

Meals on Wheels / Day Centre Meals 10p per meal
School Meals 5p per meal
Lido 50p Adult Swim 

The impact of these draft proposals would cost £6k.

g. Home to School Transport Re-tender Savings

Following a number of successful retendering exercises over recent years, 
delivering reduced costs of our provision, a review of the Home to School 
Transport budget has now concluded that £810k can be released from the 
base budget requirement.  

h. Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 

Members will be aware through the quarterly performance reports this year 
that the costs associated with the CTRS have been consistently below 
budget. As at Quarter 2 (reported 21st November 2019), the projected 
underspend in this area was £0.352M. Further work on caseloads and 
demand has now been concluded and the proposal is to reduce the base 
budget in 2020/21 by £0.350M. It should be noted that whilst this takes the 
budget to £24.680M, this is still in excess of the Welsh Government funding 
for this area which for 2020/21 totals £21.564M.  

i. Supported Accommodation Strategy and Savings

In addition to the Council’s ongoing investment in developing extra care 
facilities, Cabinet have also agreed to capital investment in developing 
supported accommodation at Penllew Court and Crown Avenue.  These 
facilities are now nearing completion and will be available for occupancy 
during 2020/21.  The revenue savings (part year) which we can now build 
into our base budget for 2020/21 is £400k.  

8.4 The implications of the above strategy proposals, including the proposed 
reduction in the level of Council Tax increase, on the remaining budget gap 
position is shown in the table 5 below.

Tudalen 75



Table 5 :  Budget Strategy Proposals 2020/21

£'000 £'000
Remaining Budget Gap 1,321
NDR Local Relief Scheme -
Additional Resources to Support Youth Engagement 250
Paddling Pools 50
Prudential Borrowing - Investment (£7.5M) 500
Muni Arts Centre - Revenue Support 105
Council Tax at 2.85% 132
Fees and Charges 6
Home to School Re-tender Savings 810-               
CTRS 350-               
Supported Accommodation Savings 400-               517-            
Remaining Budget Gap 804

8.5 Medium Term Financial Planning and Service Transformation Reserve 
(Transitional Funding) – We have for many years used our transition funding 
reserve sensibly as part of our balanced budget strategy, at a level which does 
not compromise the robustness of our budget and which can be replenished with 
some certainty, given our ongoing strategy of delivering savings early.

8.6 As previously referenced the reserve currently stands at £4.363M, having been 
replenished during this year (2019/20) by £1.060M to quarter 2.  Accordingly, to 
address the remaining budget gap, it is proposed that an allocation of £0.804M 
is made from this reserve for 2020/21. This would facilitate a balanced budget 
for 2020/21 and would leave £3.559M in the reserve (subject to the year-end 
assessment of reserves). I am confident that processes are now sufficiently well 
embedded to ensure that savings are achieved in-year and that this reserve can 
continue to be replenished. 

£'000
Remaining Budget Gap 804
Use of Transition Funding 804-            
Remaining Budget Gap -

8.7 The above provides a robust and balanced budget strategy which can be 
recommended to Cabinet and Council.

9.0 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

9.1 Whilst the focus for this report is necessarily on 2020/21, the pressures on our 
services and the absence of any firm indications of future settlement levels 
means that our Medium Term Financial and Service Planning arrangements 
remain key to ensuring that financial stability is maintained as the cornerstone 
of our overall financial health as a Council.  

9.2 Medium Term Service Planning remains extremely challenging in the absence 
of any indication or certainty of ongoing funding levels and it will be critical that 

Tudalen 76



we maintain our flexibility to respond accordingly to annual settlement levels 
within the context of our own medium term planning arrangements.

9.3 The delivery of efficiency savings early and as part of our medium term 
planning has placed us extremely well in our ability to respond to funding 
challenges and uncertainties and continues to contribute to the delivery of a 
lean, efficient and effective organisation.

9.4 The future quantum of such savings however must be considered and reflected 
upon in light of what has been delivered to date (£95M over the last 10 years) 
and what can reasonably continue to be delivered without impacting on our 
front line services and having an unintended consequence elsewhere.

10.0 SERVICE PRIORITIES

10.1   Even within a period of significantly reducing resources and hence financial 
pressure on all services, this Council remains committed as far as it possibly 
can to continue to deliver its key services, stronger communities and social 
justice. The Council’s Corporate Plan 2016-2020 sets out that our key purpose 
is to provide a County Borough that has high aspirations, is confident and 
promotes opportunity for all. 

10.2 Our future and ongoing aspirations are also set out in the new draft Corporate 
Plan “Making a Difference” 2020-2024 which is currently being consulted upon. 

10.3 The Senior Leadership Team have had due regard to the new draft plan in 
formulating the proposals set out in this report.

10.4 In addition to our revenue base budget requirements, opportunities also 
continue to be taken to deliver investment in key strategic areas through one 
off funding made available via a risk based review of earmarked reserves and 
through identification of in-year savings opportunities. The Council has already 
invested over £95M (over and above the normal Capital Programme) in areas 
supporting key Corporate Plan priorities since October 2015, the latest 
investment (£5.8M) being agreed by Council in October 2019.

10.5 A report setting out the updated capital programme for 2020/21 to 2022/23 will 
be reported for Members consideration shortly. 

  
11.0 2020/2021 SERVICE GROUP BUDGETS

11.1  The Council adopts a comprehensive budget challenge process involving 
finance officers and senior managers from each Service area, with a 
subsequent detailed review and assessment being conducted by the Senior 
Leadership Team, to ensure consistency and fairness across all service areas. 

11.2  The 2019/2020 revenue budget and the regular performance monitoring 
reports are available to the Cabinet, to act as a benchmark to evaluate service 
delivery options, priorities and savings proposals. It is, of course, important to 
note that the current year’s figures are for information purposes only and are 
not meant to represent a base service requirement, or target. Indeed, budget 
provision for next year could be more, or less, than the 2019/2020 levels, 
depending upon Members’ decisions and spending priorities, and following the 
impact of the 2020/2021 local government settlement.

Tudalen 77



11.3 All of our services have recently completed their annual self-assessment 
exercise to support the preparation of delivery plans that will set out key actions 
for improvement and how progress will be measured. Funding will be a key 
consideration for these plans and the Senior Leadership Team’s budget 
proposals are intended to underpin these improvements.  This will allow the 
budget to be built “bottom up”, on the basis of properly identified service need, 
within the framework provided by the Cwm Taf Wellbeing Plan and our own 
Corporate Plan.

11.4   Members will, of course, be keen to demonstrate that the Council is properly 
discharging all its statutory obligations, but with funding at a premium, will also 
wish to ensure that our services are being delivered in the most economic, 
efficient and effective manner. The basic principle which should, therefore, 
underpin the construction of the 2020/2021 budget, is that Members will look to 
target adequate funding towards the delivery of our key services whilst, at the 
same time, ensuring that the resultant Council Tax levied next year is 
reasonable and can be justified to our residents. Attached at Appendix 4 is an 
outline budget proposal, including efficiency and service funding requirements. 
This is based on a Council Tax increase of 2.85%.

12.0 THE 2020/2021 GENERAL BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION 
PROCESS

12.1 As in previous years, the Council has been keen to consult with the public and 
other interested stakeholders on its general budget strategy and how services 
are delivered. 

12.2 The proposed approach to budget consultation for 2020/21 is set out in the 
Cabinet report dated 17th October 2019 and in the delegated decision of the 
Service Director for Democratic Services and Communication dated 14th 
November 2019.  It comprises 2 phases as follows :

Phase 1 - provided residents and stakeholders with the opportunity to feedback 
their views on some of the key strategic building blocks used to construct the 
Council’s budget.

Phase 2 - once Cabinet have agreed a draft budget strategy, and in light of the 
provisional local government settlement, then this draft strategy will itself be 
consulted upon as part of Phase 2.  

12.3 The Phase 1 Consultation report has been available to support the preparation 
of these proposals, and is attached at Appendix 5.

12.4 The general budget consultation also incorporated the requirements to consult 
on discretions available locally for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (which 
has been used to inform the Council’s decision on its scheme for 2020/2021 as 
considered by Council on the 15th January 2020).  

12.5 In addition, specific consultation activity was undertaken with the Finance & 
Performance Scrutiny Committee the minutes of which are attached at 
Appendix 6.

Tudalen 78



13.0 CONCLUSIONS

13.1  On the 16th December 2019, the Minister for Housing and Local Government 
(Julie James AM) announced the Provisional 2020/2021 Local Government 
Settlement which showed this Council’s increase in resources was set at 4.5%.

13.2  Whilst the Council’s overall financial position remains sound, its level of General 
Fund Balances are not excessive. The Council must, therefore, retain its focus 
on holding a minimum level of General Fund Balances of £10M, in order to 
mitigate any risk of future budget instability. Alongside this, there is the 
opportunity to pragmatically use the Medium Term Financial Planning and 
Service Transformation Reserve as transitional funding without compromising 
the Council’s financial stability, or reducing our General Fund Balances below 
£10M. As detailed in the report, the use of such transitional funding would 
produce a balanced budget for 2020/2021. 

13.3 This Council has continued to deliver year on year robust and balanced budgets 
alongside an investment programme supporting key priorities. The challenge 
remains however, for positive and proactive management from the Senior 
Leadership Team and clear direction from Cabinet to produce a financially 
sustainable budget into the medium term in what continues to be an extremely 
challenging and uncertain financial climate.

************

Tudalen 79



Tudalen wag



APPENDIX 1

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES 

1. The Framework for Executive Decisions 

The Council will be responsible for the adoption of its policy framework and budget 
as set out in Article 4. The policy framework and budget adopted by the Council will 
be based on that proposed by the Executive. Once a budget or a policy framework is 
in place, it will be the responsibility of the Executive to implement it. 

2. Process for Developing the Framework 

(a) The Cabinet, following detailed reports from respective Chief Officers, (following 
appropriate consultation with stakeholders) will present to Council, proposed plans, 
policies and the associated annual budgets. This will be done allowing adequate 
time for Council to deal with the matter and, if needed, refer the matter back to the 
Executive for further consideration. 

(b) The Council will consider the proposals of the Cabinet and may adopt them, 
amend them, refer them back to the Cabinet for further consideration, or substitute 
its own proposals in their place. In considering the matter, the Council shall have 
before it the Executive’s proposals and any related report from the Finance and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee. Any amendments to the proposals of the Cabinet 
to be proposed by Members at Council may not be considered by Council unless 
notice of the proposed amendment has been given in writing, by fax or via e-mail 
(with the names of the Proposer and Seconder clearly stated) to the Proper Officer 
and signed by the Proposer not later than 5:00pm at least 8 clear working days (not 
including the date of the meeting) before the date of the Council meeting. 

(c) Any proposed amendment by a Member of the Council to the proposals of the 
Cabinet and made in accordance with paragraph 2 (b) above shall only be accepted 
and submitted to full Council for consideration if in the opinion of the Proper Officer 
(in consultation with advice sought from the Monitoring Officer and sI5I Officer) it is 
deemed to be legal and within the competence of the Council. 

(d) The Council's decision will be publicised and a copy shall be given to the Leader. 
The notice of decision shall be dated and shall state either that the decision shall be 
effective immediately (if the Council accepts the Cabinet’s proposals without 
amendment) or (if the Cabinet’s proposals are not accepted without amendment), 
that the Council's decision will become effective on the expiry of 5 working days after 
the publication of the notice of decision, unless the Leader objects to it in that period. 

(e) If the Leader objects to the decision of the Council, he/she shall give written 
notice to the Chief Executive to that effect, prior to the date upon which the decision 
is to be effective. The written notification must state the reasons for the objection. 

Tudalen 81



Where such notification is received, the Chief Executive shall convene a further 
meeting of the Council to reconsider its decision and the decision shall not be 
effective pending that meeting. 

(f) The Council meeting must take place within 21 working days of the receipt of the 
Leader's written objection. At that Council meeting, the decision of the Council shall 
be reconsidered in the light of the objection, which shall be available in writing for the 
Council. 

(g) The Council shall, at that meeting, make its final decision on the matter on the 
basis of a simple majority. The decision shall be made public in accordance with 
Article 4 and shall be implemented immediately. 

(h) All policy and budget reports presented to Council for decision shall subsequently 
be presented to the next calendar Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee.

Tudalen 82



APPENDIX 2

2020/2021 BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX SETTING TIMETABLE 

16th December 2019

Consultation (Phase 1) – End of Budget Consultation Phase 1 (including 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme)  

16th December 2019

Provisional Local Government Settlement - Receipt of provisional 
settlement figures

15th January 2020

Council Meeting – Report on the Implications of the Provisional Settlement

23rd January 2020

Cabinet Meeting – Consideration of draft Senior Leadership Team budget 
strategy options and for cabinet to formulate their draft budget strategy, taking 
into account feedback from Phase 1 of the Budget Consultation process

24th January 2020 to 7th February 2020

Consultation (Phase 2) –Consultation on the Cabinet’s draft budget strategy

20th February 2020

Cabinet Meeting – To consider the feedback from the Phase 2 Consultation 
and to agree the Cabinet’s final budget strategy for recommending to Council

25th February 2020

Final Local Government Settlement – Receipt of final settlement figures

4th March 2020

Council Meeting – Cabinet to submit its 2020/21 Budget Strategy and 
Council Tax levels to Council

Council Decision :

- Approve the 2020/21 Revenue Budget

- Approve the 2020/21 Council Tax (including necessary formal Council 
Tax Resolution)

Tudalen 83



Tudalen wag



Julie James AC/AM 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  
 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Our ref: MA/JJ/5755/19 
 
To:  
Leaders of County and County Borough Councils in Wales 
 
Copied to:  
Chief Executives and Directors of Finance, County and County Borough Councils in Wales 
Chief Executive and Director of Finance, Welsh Local Government Association 
  
 

16 December 2019 
 
Dear Colleagues 
 
Today I am announcing details of the Provisional Local Government Revenue and Capital 
Settlements for 2020-21 for county and county borough councils in Wales through a Cabinet 
Written Statement. This is attached for your information. 
 
This announcement outlines my intention to set local government core revenue funding for 
2020-21 at £4.474 billion.  I am pleased this means, after adjusting for transfers, overall 
core funding for local government in 2020-21 will increase by 4.3 per cent on a like-for-like 
basis compared to the current year.  While this does not mean austerity is over and there 
are, I know significant pressures, I hope that this significant increase can help you support 
and continue local critical and valued services.   
 
Funding for schools has been a particular consideration of our budget discussions this year. 
Within this settlement, we have provided funding for additional costs arising from the UK 
Government’s announced changes to employer pension contributions. We have also 
provided funding for additional costs arising from the 2019/20 teachers’ pay deal for the 
remainder of the academic year and have provided funding beyond this to recognise the 
future impacts of teachers’ pay awards which will come into effect from September 2020. 
We are also continuing to provide funding for our proposals for new eligibility criteria for free 
school meals, given the continued rollout of Universal Credit by the UK Government. 
 
I have given careful consideration to the potential of including a funding floor for this 
settlement. Given that every authority will see an increase of at least 3% over 2019-20 on a 
like-for-like basis, I have concluded that a funding floor is not necessary in this particular 
instance. This will also enable us to reset the settlement base and fund authorities 
according to relative need, and not to make up for the implementation of historic floors. 
 

Tudalen 85

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


The non-hypothecated general capital funding for 2020-21 will be £198 million (including 
£20 million for public highways refurbishment grant) - an increase of £15 million over that 
announced in the Final Budget last year. I hope that this additional funding will enable you 
to respond to the urgent need to decarbonise, in light of the climate emergency declared by 
the Welsh Government and many councils over the past year. 
 
We have discussed, before, our shared recognition of the need to invest in the supply of 
housing. Investing in social housing should minimise the pressures on local authority 
budgets and on homelessness services. Investment in housing can also support the Welsh 
economy and local economies. I hope that this settlement, capital and revenue, can support 
you in increasing the scale and pace of housebuilding across Wales.  
 
The draft Local Government Finance Report and additional tables containing details of the 
provisional settlement by individual authority are also being published on the Welsh 
Government website.  These tables include the individual authority allocations of Aggregate 
External Finance (AEF), comprising Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and redistributed Non-
Domestic Rates (NDR). As we have discussed through FSG, we are also providing 
information on revenue and capital grants which are planned for 2020-21. This information 
will be further updated for the final settlement. 
 
The delay in the publication of the provisional settlement has enabled us to draw on the 
latest tax-base figures for 2020-21, meaning that there should be no change between 
provisional and final settlements as a result of updates to the tax base. 
 
This settlement provides you with the most stable platform I can offer for planning your 
budgets for the forthcoming financial year. I fully appreciate the pressures local government 
is facing and am committed to shielding local government from the worst effects of austerity. 
This is a good settlement that should alleviate some of the pressures that you had been 
anticipating and offers an opportunity for local government to plan for the future. While I 
can’t guarantee that there will be no changes between the provisional and final settlements, 
due to the financial uncertainty that comes with a new UK Government, I can assure you 
that I do not intend on making any significant changes to the methodology or the data 
underpinning the distribution of this settlement. 
 
My announcement today launches a 7-week period of formal consultation on the provisional 
local government settlement for 2020-21.  I would be grateful if you could ensure your 
response arrives no later than Monday, 3 February 2020.  All responses to this 
consultation should be sent to: 
 
Simon Edwards 
Local Government Finance and Workforce Partnerships Division 
Welsh Government, Cathays Park, Cardiff, CF10 3NQ.  
Or email: LGFPSettlement@gov.wales. 
 
Comments are invited about the effects (whether positive or adverse) the proposed 
settlement would have on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and on 
treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.  In addition, we 
invite comments on whether the proposed settlement could be formulated or revised to have 
positive effects, or decreased adverse effects, on opportunities for people to use the Welsh 
language and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 
 
The Welsh Government intends to publish a summary of the responses.  Normally, the 
name and address (or part of the address) of each respondent are published along with the 
response.  If you do not wish to be identified as the author of your response, please ensure 
you state this explicitly in your response. 

Tudalen 86

mailto:LGFPSettlement@gov.wales


 
Copies of responses may be placed in the Welsh Government’s library.  If you wish your 
comments to remain confidential, please make this clear in your reply.  This will be 
considered in light of our obligations under the Freedom of Information Act.  The Welsh 
Government will consider all responses received by the due date before the final 
determination is made and published. 
 
Local authorities are reminded of the requirement to comply with the general equality duties 
set out in the Equality Act 2010, and also the specific equality duties where applicable.  The 
equality impacts of budgetary options should be assessed and inform any final decisions. 
 
Authorities also need to take account of your duties under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh language standards in preparing plans for 
2020-21. 
 
This provisional settlement provides you with the information you need to plan your budgets 
for 2020-21 and to consider how best you engage with your local communities in 
formulating your proposals and making budget decisions. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Julie James AC/AM 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government 

Tudalen 87



Tudalen wag



Welsh Local Government Revenue Settlement 2020-2021

Provisional

Table 1a: Change in Aggregate External Finance (AEF) plus floor funding, adjusted for 

transfers, by Unitary Authority

£'000s

Isle of Anglesey 97,324 101,005 3.8% 18

Gwynedd 179,375 187,579 4.6% 6

Conwy 156,064 161,398 3.4% 21

Denbighshire 145,713 151,932 4.3% 11

Flintshire 192,212 199,386 3.7% 19

Wrexham 178,121 184,296 3.5% 20

Powys 176,940 184,289 4.2% 14

Ceredigion 103,308 107,646 4.2% 13

Pembrokeshire 164,153 172,204 4.9% 3

Carmarthenshire 262,611 274,159 4.4% 10

Swansea 325,697 339,381 4.2% 12

Neath Port Talbot 217,091 226,762 4.5% 8

Bridgend 193,949 203,127 4.7% 5

The Vale of Glamorgan 153,453 161,021 4.9% 2

Rhondda Cynon Taf 372,105 388,666 4.5% 9

Merthyr Tydfil 92,332 96,810 4.8% 4

Caerphilly 272,212 283,367 4.1% 16

Blaenau Gwent 111,727 116,063 3.9% 17

Torfaen 134,373 140,467 4.5% 7

Monmouthshire 94,896 97,760 3.0% 22

Newport 216,443 228,077 5.4% 1

Cardiff 450,512 469,047 4.1% 15

Total unitary authorities 4,290,612 4,474,444 4.3%

* The published AEF for 2019-20 final Aggregate External Finance is subject to a number of adjustments set out 

in Table 6

Unitary Authority

2019-20 

final 

Aggregate 

External 

Finance* 

plus floor 

funding

2020-21 

provisional 

Aggregate 

External 

Finance

Percentage 

difference
Rank

Tudalen 89



Tudalen wag



APPENDIX  4

£'000

Total resources available in 2020/2021 508,751                        

LESS: Total resources available in 2019/2020 483,469                        

INCREASE in resources available in 2020/2021 25,282                          

£'000

Allocation of Resources 

Delegated Schools Budget 12,789                          

Education & Inclusion Services 424                               

Community & Children's Services 9,344                            

Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services (896)

Chief Executive 780

Authority Wide Requirements 2,841

25,282                          

AVAILABLE REVENUE RESOURCES 2020/21 AND PROPOSED USAGE

Tudalen 91



PROPOSED REVENUE BUDGET 2020/21

Education & Inclusion Services 

Delegated Schools  Budgets 

£'000

Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 148,849

Increase 12,789

Proposed Net Revenue Budget 2020/21  161,638

Non Delegated Budgets

£'000

Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 30,649

Base and Inflationary Pressures 1,125                              

General Efficiencies (701)

Proposed Net Revenue Budget 2020/21  31,073

Total Net Revenue Budget 2020/21 192,711

Tudalen 92



Community & Children's Services

£'000

Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 153,264

Base and Inflationary Pressures 13,069

General Efficiencies (2,675)

Other Cost Reduction Measures (1,050)

Proposed Net Revenue Budget 2020/21  162,608

Tudalen 93



Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services 

£'000

Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 56,876

Base and Inflationary Pressures 1,922

General Efficiencies (1,366)

Other Cost Reduction Measures (1,452)

Proposed Net Revenue Budget 2020/21  55,980

Tudalen 94



Chief Executive 

£'000

Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 25,979

Base and Inflationary Pressures 2,077

General Efficiencies (1,258)

Other Cost Reduction Measures (39)

Proposed Net Revenue Budget 2020/21  26,759

 Cust Care - Engage software licences 

 Corp Est - Office Accom 

 Corp Est - Brynffynon Clinic 

 HR - GR4 post for Registration of Care Staff  

 HR - Texthelp software licence 

 Legal - Elections team restructure 

 Democratic Serv - Members Broadband 

 Democratic Serv - Cabinet & PR Salaries 

 LGPS Reduction 

 Digital 

Total - Base and Inflationary Pressures 

General Efficiencies

General Efficiencies

Tudalen 95



Authority Wide

£'000

Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 67,852

Increase 2,841

Proposed Net Revenue Budget 2020/21  70,693

Use of Reserves (Transition Funding) -804 

Tudalen 96



Budget Consultation 2020/21 
(Phase 1)

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough 
Council

January 2020

APPENDIX 5

Tudalen 97



Budget Consultation 2020/21

2

CONTENTS

Section Page
Executive Summary 3

1. Introduction 6

2. Background 6

3. Methodology 8

4. Questionnaire Results 10

5. Engagement Events 25

6. Young Persons Engagement 33

7. Social Media Feedback 36

FIGURES AND TABLES

Table Page
1 Council Tax preference 10

2 Areas to protect from increase 12

3 Council services to be protected and prioritised 15

4 Key areas of focus 20

5 Areas of Investment 21

6 Engagement exercise priorities 25

7 Youth engagement priorities 33

Figure
1 Preferred level of Council Tax increase 11

2 Agreement with Schools Budget increase 12

3 Efficiency comments 16

4 Agreement with focus on 5 key areas 21

5 Investment comments 22

6 Social media poll 1 results 36

7 Social media poll 2 results 37

Tudalen 98



Budget Consultation 2020/21

3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

 This section provides a summary of the main findings from the Phase 1 
Budget Consultation 2020/21.

 The consultation was conducted in-house.  The consultation period ran 
from the 21st November and ended on the 16th December 2019.

 The following methods were used to consult with stakeholders;
- An online questionnaire
- A number of Town Centre, Leisure Centre and Library events
- Promotion through Social media
- Questions/polls on social media
- Youth Forum
- Older Persons Advisory Group Meeting
- Disability Forum Meeting 
- Finance & Performance Scrutiny Committee
- Promotion with the Citizen’s Panel
- An email sent to key stakeholders, including Community and 

Town Councils, Trade Unions, Councillors, Local AM’s and MPs

 The results of the budget questionnaire (305 responses) showed that the 
majority of respondents felt that the Council should protect services at 
their current level, through a 3% increase in Council Tax (80.8%).  

 The majority of respondents (60.9%) would prefer a 3% increase in 
Council Tax (the current proposed level), with 24.2% stating less than 
3% and 11.1% suggesting more than a 3% increase.

 78% of respondents agreed that the Council should provide sufficient 
resources to fully cover increased pay costs in our schools.

 Respondents were asked to state which services they would want to 
protect from an increase in fees and charges in 2020/21, based on the 
assumption that they would be increased by 1.5% (i.e. the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI)).  The majority of respondents felt that the fees and 
charges for the following services should be frozen (no increase);
- Meals on Wheels (53.9%);
- Bereavement Fees (53.5%);
- School Meals (53.2%); and
- Adult Social Care Charges (51.2%).

Those services where the majority of respondents suggested an 
increase of 1.5% (CPI level) were;
- Leisure Centre Pay and Play (55.4%);
- Leisure Centre Membership (53.9%); and
- Cinema (entrance fee) (51.9%).

Tudalen 99



Budget Consultation 2020/21

4

 Respondents were provided with a list of Council services and asked to 
choose which services should be protected and prioritised for any 
additional resources in 2020/21. Respondents fed back that the majority 
of services listed be prioritised and protected with the exception of;

- Music Service (63.5% do not protect); and 
- Cultural, Tourism and Heritage Services (57.7% do not protect).

 The top 5 services that respondents wanted to protect and prioritise 
were;

- Children’s Social Care Services (93.8%);
- Schools (90%);
- Adult Social Care Services (86.9%);
- Highways, Transport and Street Care Services (81.9%); and
- Waste and Recycling Services (78.1%). 

 Respondents were provided with the following statement and asked 
whether they thought this was a good strategy.

Each year in balancing our budget and ensuring the effective use of 
resources, all our service managers are required to contribute toward a 
council-wide efficiency (savings) target of £6M.  This means that all of 
our services are becoming more efficient, without impacting on front line 
services.

The majority of respondents thought that this was a good strategy 
(90.6%) and 91.8% said that we should continue to expect our managers 
to deliver more efficient services.

 Respondents were asked if they thought the Council should focus on a 
number of key areas.  The majority of respondents agreed with all of the 
key areas, with the highest response being for Early Intervention and 
Prevention (88.9%).

Yes (%) No (%) Don’t know 
(%)

Digitalisation 79.2 13.0 7.8
Commercialisation 72.6 17.8 9.6
Early Intervention and Prevention 88.9 5.7 5.4
Independence 80.8 12.0 7.2
Efficient and Effective Organisation 85.0 7.8 7.2

 Respondents were asked if they thought the Council should invest in a 
number of service areas.  The majority of respondents agreed that the 
Council should invest in all of the areas listed, with the most support for 
Extra Care/Community Hubs (83.9%) followed by Roads & Transport 
(80.3%).

 Respondents were provided with the following statement and asked 
whether they thought the Council should continue with such a strategy.

Tudalen 100



Budget Consultation 2020/21

5

For a number of years the Council has used one off reserves (£1.1M for 
2019/20) to balance its budget alongside delivering savings early in 
subsequent years to replace these reserves.  It does so as part of a 
medium term financial strategy recognising that managing and balancing 
our budget is not a one off annual process

The majority of respondents (81.1%) fed back that the Council should 
continue with this strategy.

 At the public engagement events respondents were provided with a 
number of Council investment opportunities and asked to choose their 
top priorities, using “RCT money”.  There were 11 investment boxes to 
choose from and people were given £1000 (1x £500, 1x £300, 1x £150 
and 1x £50) and then asked to distribute the money.  The following table 
shows the results of the engagement exercise;

Investment opportunities Total
Extra Care & Community Hubs £35,900
21st Century Schools £29,150
Roads & Transport £23,950
Employment £22,750
Recycling & Environment £20,900
Play Areas £20,800
Towns & Regeneration £17,700
Empty Properties £13,200
Leisure £9,500
Events & Arts £6,200
Flood Alleviation £5,800
Other £4,700

 An engagement session was held with members of the OPAG (Older 
Persons Advisory Group).  The general consensus from members of the 
group was to increase Council Tax and protect services.  Comments are 
found in 5.6 - 5.11 of the report.

 An engagement session was held with the Rhondda Cynon Taf Disability 
Forum.  Comments are found in section 5.13 - 5.17 of the report.

 The Council’s Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee were 
consulted with (the minutes of which have not been included in this 
report) and a link to the consultation was circulated to all members of the 
School Budget Forum.

 An engagement event was held in Aberdare with young people from the 
youth forums in RCT.  Comments are found in section 6 of the report.

 3,966 people were engaged in the phase 1 budget consultation.

Tudalen 101



Budget Consultation 2020/21

6

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report presents the findings of the Phase 1 Budget Consultation 
2020/21.

1.2 Section 2 outlines some brief background to the consultation process.

1.3 Section 3 details the methodology.

1.4 Section 4 provides the results of the online questionnaire.

1.5 Section 5 presents the feedback received at the engagement road 
show events, the Older Persons Advisory Group and Disability Forum 
meeting.

1.6 Section 6 provides feedback on the young persons’ engagement 
events.

1.7 Section 7 provides the results of Social Media polls and some 
comments.

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Council undertakes a comprehensive approach to its annual budget 
consultation, involving a large number of residents and key stakeholders.  

2.2 The widespread approach we use and the range of views we capture 
provides senior managers and Cabinet Members with the necessary 
information they need to set the budget for the year ahead. In addition, 
we have found that the vast amount of information we collect can also 
be valuable for service managers to use for their service planning and 
development.

2.3 Following the announcement of the General Election, the Welsh 
Government budget settlement to Local Government for the 2020/21 
financial year was delayed.  As a result Rhondda Cynon Taf’s 2020/21 
Budget Consultation is a phased approach, so that we can ensure 
residents and stakeholders have as much opportunity as possible to 
provide views on the budget and to make sure that views are informed 
by the most up to date and relevant information. 

2.4 This report presents the findings of phase 1 of the budget consultation, 
where views were sought on;

 level of Council Tax increase;

Tudalen 102



Budget Consultation 2020/21

7

 the resources allocated to our schools;
 fees and charges levels;
 protection and prioritisation of services for additional resources; 
 delivering more efficient services; 
 Council priorities, investment opportunities and Council reserves; 

and
 Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

2.5 Phase 1 started on the 21st November and ended on the 16th December 
2019.

2.6 Phase 2 of the consultation will commence in January 2020 and will seek 
to obtain views on the proposed Budget Strategy for 2020/21.

Tudalen 103



Budget Consultation 2020/21

8

3. METHODOLOGY

3.1 Phase 1 of the Council’s budget consultation ran from 21st November to 
the 16th December 2019.

3.2 The following methods were used to consult with stakeholders;

 An online questionnaire.
 A number of Town Centre, Leisure Centre and Library events.
 Promotion through Social media.
 Questions/polls on social media.
 Youth Forum.
 Older Persons Advisory Group Meeting.
 Disability Forum Meeting. 
 Promotion with the Citizen’s Panel.
 An email was sent to key stakeholders, including Community and 

Town Councils, Trade Unions, Councillors, Local AM’s and MPs.

3.3 The following engagement events took place during the consultation; 

Tuesday 26th November Pontypridd Library
Tuesday 26th November Llantrisant Leisure Centre
Wednesday 27th November Porth Library
Thursday 28th November Ferndale Hub
Thursday 28th November Sobell Leisure Centre
Wednesday 4th December Treorchy Co-op (with Recycling Team)
Wednesday 4th December Rhondda Sports Centre
Thursday 5th December Abercynon Library

Friday 6th December
Aberdare town centre (with recycling 
team)

Monday 9th December Porth Morrisons
Monday 9th December Sobell Leisure Centre
Tuesday 10th December Hirwaun Library

Wednesday 11th December
Pontypridd town centre (with recycling 
team)

Thursday 12th December Llantrisant Leisure Centre
Friday 13th December Mountain Ash Hub 

3.4 At the events, members of the public were invited to have a discussion 
with Officers and Councillors about the Council’s budget, investments 
and any problems or queries they may have had. A number of budget 
boxes were used and “RCT money” was used to allow people to choose 
their investment priorities.  Comments and ideas were also noted for this 
report.  

Tudalen 104



Budget Consultation 2020/21

9

3.5 The Council’s Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee were 
consulted with (the minutes of which have not been included in this 
report) and a link to the consultation was circulated to all members of the 
School Budget Forum.

3.6 3,966 people were engaged in the phase 1 budget consultation. 

Tudalen 105



Budget Consultation 2020/21

10

4 Questionnaire Results

4.1 The following section outlines the results from the budget questionnaire, 
which received 305 online responses.  A selection of comments are 
provided and the full list of comments will be provided to Cabinet and 
senior officers to assist with decision making.

Council Tax
 
4.2 The majority of respondents felt that the Council should protect services 

at their current level through a 3% increase (80.8%).  

Table 1:  Council Tax preference

%

Do you think the Council should……
Protect Council services at their current level through a 3% 
increase in Council Tax

80.8%

Reduce service levels to close any budget gap and keep 
any increase in Council Tax to a minimum

19.2%

A selection of comments can be found below;

Agree to maintain services and increase Council Tax

“A 3% increase is still quite low and is preferable to service closures”

“modest increases above 3% in line with neighbouring authorities would 
be justifiable to maintain and stabilise existing service levels”

“As a council tax payer I would happily accept an increase if it means 
that the Council can continue with the services it provides”

“no more than 3% or 4%”

“If a 3% increase enabled services to maintain current level of delivery 
then I would welcome this”

No increase in Council Tax

“A 3% increase means a tangible loss to my disposable income”

“Council tax is too high already”

Tudalen 106



Budget Consultation 2020/21

11

“The Council tax can’t keep going up, it’s like another mortgage, people 
are struggling as it is”.

Neither option

“protect services, but no council tax increase”

“neither, it may only be 3% but we are already one of the highest”

“neither, already paying too much for a reduced service, a reduction of 
council tax is needed”

“Neither, too many services have already been cut”

Other 

“Government needs to fund services better”

“services cannot be cut further, health education and social care are at 
breaking point already”

4.3 Respondents were also asked what their preferred level of Council Tax 
increase for next year would be.  The results show that the majority of 
respondents (60.9%) would prefer a 3% increase (the current proposed 
level), 24.2% stating less than 3%, 11.1% suggesting an increase of 
more than 3% and 3.8% indicating more than 5%. 

Figure 1 - Preferred level of Council Tax increase

Tudalen 107



Budget Consultation 2020/21

12

Schools Budget

4.4 78% of respondents agreed that the Council should provide sufficient 
resources to fully cover increased pay costs in our schools.

Figure 2 - Agreement with Schools Budget increase

Fees and Charges

4.5 Respondents were asked to state which services they would want to 
protect from an increase in fees and charges in 2020/21, based on the 
assumption that they would be increased by 1.5% (i.e. the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI)). 

Table 2: Areas to protect from increase
 

Analysis %
Respondents

Total

CPI 
(increase 
(1.5%)

Higher than 
CPI (higher 
than 1.5% 
increase)

Freeze 
(no 
increase)

School meals 301 37.9% 9.0% 53.1%

Leisure Centre Membership 297 53.8% 19.9% 26.3%

Leisure Centre Pay and Play 296 55.4% 20.6% 24.0%

Summer and Winter Playing 
Fees (Sports Clubs)

297 43.8% 16.8% 39.4%

Tudalen 108



Budget Consultation 2020/21

13

Parking Charges 298 35.9% 15.8% 48.3%

Cinema (entrance fee) 297 51.9% 24.9% 23.2%

Pontypridd Lido (entry for 
adult users)

298 47.3% 37.9% 14.8%

Meals on Wheels 297 31.3% 14.8% 53.9%

Adult Social Care Charges 
(non-residential care 
services)

299 41.1% 7.7% 51.2%

Bereavement Fees 299 38.1% 8.4% 53.5%

4.6 The table shows that the majority (i.e. 50% or more) of respondents felt 
that fees and charges for the following services should be frozen (no 
increase);

 Meals on Wheels (53.9%);
 Bereavement Fees (53.5%);
 School Meals (53.2%); and
 Adult Social Care Charges (51.2%).

Those services with a majority suggesting an increase at 1.5% (i.e. the 
CPI level) were;

 Leisure Centre Pay and Play (55.4%);
 Leisure Centre Membership (53.9%); and
 Cinema (entrance fee) (51.9%).

It is worth noting that 37.9% of respondents suggested an increase 
higher than the CPI of 1.5% for the Pontypridd Lido, with only 14.8% 
suggesting a freeze.

4.7 A selection of comments are provided below;

Overall

“If you freeze some and increase others by more than 1.5%, you are 
penalising some areas.  Increases across the board would seem 
fairer….”

“some of the above [list of fees] are considered a luxury for low income 
families, they would not want to pay for those additional, so I recommend 
that they are increased and costs reduced for essential services”

“Increase costs for those that choose to use facilities…. Services that 
are non-choice e.g. Bereavement services, should be frozen”

Tudalen 109



Budget Consultation 2020/21

14

“Where things are essential then CPI seems reasonable, where extras 
then why not pay more”.

School Meals

“working parents in the Rhondda have been struggling it is important that 
children get a decent meal”

“school meals might be defined as a social service and therefore more 
essential than purely entertainment functions”

“school meals are often the only meal”

Leisure

“…. Services like leisure memberships have room to increase in price 
while still competitive with big chains”

“start raising fees on leisure and cinemas, which lets face it are a 
luxury….”

Parking Charges

“increasing parking charges will further reduce footfall to local towns and 
businesses…”

Cinema

“If cinema fees were to increase then the cost would be much higher 
than commercial competitors within the area…”

Pontypridd Lido

“entrance fees for Lido are too low”

“…I would not mind an increase in the current adult fees, as the Lido 
provides such a vast and dynamic swimming and leisure experience”.

Adult Social Care Charges

“social care fees should be kept as low as possible, since they apply to 
the most vulnerable of our residents”

“I believe no further increases for vulnerable elderly adults”

Bereavement Fees

“Funeral poverty is resulting in a drain in local Authority purse as more    
families decline to make arrangements for loved ones….”

Tudalen 110



Budget Consultation 2020/21

15

Other

“Fees directly involving children and their wellbeing should remain 
frozen…”

Council Services

4.8 Respondents were provided with a list of Council services and asked to 
choose which services should be protected and prioritised for any 
additional resources in 2020/21 and those that should not be protected.

Table 3: Council services to be protected and prioritised

4.9 The majority of services listed were asked to be prioritised and protected 
with the exception of;

 Music Service (63.5% do not protect); and 
 Cultural, Tourism and Heritage Services (57.7% do not protect). 

 
Protect and 

Prioritise
Do Not 
Protect

Schools (Current budget £153M) 90.0% 10.0%

School Support Services (£16M) 71.1% 28.9%

Libraries and Adult Learning (£3M) 53.0% 47.0%

Apprenticeship Scheme (£0.2M) 71.5% 28.5%

Youth Provision (£2M) 73.7% 26.3%

Access, Engagement & Inclusion (£10M) 51.8% 48.2%

Adult Social Care Services (£89M) 86.9% 13.1%

Children’s Social Care Services (£46M) 93.8% 6.2%

Public Health (£5M) 70.4% 29.6%
Housing (£1M) 62.0% 38.0%
Parks (£5M) 61.2% 38.8%
Highways, Transport and Street care Services (£28M) 81.9% 18.1%

Waste and Recycling Services (£18M) 78.1% 21.9%

Cultural, Tourism and Heritage Services (£2M) 42.3% 57.7%
Regeneration (£1.5M) 59.7% 40.3%

Leisure Services (£4M) 51.1% 48.9%

Music Service (£0.1M) 36.5% 63.5%

Tudalen 111



Budget Consultation 2020/21

16

4.10 The top 5 services that respondents wanted to protect and prioritise 
were;

 Children’s Social Care Services (93.8%);
 Schools (90%);
 Adult Social Care Services (86.9%);
 Highways, Transport and Street care Services (81.9%); and
 Waste and Recycling Services (78.1%).

Efficiencies

4.11 Respondents were provided with the following statement and asked 
whether they thought this was a good strategy.

Each year in balancing our budget and ensuring the effective use of 
resources, all our service managers are required to contribute toward a 
council-wide efficiency (savings) target of £6M.  This means that all of 
our services are becoming more efficient, without impacting on front line 
services.

The majority of respondents thought this was a good strategy (90.6%) 
and 91.8% said that we should continue to expect our managers to 
deliver more efficient services.

4.12 The word cloud/map below provides a simple illustrated snapshot of 
some of the main efficiency saving comments received.

Tudalen 112



Budget Consultation 2020/21

17

Figure 3 – Efficiency comments

4.13 The following comments provide some of the examples of how 
respondents felt the Council could be more efficient;

Note: A large number of responses were received and will be available to 
Councillors and Officers as part of the reporting process.

Energy Efficiency

“should become more efficient in regards to where its electric comes 
from, save money long term…”

“I think that being eco-friendly needs to be a priority”

“maximise opportunities provided by Council’s land and Buildings for 
local production of electricity and associated cost reduction and income 
generation”

Senior managers and Councillors

“too many managers and with too high salaries”

“too many high earners within the Council”

Tudalen 113



Budget Consultation 2020/21

18

Buildings

“”reduce number of council buildings”

“more energy efficient buildings”

“reduce the number of Council buildings across RCT”

“reduction in real estate”

Enforcement

“Actively fine residents for putting refuse out all weekend… fines for dog 
fouling”

Digitalisation/Agile working

“more agile work, less building and travel”

“better use of technology by staff and customers to provide the 
necessary services”

“offer home working ….which will cut down on office space dramatically”

“home working to reduce council offices”

“do more online”

“increase mobile working and investment in technology to enable such 
scenarios”

Difficult for more Efficiency

“I think we’ve cut just about cut all we can in terms of frontline services”

“You can only become so efficient before you’re just making cuts”

Income generation

“look at ways of increasing income”

“Income generation –advertising”

Other

“ask people to opt in for Welsh rather than sending all correspondence 
in dual languages”

Tudalen 114



Budget Consultation 2020/21

19

“I would like to see the authority bid for more grant funding”

4.14 Respondents were given the opportunity to provide any other comments 
on the budget and the following is a selection of those received:

Efficiency

“You cannot expect a continuous reduction whether you want to call it 
sheer cuts or "making it more efficient"

“There is a limit to efficiency savings - too far and the service will become 
inefficient as there won’t be enough staff to deliver any sort of service”

“Efficiency savings should only be made where they do not have a direct 
impact on front line services such as adult and child care, health and 
education”

“General efficiency savings are welcomed (so long as they focus on 
natural wastage rather than redundancies and closing down 
services)…..”

Staff/Employment

“Job cuts in local authorities are not the way forward.  We need to 
maintain an effective working local authority that we can all be proud of”

“Offer homeworking/agile working to all members of staff, which will cut 
down office space dramatically.”

“More opportunities should be given to more people leaving school and 
commencing full time employment. Such as more apprenticeship post 
and more graduate posts being created”

Social Care

“The council could release pressure on its social care budgets if they 
develop "Council social care apprenticeships" and create opportunities 
for young people to get a foothold onto employment or step-up to further 
education in social care, particularly those without good parental 
guidance or from poorer households that may not have any direction.”

“More local access/services/support for Families/Children/Adults of all 
ages, with Long-Term health/wellbeing/learning Difficulties & 
Disabilities”

Schools

“I think that schools should be a priority for the Council.”

Tudalen 115



Budget Consultation 2020/21

20

“More money for schools and social care”

Positive

“Compared to other councils the services in RCT are fairly good

“It has been good to see investment made in areas such as Taff Vale 
even though Council budgets are reducing”

“The public events are helpful to understand things better”

“Generally, I think you do an amazing job trying to balance the books, 
protect vital services and keep everyone happy. My experience as a 
householder of recycling is excellent (RCT is way ahead of many English 
counties where we have friends).” 

“Good to see the council managing the budget better than most”

Other 

“More investment in regeneration projects”

“Lobby for more funding”

“investment into leisure and sport to ensure people can be active/healthy 
and accessible opportunities in leisure facilities and playing fields/3gs for 
clubs and community groups”

“Look at ways to generate more income”

“We need to look economic growth. Reignite the business club. 
Stimulate future business startup appetite in RCT in schools.”

The Council’s Priorities

4.15 The Council focuses on five key areas to maximise resources and deliver 
improved services.

- Digitalisation – taking the opportunity new technology provides to 
deliver better services for residents, visitors, businesses and how we 
operate internally

- Commercialisation – utilising our scale and expertise to deliver 
services for other organisations and customers and thereby generate 
income

- Early Intervention and Prevention – investing in preventative 
services to deliver savings in the medium term.

- Independence – reshaping our services for vulnerable residents to 
ensure that we promote independence and deliver first class care 
services.

Tudalen 116



Budget Consultation 2020/21

21

- Efficient and Effective Organisation – challenging our ongoing 
service delivery and driving out further efficiencies through for 
example, a reduction in administration costs and reducing property 
costs linked to new ways of working, for example through agile 
working.

4.16 Respondents were asked if they thought the Council should focus on 
these key areas.  As you can see in the table and figure below, the 
majority of respondents agreed with all of the key areas, with the highest 
response being for Early Intervention and Prevention (88.9%).

Table 4: Key areas of focus
Yes (%) No (%) DK (%)

Digitalisation 79.2 13.0 7.8
Commercialisation 72.6 17.8 9.6
Early Intervention and Prevention 88.9 5.7 5.4
Independence 80.8 12.0 7.2
Efficient and Effective Organisation 85.0 7.8 7.2

                                         Figure 4 - Agreement with focus on 5 key areas

Council Investment Opportunities

4.17 Respondents were asked if they thought the Council should invest in a 
number of service areas.  As you can see the majority of respondents 
agreed that the Council should invest in all of the areas suggested, with 
the most support for Extra Care/Community Hubs (83.9%), followed by 
Roads & Transport (80.3%).

Table 5: Areas of Investment

Tudalen 117



Budget Consultation 2020/21

22

4.18 The word cloud/map below provides a simple illustrated snapshot of 
some of the main investment comments received.

 
Analysis %
Respondents

Yes No
Don't 
Know

21st Century Schools (new and remodelled schools) 72.5% 18.0% 9.5%
Roads &Transport (repairs and resurfacing and major 
projects such as A4119 dualling, Llanharan bypass 
and Mountain Ash Cross Valley link

80.3% 15.2% 4.5%

Recycling & the Environment (improving recycling 
performance)

76.5% 19.7% 3.8%

Town Centres & Regeneration (improving the town 
centres eg. Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd)

71.6% 22.9% 5.5%

Empty Properties (Grant to bring properties back into 
use)

76.0% 18.1% 5.9%

Leisure (improvements to facilities) 54.3% 36.4% 9.3%
Play Areas and Parks (upgrading the equipment and 
standard)

68.2% 25.4% 6.4%

Extra Care/Community Hubs (focus on 
independence for older people)

83.9% 10.6% 5.5%

Employment (apprenticeships and graduate 
placements)

74.4% 18.4% 7.2%

Events/Arts (investment in attractions and theatres) 47.9% 41.2% 10.9%
Flood Alleviation (investing in flood prevention 
schemes)

70.2% 21.1% 8.7%

Tudalen 118



Budget Consultation 2020/21

23

Figure 5 – Investment comments

4.19 The following are a selection of comments received on the Council’s 
investment areas;

21st Century Schools

“Remodelling of old school buildings is necessary but I don’t believe the 
formation of large through schools will benefit the pupils living in areas 
of deprivation.”

“The school building is not important it is the level of teaching that 
matters.”

Roads & Transport

“Transport, there needs to be planning for cycle paths in every new road 
project. It is ridiculous to improve roads without adding safe cycle routes”

Tudalen 119



Budget Consultation 2020/21

24

“Given the need to get more private cars off the roads the transport 
expenditure should be focussed on improving public transport, 
particularly in the evenings and at weekends (including public holidays)”

Recycling & the Environment

“I think we are doing enough at present in regards to recycling in RCT 
and continue at this level without an increase in investment”

“Look at circular economy for waste management. Is there anything you 
can reclaim and resell?”

“Must invest in areas of council activity which support climate change 
adaptation and Net Zero commitments”

Town Centres & Regeneration

“Town centres have become a thing of the past, everything is done online 
and I feel no matter what is done, numbers will not rise to a significant 
level to justify money being used”

“Regeneration on towns on a need basis.  Get in get each town clean 
tidy and nice to visit.”

Empty Properties

“Tackling empty buildings needs to be considered”

“Maybe incentives for empty shops and 'start up' businesses”

Leisure

“playing field improvements and 3g usage over weekends”

“Green playing fields and changing facilities must meet minimum 
standards to help community groups promote leisure activities”

Extra Care/Community Hubs

“Extra Care/community Hubs - shouldn’t be focused on just, 
independence for older people (ONLY) *It should be Independence for 
ALL AGES*”

Employment

“More jobs need creating in the valleys so that so many people don't 
need to be leaving to go out of the valleys on a daily basis, causing 
endless traffic and air pollution”

Tudalen 120



Budget Consultation 2020/21

25

“more apprenticeships and work experience opportunities”

“Small business and start up grant provision would be good”

Events/Arts

“Leisure Arts investment should be tied to ability to generate income - 
people expect a certain standard of provision and may pay more if this 
standard is exceeded.”

Flood Alleviation

“If flood prevention was more prominent would likely save in long term 
against home/business owners claiming due to damages etc.”

“With regards to flood alleviation ... more emphasis should be put on 
house building companies to contribute more to such schemes.”  

Other

“Good to see so much investment in RCT”

“I consider those chosen are necessities which should be prioritised for 
investment first given the financial difficulties.”

“Would like to see more money in youth services”

Council Reserves

4.20 Respondents were provided with the following statement and asked if 
they thought that the Council should continue with such a strategy.

For a number of years the Council has used one off reserves (£1.1M for 
2019/20) to balance its budget alongside delivering savings early in 
subsequent years to replace these reserves.  It does so as part of a 
medium term financial strategy recognising that managing and balancing 
our budget is not a one off annual process

The majority of respondents (81.1%) think the Council should continue 
with this strategy.

5. ENGAGEMENT EVENTS

Tudalen 121



Budget Consultation 2020/21

26

5.1 This section outlines the results of the face to face consultation 
discussions held in the town centres, leisure centres and libraries along 
with feedback received from the older person’s advisory group (OPAG) 
and Disability Forum meetings.

5.2 A large number of engagement events were held across Rhondda 
Cynon Taf, the details of which are provided in the methodology.  

5.3 The engagement events and meetings form part of the Council’s ongoing 
approach to face to face resident engagement.

Council Investment Areas 

5.4 Respondents were provided with a number of Council investment 
opportunities and asked to choose their top priorities, using “RCT 
money”.  There were 11 investment boxes to choose from and people 
were given £1000 (1x £500, 1x £300, 1x £150 and 1x £50) and then 
asked to distribute the money.

5.5 The following table shows the results of the engagement exercise;

Table 6: Engagement exercise priorities

Investment opportunities Total
Extra Care & Community Hubs £35,900
21st Century Schools £29,150
Roads & Transport £23,950
Employment £22,750
Recycling & Environment £20,900
Play Areas £20,800
Towns & Regeneration £17,700
Empty Properties £13,200
Leisure £9,500
Events & Arts £6,200
Flood Alleviation £5,800
Other £4,700

A selection of the comments received are shown below;

21st Century Schools

“Schools is most important to me”

Tudalen 122



Budget Consultation 2020/21

27

“Schools always need money.” 

“Schools / education is really important.”

Roads & Transport

“Roads & Transport - there are a lot more cars on the road now.”

“Roads and transport box should be divided into roads and another.  
Public transport to improve roads need to get people to use public 
transport.”

“Roads need investment, topography, weather affects roads, bring them 
up to standard”

“Roads always need improving”

Recycling & the Environment

“Recycling & Environment - Pontyclun pretty lucky around here - good 
recycling / rubbish”

“Recycling - Llantwit Fardre - opening times restricted not helpful went 
to pick up recycling bags and closed in day”

“Recycling - environmental needs to be a separate box, climate change 
affects everything”

“Recycling is important to us - hope this touches on flooding and 
investment would improve this.”

“Recycling is good here!”

“Pretty good recycling”

“Dog mess is a big issue in lane by my house I report it to Council and 
they are good at responding”

“Invest much more in protecting the environment and educating the 
people how to do so.  Focus on - recycling, reducing carbon footprint and 
sustainability.”

“Pest Control should be free and not have to pay £28”

“Recycling - this is important”

“Keeping streets clean will help with flooding”

Town Centres & Regeneration

Tudalen 123



Budget Consultation 2020/21

28

“If Town centres were regenerated, you wouldn't have big retail parks 
and would have more green spaces which would also be good for 
environment.”

“Towns & Regeneration - Aberdare needs shops”

“Aberdare - Car parks now cheaper is brilliant - noticed an increase in 
cars in parks”

“Towns - nothing to draw me to Porth - lots of pound shops, mostly go to 
Talbot Green - parking is important.”

“Towns - need a variety of shops - older people will miss out as there's 
nothing to do here.  Big name shops closing so affects smaller shops.”

“Treorchy good town centre”

“Aberdare needs more done”

“Town centre - too many empty shops / up for sale as businesses 
leaving.  Council reduce business rates”

Empty Properties

“Council tax - empty properties, If it were my house, it's my money, I 
should be able to do with what I want.”

“Empty properties important, little space to build new.  Turn empty pubs 
into flats”

“It depends on circumstances (empty properties), e.g. if a parent dies 
and then you need to clean the house and try to sell it, which could take 
up to a year…”

“We've got 2 empty properties, had leaflets through our door about this 
and it's pushing us to do something so it's good”

“Ferndale - Council could do more about empty properties in the area.”

“Empty properties - housing and affordable housing is a problem.  I agree 
with tax for empty properties.”

“Empty Properties - should have a limit of 10 years whereby after that, 
the council buys it and takes over.  There should be standards.”

“Empty properties - if a property is empty for more than 5 years it should 
be bought back by the Council so it won't be empty anymore.”

Tudalen 124



Budget Consultation 2020/21

29

Leisure

“Leisure has too much funding already”

“Leisure is really important to help keep people healthy”

Play Areas and Parks

“Children play area don't need as many outside activities but think inside 
activities to keep entertained.”

“Parks important especially for young people”

“Play areas - Better lighting needed in children’s’ parks - in winter when 
dark early you can't go there”

“Play areas very important for the children”

Extra Care/Community Hubs

“Extra care - this is important as you've got to think about the future”

“Extra care - good idea.  I'm an ex NHS employee and know a lot of 
people struggle especially with mental health so these are good to 
socialise and support people without relying on NHS.”

“Extra care should stay local”

“Extra Care & Community Hubs - we use Cynon linc and this is good”

“Extra care is important for me as I get older”

Employment

“Employment - Metro - updated services - hopefully this will help jobs.  
Not a lot of jobs in Rhondda.”

“All for apprenticeships”

“Employment - having 2 grandchildren, this is important.”

Events/Arts

“Use Park and Dare it is a good cheap day out, with shows, school 
concerts and pantomimes.”

Tudalen 125



Budget Consultation 2020/21

30

“Events - Seems to be more happening in Coliseum Aberdare, more 
needed in Parc & Dare.”

“Parc and Dare needs a bit of tidying up.  Pricey”

Other

“money should be spent on libraries”

“Community libraries in smaller areas need money.”

“Free school meals for all low income households not just those 
unemployed for primary and secondary.”

“something for teenagers to get them out off the street”

“Homelessness + housing support is currently inadequate”

Older Person Advisory Group (OPAG)

5.6 An engagement session was held with members of the OPAG reflecting 
the questions asked in the online questionnaire.

The general consensus from all members of the OPAG was to increase 
Council Tax and protect services.   

 “It always go up and people expect it to go up about 4%”

“3% is about right.  Pembrokeshire went up 12%”

“3.6% was quite reasonable no need to reduce that, same as last year”

“Not getting council tax from empty properties.” 

5.7 Views on the School Budget included;

“That’s our future, you can’t deprive the future.”

“Some buildings need refurbishing”

“Encourage teachers to come in from other areas”

5.8 A number of Fees and Charges were discussed;

School meals

“Everything goes up and as long as it’s nutritious”

Tudalen 126



Budget Consultation 2020/21

31

“If you have a few children it can be difficult, we do fundraising with the 
schools.” 

Leisure;

“Not everybody can commit to a month, so it can be expensive to pay 
as you go” 

Sports clubs

“Small clubs can they afford it?  A lot of money for the kids clubs.  
Could freeze this one.” 

Lido

“Not expensive for swimming.”

5.9 Protect and Prioritise

Very difficult to go through the list, I don’t want to protect music, but 
there will be those that do.  All should be protected.

“Schools and libraries are a priority.”

“Youth provision”.

5.10 Efficiencies

“Normally means saving money, make everything going online, that this 
is not good for older people.  Good strategy but must still consider with 
older people.”  

"Can contribute to isolation.”

5.11 Council‘s Priorities

“Roads – think there is waste of money in filling pot holes, should do 
the whole road.”

“Invest in all of them.”

“Money seems to be going to some areas more than others, people are 
saying, but they say the same in different areas.”

Disability Forum

5.12 An engagement session was held with the Rhondda Cynon Taf Disability 
Forum where a presentation was given and a general discussion held 

Tudalen 127



Budget Consultation 2020/21

32

around the questions in the online questionnaire. A selection of the 
comments are shown below.

5.13 Council Tax

“Reshaping some of the services may make them better”.

“If increased, hope that it makes a difference to services.”

“Services are especially important for vulnerable people with mental 
health problems.”

“% increase will depend on pensions and allowances”.

“Councillor expenses are good value for money if they are doing a 
good job.”

“Increase makes sense if performance is good, if not there should not 
be an increase in council tax.”

“3% better than what has been suggested in Pembrokeshire”

5.14 Schools Budget

“What is cut because of the increase to schools?”

“What are the pension costs?”

“What happens to Special Needs Schools?”

5.15 Fees and Charges

“Freeze where possible.  Increase in leisure impacts on healthy 
lifestyles, the same for sports club fees, due to its impact on members.  
It should be access for all.”

“Freeze school meals”

“Adult social care gone up anyway, linked to NHS”

“Would freeze most as any increase would have an impact due to the 
poverty levels in the areas.”

Council Service Priorities

“Highways and footpaths should be prioritised for accessibility and 
safety, including crossings.”

Tudalen 128



Budget Consultation 2020/21

33

5.16 Efficiencies

“Yes, general agreement, should be more prominent.  Hold to account 
for the services they deliver.”

“Public views important to report issues and to hold the Council 
accountable.”

“Feedback on the consultation important.”

5.17 Investments

“Attract tourism for disabled people, there is a big opportunity here.”

“Roads a big yes, reduce congestion, will ultimately help everyone.”

“Cycle routes important to reduce congestion.”

6. YOUNG PERSON ENGAGEMENT 

6.1 An engagement event was held in Aberdare with young people from the 
youth forums across RCT.

Tudalen 129



Budget Consultation 2020/21

34

6.2 Feedback

The following section outlines some of the feedback received.  

6.3 Similar to the other engagement activities with members of the public, 
the young people were provided with a number of Council investment 
opportunities and asked to choose their top priorities, using “RCT 
money”.  There were 11 investment boxes to choose from and young 
people were given £1000 (1x £500, 1x £300, 1x £150 and 1x £50) and 
then asked to distribute the money.  Their priorities were as follows:

Table 7: Youth engagement priorities 

Investment opportunities Total
Recycling & Environment £4,000
Employment £2,800
Towns & Regeneration £2,450
Extra Care & Community Hubs £1,800
Play Areas £1,600
Other £1,550
Roads & Transport £1,400
Empty Properties £1,150
Events & Arts £1,000
Leisure £1,050
21st Century Schools £800
Flood Alleviation £400

6.4 As can be seen in the table above, the investment opportunities 
receiving the majority of money were recycling & environment, 
employment and towns and regeneration.

6.5 Following this exercise, the young people took part in a discussion with 
the consultation officers present asking what their priorities were, which 
boxes they had put their money in and why?  A selection of the 
comments can be found below:

What is your priority?

“Play areas and parks because I don’t think there are enough of them.  
I put £500 in the box.”

“£300 in recycling because black bags aren’t collected as much as they 
should be and more bins.”

“£50 in flood alleviation.”

Tudalen 130



Budget Consultation 2020/21

35

“£500 in town centres, I’d like to see more of what they’re doing in 
Ponty, Treorchy was shortlisted as one of the best towns.”

“£300 in transport and roads”

“£150 in unemployment”

“£50 on environment as we need more bins”

“£500 on town centres.”

“£300 on leisure as there’s not much for young people.  This forum – 
not many people know about it, it needs to be advertised more for 
young people.”

“£150 on parks for youth.”

“£50 unemployment as there’s not much around here, build up town 
centres, encourage people to come here.”

“£500 on roads.  It’s good to see connections and links to make people 
less reliant on cars.”

“£300 on the environment because of much of the same reason.”

“£150 on extra care because we need more for old people.”

“£50 for employment to try and improve employment areas for modern 
jobs.”

6.6 ‘Other’ was the sixth highest priority with £1,550 in the box.  The young 
people discussed why they had put their money in ‘Other’ and also 
went on to further discuss some of the other investment areas:

Other

“I didn’t know what to choose, I don’t like being limited with choices.”

“Travel.”

“Sexual health awareness and relationship in schools, it’s not LGBT 
inclusive, we need more pastoral care.”
“Play grounds and parks, it’s all well having them but they are 
unattended, invest in upkeep and maintenance.”

“Girl guiding & cadets are severely underfunded.  There are enough 
organisations they just have to be supported more.”

Tudalen 131



Budget Consultation 2020/21

36

“Buildings are run down and they aren’t doing anything with them, bring 
them back into use, i.e Co-op in Tonypandy”

“Free transport for young people, especially for education.  Education 
should be free and free to get to.”

“Young people miss out on a lot of opportunities as it’s expensive to get 
there.  Places aren’t easy to get to.”

“Improve transport and bring it back into the community.”

“Students would like to use the gym/leisure out of summer holidays to 
keep fit, not just in the summer holidays.”

7. Social Media Feedback 

7.1 The Council provided some questions, via a poll, for social media users 
on the Council’s Twitter and Facebook pages, providing an additional 
method for people to engage with the budget consultation process.

Tudalen 132



Budget Consultation 2020/21

37

7.2 The following results were received;

Poll 1 - Do you think the Council should: Protect Council services at 
current level through 3% increase in Council Tax? Or Reduce 
service levels to close budget gap and keep increase in Council Tax 
to a minimum?

Twitter results - 
English

Twitter results - 
Welsh 

Facebook results – 
English

Facebook results – 
Welsh 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Protect Reduce

Figure 6 – Social media poll 1 results

7.3 Poll 2 - To ensure the Council can continue to maintain & improve 
services in the face of continued cuts to public sector funding we are 
focusing on the areas: Early Intervention and Prevention, 
Digitalisation, Independence, Efficiency, Commercialisation. Do you 
agree with this approach?

Twitter results - 
English

Twitter results - 
Welsh 

Facebook results – 
English

Facebook results – 
Welsh 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Yes No

Figure 7 – Social media poll 2 results

Tudalen 133



Budget Consultation 2020/21

38

_____________________________________

Tudalen 134



Appendix 6

PHASE 1 BUDGET CONSULTATION (2020/21) - PRE-SCRUTINY OUTCOMES 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee held on 
Monday, 16 December 2019 at 5.00 pm at the Council Chambers, The Pavilions, 

Cambrian Park. Clydach Vale, Tonypandy, CF40 2XX.

County Borough Councillors - Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee 
Members in attendance:-

Councillor G Thomas Councillor S Bradwick
Councillor R Yeo Councillor J Williams

Councillor J Cullwick Councillor G Caple

Officers in attendance:-

Mr P Griffiths, Service Director – Finance & Improvement Services
Mr A Wilkins, Director of Legal Services

Mr S Gale, Director of Prosperity & Development
Mr T Jones, Service Director – ICT & Digital Services

County Borough Councillors in attendance:-

Councillor M Adams, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 Councillor R Bevan, Cabinet Member for Enterprise Development & Housing

Others:- 

Mr J. Fish, Voting Elected Parent / Governor Representative

30 Welcome 

The Vice Chair welcomed Members to the meeting of the Finance and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee and thanked everyone for attending. 

31  Declaration of Interest 

In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, there were no 
declarations made pertaining to the agenda.

32  Apologies 

Apologies of absence were received from County Borough Councillors M. 
Powell, M. Diamond, A. Davies-Jones, G. Holmes, W. Lewis, S. Rees-
Owen, A. Fox and T. Williams. 

Tudalen 135



33  Minutes 

It was RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the 4th of November 2019 as 
an accurate reflection of the meeting, subject to the following 
amendments:- 

 Item 24, page 7 to be amended as follows; “Councillor Thomas 
commented that the greater proportion of areas in the Cynon 
Valley are not being charged CIL”. 

Extract from Minutes 

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation, the Service Director – Finance & 
Improvement Services provided Members with an overview of the 2020/21 Revenue 
Budget Strategy Consultation and updated Committee on the following areas: 

 Approach for 2020/21 
 Consultation 

o Council Budget 2020/21
o The Council’s Priorities 
o Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
o Draft Corporate Plan 2020 – 24 

 Budget Setting Timetable 

Following the update, the Service Director indicated that the overview intended to 
assist Members in formulating their responses to a number of questions to be posed 
to the Committee, in line with its Terms of Reference and as a consultee as part of the 
2020/21 Revenue Budget Strategy Consultation process. The Service Director added 
that the feedback provided by Members would be presented to Cabinet alongside the 
feedback from all other consultees as part of Cabinet agreeing a proposed Budget 
Strategy for 2020/21. 

The Service Director sought feedback from the Committee on a number of areas and 
the views of Members are noted below. 

With regard to Question 1 on Council Tax, Members supported a less than 3% 
increase to help support the continuation of service provision in the context of rising 
cost pressures and demand for specific services. Members also commented that in 
setting the level of Council Tax for 2020/21 regard should be given to the level of 
funding the Council is anticipated to receive via the local government settlement from 
Welsh Government. 

In respect of Question 2 on Schools Budget, Committee Members agreed that the 
Council should provide sufficient resources to fully cover increased pay costs in 
schools throughout RCT. However, a member of the Committee highlighted that other 
cost pressures, over and above pay costs, should also be fully funded. An elected 
Member fed back that the same question should also be included as part of the 
consultation process for Community and Children’s Services and not just in respect of 
schools. 

Tudalen 136



For question 3 covering fees and charges, the following points were fed back: 

 A number of Members considered that school meal prices should be frozen and 
all other areas should be increased by 1.5%, and highlighted their continued 
support for the promotion of free school meals;

 A Member cautioned against increasing the charges for Town Centre Car 
Parking and it was fed back that there should be no increase to the cost of a 
resident car parking permit; 

 A Member cautioned against increasing the fees for Meals on Wheels and 
noted that the Council needs to encourage more residents to use this service; 

 A Member felt that the Council should consider increasing the level of charges 
for tourist attractions as charges seem to be lower in comparison to other areas 
of Wales; and

 A number of Members considered that charges for the bulky waste collection 
service and pest control service should be frozen. 

Following Member feedback, the Service Director provided further information on 
specific areas. In respect free school meals, the Service Director informed Members 
that transitional / protection arrangements have come into force across Wales in 2019 
that mean all eligible children entitled to free school meals will retain their entitlement 
for a set period even if their circumstances change and no longer meet the eligibility 
criteria. Members indicated that they were not aware of these changes and requested 
further information. In respect of car parking charges, the Service Director fed back 
that charges are only applied in Aberdare and Pontypridd Town Centres, with different 
charges for short and long stay, and have been frozen for a number of years. 

With regard to Question 4, Council Service priorities, Committee Members agreed that 
all Council services are essential and should be protected as part of the 2020/21 
budget setting process. 

For Question 5, delivery of efficiencies, Members agreed that setting a Council wide 
efficiency saving target was a good approach and that managers should be supported 
to deliver even more efficient services, where possible. However, Members 
considered that the year-on-year delivery of efficiency savings is becoming more 
difficult to achieve without impacting on frontline services and highlighted the 
importance of protecting staff as part of any future budget savings proposals. A 
Member also highlighted that exploiting more digital working could provide 
opportunities for the Council to deliver better and more efficient services. 

At this point, the Service Director asked Members if there was any other general 
comments they would like to provide on the Council’s budget, as part of Question 6. 
Members noted that they had no further points to feedback at this point and requested 
the Service Director to continue with the presentation. 

Tudalen 137



Discussions continued in respect of the Council’s priorities for the 2020/21 budget 
setting process. Members were informed that the Council focuses on five key areas to 
maximise resources and deliver improved services (i.e. Digitalisation; 
Commercialisation; Early Intervention and Prevention; Independence; and Efficient 
and Effective Organisation). Members were asked whether the Council should 
continue to focus on these areas and Members were supportive of this strategy going 
forward. 

In respect of investment opportunities, Members were asked whether the Council 
should continue to invest in the priority areas listed. An elected Member raised 
concerns in respect of improving recycling performance and noted that Social 
Landlords are not engaging with the local authority. The Member emphasised that 
Social Landlords need to work with the Council in order to improve recycling rates 
across the County Borough. 

A member of the Committee sought clarification in respect of the Council’s investment 
in flood prevention schemes and sought clarity on the extent of involvement of National 
Resources Wales. It was noted that the flood alleviation schemes referred to are 
primarily Council funded projects and the Council will engage with Natural Resources 
Wales, as deemed appropriate, on a scheme by scheme basis. 

In respect of Council reserves, Members were informed that the Council has used one 
off reserves (£1.1M for 2019/20) to balance its budget alongside delivering savings 
early in subsequent years to replenish these reserves.  The Service Director added 
that this approach is part of a medium term financial strategy recognising that 
managing and balancing the revenue budget is not a one-off annual process. 
Members were asked whether the Council should continue with this strategy and 
Members agreed on the use of this strategy going forward.  

With specific regard to the questions around the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, the 
following responses were fed back by Members: 

 Do you think that 4 weeks is a reasonable period to continue paying Council Tax 
Reduction when someone returns to work? 

o Members agreed that 4 weeks is a reasonable period to continue paying 
Council Tax Reduction when someone returns to work. 

 Do you think that it is reasonable for the Council to continue to totally exclude War 
Disablement and War Widow’s Pensions income when assessing entitlement to 
CTR scheme?

o Members were supportive of these elements continuing to be excluded. 

 Do you think that 6 months is a reasonable period to backdate claims for working 
age and pensioners?

o Members fed back their agreement that 6 months is reasonable. 

Tudalen 138



Discussions ensued in respect of the Council’s Draft Corporate Plan 2020-24. 
Members were informed that three priorities are being proposed (People, Place and 
Prosperity) and Members were provided with the opportunity to provide their views on 
these priorities and ideas about anything else that would make a difference to the 
people and communities of Rhondda Cynon Taf. Committee Members confirmed their 
agreement with the proposed priorities as set out in the draft Corporate Plan 2020-24. 

In conclusion, the Service Director – Finance & Improvement Services informed 
Members that the Committee‘s feedback will be considered by Cabinet as part of it 
agreeing a draft Revenue Budget Strategy for 2020/21 and that the Finance and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee will have opportunity to further scrutinise and 
comment upon the 2020/21 draft Revenue Budget Strategy at its January 2020 
meeting. 

Following discussion, it was RESOLVED that the views of Members as outlined above 
be fed into the consultation process.

Tudalen 139



Tudalen wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 141

Agendwm 10
Ar gyfrif paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 1 o Atodlen 12A 
 o Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Tudalen wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 163

Agendwm 11
Ar gyfrif paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 1 o Atodlen 12A 
 o Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Tudalen wag


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	4 Ailgylchu yn RhCT - Argymhellion y Grŵp Llywio ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd
	Atodiad 1

	5 Ffynnon Dwym Ffynnon Taf - Argymhellion y Grŵp Llywio ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd
	Atodiad 1

	6 Adroddiadau Blynyddol Gwasanaeth Mabwysiadu Cenedlaethol Cymru 2018-2019
	Atodiad 1

	7 Dirprwyo awdurdod i orfodi darpariaethau Deddf Rhentu Cartrefi (Cymru) 2019 (Ffioedd ac ati)
	8 Cyllideb Refeniw'r Cyngor ar gyfer 2020/21
	Atodiad a
	Atodiad A1
	Atodiad A2
	Atodiad A3
	Atodiad A3(ii)
	Atodiad A4
	Atodiad A5
	Atodiad A6

	10 Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Corfforaethol – y diweddaraf
	11 Dileu dyledion nad oes modd eu casglu

